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LONG TERM WARRANT ISSUANCE PROGRAMME

Under the Long Term Warrant Issuance Programnee“Rhogramme”) described in this base prospectus (the
“Base Prospectuy Belfius Bank SA/NV (also named Belfius Banque /BAlfius Bank NV, ‘Belfius
Bank”)(the “Issuer’), may from time to time, issue warrants (togettte “Warrants” and individually as a
“Warrant ") which arelinked to Class C shares of the compartment Candriam Equitiek EUROPE within
Candriam Equities L, a UCITS duly registered under the laws of Luxeorgounder the Commercial and
Companies Register number B47449, admitted tortgasiince July 20, 1999 on the non-regulated madgkiR
MTF with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (Code ISIDHE Trading: LU0027144939; Code Bloomberg:
CEK3520 LX)(the Underlying Value”). The Warrants will be call warrants, meaningtttieey represent the
right to buy shares of the Underlying Value.

Each Tranche of Warrants will be documented byl fimans (the Final Terms”).
The Base Prospectus should be read and constreedjuinction with each relevant Final Terms.

The relevant Final Terms and this Base Prospedgsthier constitute the prospectus (tfedspectus) for
each Tranche.

The Warrants shall be "Derivatives securities linkel to any other underlying than issuer’'s or group
shares which are not admitted on a regulated markeincluding any derivatives securities entitling to
cash settlement)” in the meaning of the Regulatio(EC) No 809/2004 as amended from time to time, and
the last time by the Commission delegated regulatio (EU) No 759/2013. Derivatives Securities are
financial instruments for which the Warrant Holders could lose all or substantial portion of the pringpal
invested.

Prospective purchasers of Warrants should ensure #t they understand the nature of the relevant
Warrants and the extent of their exposure to risksand that they consider the suitability of the releant

Warrants as an investment in the light of their owncircumstances and financial condition. Warrants
involve a high degree of risk and potential invesis should be prepared to sustain a loss of all orgpt of

their investment. It is the responsibility of prosgective purchasers to ensure that they have suffigié

knowledge, experience and professional advice to ke their own legal, financial, tax, accounting and
other business evaluation of the merits and risksfanvesting in the Warrants and are not relying onthe

advice of the Issuer in that regard.

Prior to making an investment decision, prospectiveinvestors should consider carefully all of the
information set out in the Base Prospectus, includg in particular the risk factors as described belw in
Section 3 (Risk Factors)

For a description of the risk factors, please reterpages 11 to 13 and to the full Section 3 @ Base
Prospectus.

This Base Prospectus was approved by the BelgiaanEial Services and Markets Authority (FSMA) on 31
October 2017 and is valid for one year from thaegdprovided that the Base Prospectus may be updgtany



supplements in accordance with articles 34 andf36eoBelgian Law of 16 June 2006 on the publiepfbf
investment instruments and the admission to tradfrigvestment instruments on a regulated market.

The current long-term ratings of Belfius Bank arg, Avith outlook ‘Positive’ (Moody’s), A-, with outlok
‘Stable’ (Standard & Poor’s) and A-, with outlodRtable’ (Fitch). An outlook is not necessarily @qursor of
a rating change or future credit watch action.dsecof any rating action by any of the rating ages¢he most
recent credit ratings of Belfius Bank are alway$lhed on Belfius Bank website, at the followinddeess:
https://www.belfius.com/en/iws/home.html#page=%2BENFratings%2Findex.aspx&pan=&entity=&anySurf
erState

The Base Prospectus, including the Summary, anBitte# Terms of each Tranche of Warrants that tsnmade
within an exemption from the requirement to publélprospectus under the Prospectus DirectiveP(dblic
Offer") and any supplement, are available on the wehsitev.belfius.be (under the heading “Sparen &
beleggen/Epargner & investir”) and a copy can beiobd free of charge in the offices of Belfius Ban

The Warrants may be offered to any kind of emplaybo wants to use the Warrants as employee beméfit.
Issuer and its subsidiaries may also subscribe aliteiin their capacity as employer. The final bieiefies of
the Warrants may be consumers in the meaning déhgian Code of Economic Law.

This Base Prospectus was approved by B&MA on 31 October 2017n accordance with article 23 of the
Belgian Law of 16 June 2006 on the public offer ofvestment instruments and the admission to tradiof
investment instruments on a regulated market. Thigoproval does not entail any appraisal of the
appropriateness or the merits of any issue undeg ffrogramme nor of the situation of the Issuer.
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IMPORTANT REMARKS

Potential investors in the Warrants and potentigéstors interested in this Offer are explicitiyniaded that
any investment involves financial risks. They dreréfore advised to read this Base Prospectusidimg the
relevant Final Terms, carefully and in its entirety

It is recommended that they consult about the Cifed the Warrants, and the risks related to angsiment
therein, with their legal, tax, investment and ac@ng advisors prior to making any investment slieci.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other infaonaupplied in connection with the Base Prospe(iuis
intended to provide the basis of any credit or otheluation or (ii) should be considered as ameoendation
by the Issuer that any recipient of this Base Rross or any other information supplied in conrectvith the
Base Prospectus should purchase any Warrants. iBeestor contemplating purchasing any Warrants kshou
make its own independent investigation of the feiahcondition and affairs, and its own appraishlttee
creditworthiness, of the Issuer. Neither this BRsespectus nor any other information supplied inneetion
with the Base Prospectus constitutes an offer onétation by or on behalf of the Issuer or anketperson to
subscribe for or to purchase any Warrants.

The delivery of this Base Prospectus does not gt tane imply that the information contained herein
concerning the Issuer is correct at any time sulessigfo the date hereof or that any other inforomasupplied

in connection with the Base Prospectus is correcbfaany time subsequent to the date indicatechén t
document containing the same. Investors shouldewgvinter alia, the most recently published anrarmd
interim financial statements of the Issuer, whetidieg whether or not to purchase any Warrants.

No person is authorized to give any informatiotadomake any representation not contained in ocapsistent
with this document or any other information supglia connection with the Base Prospectus and,viérgior
made, such information or representation must agebed upon as having been authorized by thestssu

This document is to be read and construed in caotijum with any amendment or supplement hereto, aith
Final Terms and with all documents which are deetodie incorporated herein by reference.

The Warrants create options exercisable by thevamteholder. There is no obligation upon any holter
exercise his Warrant nor, in the absence of suelhcese, any obligation on the Issuer to pay anywarthto any
holder of a Warrant, unless provided otherwise. Wagrants will be exercisable in the manner sethfberein

and in the relevant Final Terms. The only meansutih which the Warrant Holder can realize valuenfithe

Warrant prior to the Exercise Period is to selBélfius Bank provides some liquidity by giving &ad/arrant
Holder the possibility to sell the Warrants to BedfBank.

The Warrants of each issue may be sold by the dsguguch time and at such prices as the Issuerselagt.
There is no obligation upon the Issuer to selb&lhe Warrants of any issue. The Warrants of asyé may be
offered or sold from time to time in one or morangactions in the over-the-counter market or ottsenat
prevailing market prices or in negotiated transargj at the discretion of the Issuer.

The Issuer shall have complete discretion as td type of warrants it issues and when.
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2. SUMMARY

The following summary is established in accordawith Articles 24 and 28 of the Belgian Law of 16ndu
2006 on the public offer of investment instrumeamsl the admission to trading of investment instmisi®n a
regulated market and conveys, in a brief manneriaradnon-technical language, the essential cheniatits
and risks associated with the Issuers and the \Matra

Al

A2

Summary of the
BELFIUS BANK SA/NV

LONG TERM WARRANTS ISSUANCE PROGRAMME

(the “Programme”)

Introduction and warnings

Warning:

— this summary should be read as introduction to te Base Prospectus;

— any decision to invest in the securities shouldebbased on consideration of the Base
Prospectus as a whole by the Investor;

— where a claim relating to the information contaired in the Base Prospectus is brought
before a court, the plaintiff investor might, under the national legislation of the Member
States, have to bear the costs of translating thergspectus before the legal proceedings are
initiated; and

— civil liability attaches only to those persons wb have tabled the summary including any
translation thereof, but only if the summary is miseading, inaccurate or inconsistent when
read together with the other parts of the prospects or it does not provide, when read
together with the other parts of the prospectus, ke information in order to aid investors
when considering whether to invest in such securds.

— Consent by the Issuer or person responsible fordwing up the prospectus to the use of the
prospectus for subsequent resale or final placemeuwf securities by financial intermediaries.
Not applicable.

— Indication of the offer period within which subsejuent resale or final placement of
securities by financial intermediaries can be madeand for which consent to use the
prospectus is given.

Not applicable.

— Any other clear and objective conditions attachedo the consent which are relevant for the
use of the prospectus.

Not applicable.

—Information on the terms and conditions of the ofér by any financial intermediary is to be
provided at the time of the offer by the financialintermediary.

Not applicable.
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Issuer: Belfius Bank SA/NV

B.1

B.2

B.4b

Legal and commercial name of the Issuer
Legal name: Belfius Bank SA/NV

Commercial name: Belfius Bank

Domicile, legal form, legislation and country bincorporation
Belfius Bank is a limited liability company of unlited duration incorporated under Belgian law. Its

registered office is at 1000 Brussels, boulevarchBeo 44, Belgium, telephone +32 2 222 11 11.

Known trends affecting the Issuer and its industry
1. Uncertain economic conditions
Belfius Bank’s business activities are dependentherievel of banking, finance and financial seggic

required by its customers. In particular, levels bafrrowing are heavily dependent on customer
confidence; the state of the economies Belfius Bamés business in, market interest rates and other
factors that affect the economy. Also, the marketdebt securities issued by banks is influenced by
economic and market conditions and, to varying eegr market conditions, interest rates, currency
exchange rates and inflation rates in other Eunopéa other countries. There can be no assuraate th
negative events in Europe or elsewhere would noseanarket volatility or that such volatility would
not adversely affect the price of the Warrantshat economic and market conditions will not havg an
other adverse effect. The profitability of BelfilBank’s businesses could, therefore, be adversely
affected by a worsening of general economic comulitiin its markets, as well as by foreign and
domestic trading market conditions and/or relatedtdrs, including governmental policies and
initiatives. An economic downturn or significanthygher interest rates could increase the risk #hat
greater number of the Belfius Bank's customers wailéfault on their loans or other obligations to
Belfius Bank, or would refrain from seeking addii@ borrowing. As Belfius Bank currently conducts
the majority of its business in Belgium, its perfance is influenced by the level and cyclical natoir
business activity in this country, which is in tafiected by both domestic and international ecdoom
and political events. There can be no assurandeatkasting weakening in the Belgian economy will
not have a material adverse effect on the BelfiaskBs future results.

2. Increased and changing regulation
As is the case for all credit institutions, BelfiBaink's business activities are subject to subistiant

regulation and regulatory oversight in the jurisidics in which it operates, mainly in Belgium.

Recent developments in the global markets havetdedn increase in the involvement of various
governmental and regulatory authorities in the ritial sector and in the operations of financial
institutions. In particular, governmental and regoty authorities in France, the United Kingdore th
United States, Belgium, Luxembourg and elsewheree halready provided additional capital and
funding requirements and have already introducechay, in the future, be introducing a significantly
more restrictive regulatory environment, includimgw accounting and capital adequacy rules,
restrictions on termination payments for key pemsbrand new regulation of derivative instruments.
Current regulation, together with future regulatdavelopments, could have an adverse effect on how
Belfius Bank conducts its business and on the tesfits operations.

Belfius Bank is subject to on-going regulation asociated regulatory risks, including the effexts
changes in the laws, regulations, policies andrpnégations mainly in Belgium but also in the other
regions in which Belfius Bank does business. Charigesupervision and regulation, in particular in
Belgium, could materially affect Belfius Bank bus#s, the products and services offered by it or the
value of its assets.

The recent global economic downturn has resultesignificant changes to regulatory regimes. There
have been significant regulatory developments époese to the global crisis, including the stress t
exercise co-ordinated by the Committee of EuropBanking Supervisors, in co-operation with the
ECB, liquidity risk assessments and the adoptiomest capital regulatory requirements under Basel
lll. Belfius Bank works closely with its regulaterand continually monitors regulatory developments
and plans the contemplated changes, but as thé details of the implementation are not fully
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B.5

B.9

B.10

B.12

B.13

determined yet, it is still highly uncertain whatians will be required from Belfius Bank in order
fully comply with the new rules.

Belfius Bank’s business and earnings are also t&ffieby fiscal and other policies that are adopted b
the various regulatory authorities of the Europeamon, foreign governments and international
agencies. The nature and impact of future chargesicth policies are not predictable and are beyond
Belfius Bank’s control.

Position of the Issuer in its group
Since 20 October 2011, the Federal Holding anddiment Company EHIC”), acting on behalf of

the Belgian Federal State, holds 100% of the shafrBglfius Bank.

Profit forecast or estimate
Belfius Bank does not disclose any forecast diutsre results.

Qualifications in the audit report on the hisbrical financial information
Statutory auditor’s report on the consolidated riicial statements for the year ended 31 December

2016:
Report on the consolidated financial statementsigualified opinion
Selected historical key financial information

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(in thousands of EUR) 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 30/06/2017
Audited Audited Unaudited
TOTAL ASSETS 176,962,124 176,720,926 171,639,161
TOTAL LIABILITIES 168,302,407 167,709,206 162,351,099
TOTAL EQUITY 8,659,717 9,011,720 9,288,062
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 176,962,124 176,720,926 171,639,161

Consolidated statement of income

(in thousands of EUR) 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 30/06/2017
Audited Audited Unaudited
INCOME 2,183,862 2,259,271 1,135,512
EXPENSES -1,396.451 -1,366.281 -661,681
GROSS OPERATINGINCOME 787,411 892,990 473,831
NET INCOME BEFORE TAX 681,948 779,524 444,852
NET INCOME AFTER TAX 506,075 535,251 360,964
NET INCOME A ttributable to equity holders of the parent 506,076 535,229 360,945

Consolidated cash flow statement

(in thousands of EUR) Notes 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 30/06/2017
Audited Audited Unaudited
NET CA SH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATINGA CTIVITIES (1) 4,705,795 2,735,837 2,504,387
NET CA SH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTINGA CTIVITIES -69,829 8,826 32,147
NET CA SH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING A CTIVITIES -317.084 345.659 -130,380
NET CA SH PROVIDED 4,318,882 3,090.321 2,406,154
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINING OF THE o
PERIOD 3,009,728 7,328,610 10,418,931
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD (1) 7,328,610 10,418,931 12,825,085

(1) The amounts of 2014 and 1H 2015 were revised for the adjusted presentation of financial instruments with an original maturity

less than orequalto 90 days.

Material adverse change in the prospects
There has been no material adverse change in thepgxts of the Issuer since the date of its last

published audited financial statements.

Significant changes in the financial or trading po#ion
There are no significant changes in the finanaiatading position subsequent to the period covéred

the historical financial information.

Recent events relevant to the evaluation ofehssuer’s solvency
The robust liquidity and solvency position of Baffiarises from its successful diversification st

for funding, irreproachable risk management, snatae commercial performances and solid financial
results. Belfius broadly meets both the SREP staisdand the liquidity requirements imposed by the
ECB and the BNB.
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B.14

Dependence upon other entities within the grqu

Belfius Bank is fully held by the Belgian Federaht®, through the Federal Holding and Investment
Company, which manages Belfius at arm’s length.fiBelBank is not dependent of any of its
subsidiaries, save for Belfius Insurance SA/NV.

B.15 Principal activities
Belfius Bank’s object is to carry on the busineba aredit institution. Furthermore, Belfius Bankyn
distribute insurance products from third party naswe companies.

B.16  Direct or indirect control over the Issuer
Belfius Bank is fully held by the Belgian Federaht®, through the Federal Holding and Investment
Company, which manages Belfius at arm’s length.

Securities

C.l1 Type, class and identification number
Warrants, non-equity securities, ISIN Code nr. ggetas such in the relevant Final Terms.

Cc.2 Currency : EUR

C5 Restrictions on the free transferability
The Warrants can be freely transferred to any théndy, except that (i) they may not be offeredd so
or delivered within the United States of Ameriagluding its territories and possessions, or to.U.S
persons, and (ii) that they may not be transfelned Warrant Holder to its employer.

Cc.8 Rights attached to the securities including. neking and limitations to those rights

The Warrants provide the Warrant Holder a contrctight against the Issuer to acquire Class C
shares of the compartment Candriam Equities L EUR®&hin Candriam Equities L against a
predetermined Exercise Price during a predetermieercise Period. The Warrants are direct,
unconditional and unsecured obligations of the dssand rank without any preference among
themselves, with all other obligations of the Issoiethe same category, only to the extent perhitte
by laws relating to creditor’s rights. This categoan be seen as the “ordinary creditors” and ney b
qualified as “Preferred Senior creditors”, being ttreditors related under article 389/1, 1° of the
banking law. Such creditors have a higher priorégking than the so-called non-preferred senior
creditors defined under article 389/1, 2° of thakiag law.

Where applicable, the Issuer and the Calculatioem\gindertake to comply with Book VI of the
Belgian Code of Economic Law in respect of Warrasgsied under the Programme and accepted by
consumers in Belgium.

Especially with regard to an unilateral modificatiof essential features of a financial product, the
Articles VI1.82 to VI.84 of the Belgian Code of Eannic Law provide that, except in the case of a
force majeure event, the Issuer may not make atendll modification to a product if it concerns an
essential feature of the product, unless the salpgse is to allow the Issuer and/or the Calcutatio
Agent, as the case may be, upon the occurrencertafic events which are outside of the control of
the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agent and whigreanot reasonably foreseeable at the time of
issuance of the relevant Warrants, to make modifina to the Warrants that would allow the rights
and obligations under the Warrants to be exercseblperformed by the Warrant Holders in view of
realising a return to the extent possible in acancé with the initially agreed terms and contractua
equilibrium, and provided the following cumulatigenditions are met:

(i) it is limited to events of force majeure or etlevents which significantly modify the economy of
the contract and for which the Issuer is not resjie,;

(ii) the modification itself is not significant, gbat it does not create an imbalance betweerighésr
and obligations of the parties, to the detrimentthef Warrant Holders. The Issuer must take all
measures and make every effort to continue theygtachder similar circumstances; and

(iii) no costs are charged to the Warrant Holders.

The following Conditions grant or may grant theukss and/or the Calculation Agent a unilateral

right to modify certain features of the Warrants :

(a) Condition 8.7.1 (Change of law)
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cl1u

C.15

(b) Condition 8.7.2. (Cancellation option upon apaof Investment Strategy);

(c) Condition 8.9 (Market Disruption Event or seitlent disruption event);

(d) Condition 8.10.1 (Potential Adjustment Event);
(e) Condition 8.10.2 (De-Listing, Insolvency, Merdevent or Nationalisation).”

Furthermore, the cancellation of the Warrants mtedifor in these Conditions is, to the extent the
Warrant Holder is a consumer in Belgium, possibidy cupon a decision of the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent as a consequence of a force majevent or with indemnification of the loss
suffered by the Warrant Holder because of the diticen. More generally, such modification or
cancellation may not in any way disrupt the cortrak equilibrium between the rights and
obligations of the parties to the contract, todb&riment of the consumer-Warrant Holder.

Such termination and cancellation rights are onkgnded to be invoked by the Issuer and/or the
Calculation Agent, as the case may be, upon therperce of certain events which are outside of the
control of the Issuer and/or the Calculation Agemd which were not reasonably foreseeable at the
time of issuance of the relevant Warrants and piedithat all reasonable efforts were otherwise
made that would allow the rights and obligationslemthe Warrants to be exercised and performed
by the Warrant Holders in view of realising a retio the extent possible in accordance with the
initially agreed terms and contractual equilibriuim.case of cancellation, the Issuer is required to
indemnify the Warrant Holder for the loss sufferbg the Warrant Holder because of the
cancellation. An amount based on the Fair Markdu®&/avill be paid as a minimum to compensate
the Warrant Holder.

In case of an early termination, no costs are @wtg the Warrant Holder (including settlement
costs) and a pro rata refund of the costs alreadyebby the investor (in the proportion (total ielit
term minus elapsed period)/total initial term), Is&s, if already paid, the Actual Exercise Pribe, t
Exercise Cost and the Exercise Expense will be rhgdbe Issuer.

The Following Conditions grant or may grant theutssand/or the Calculation Agent a right to
terminate and cancel the Warrants under certaficistances:

(a) Condition 8.7.1 (Change of law)

(b) Condition 8.7.2. (Cancellation option upon oj@if Investment Strategy)

(c) Condition 8.10.2 (De-Listing, Insolvency, Merdevent or Nationalisation).”

The Warrants are instruments that allow the Warkoitler to gain an exposure on the Underlying
Value.

Their value may fluctuate based on, inter aliactflations in the Underlying Value. The Warrants
grant the Warrant Holders a right of Exercise & Warrants (see Condition 8.5) and a right to sell
the Warrants to the Issuer in the secondary mdsket Condition 8.5.1). In case of an Exercise ef th
Warrants, the Warrant Holders may realise a rebyriselling the shares in the Underlying Value
they receive upon Exercise provided they can Belshares of the Underlying Value at a price that i
greater than the Strike Price paid for by the Warkéolder.

Admission to trading

No.

How is the value of the securities affected lihe value of the underlying instrument(s)?

The Warrant has a leverage effect. This meansathavariation in the price of the Underlying Value
is in theory amplified. Therefore, the Warrantsdlve a high degree of risk. The leverage effect,
means that the investment of an amount in Wari@ngpared to a direct investment of the same
amount in the Underlying Value may result in sigrahtly higher gains but also in significantly
higher losses. The (non-)occurrence of anticipéteduations in the price of the Underlying Value
may disproportionately affect the value of Warral&rrants may expire worthless if the
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Underlying Value does not perform as anticipatédot exercised in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions during the Exercise Period, a Warratitlveicome void and expire worthless. In order to
recover and realize a return upon its investmeWaarant Holder must be correct about the
direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipatedmge in the value of the Underlying Value.
Warrant Holders should also consider that the netur the investment in Warrants is reduced by the
costs in connection with the purchase, exerciséoasdle of the Warrants. The loss born by the
Warrant Holder is limited to the original premiuraig to acquire the Warrants. Such premium is
paid by the employer not by the employee who hasgted the offer of the Warrants. Employees
receive Warrants for no consideration.

A Warrant’s leverage effect is determined by apmythe following formula:

(Leverage =0P/OS x S/P)

where:

S = the price of the Underlying Value

P = the value of the Warrant

The ratiooP/6S, which is called the Delta of the Warrant, is degree to which the Warrant changes
value divided by the degree to which the Underlyifajue changes valuéP/oS is not a constant,
and the ratio changes throughout the term of ther&kia

As and when the leverage effect approaches 1, aaWdrehaves more and more like the Underlying
Value, and the risk associated with the Warrarnhé&efore almost the same as the risk associated
with retaining that Underlying Value. The abovenfiola reveals that the leverage tends towards 1 if
the Delta of the WarrangP/0S, and S/P tend towards 1. Both ratios move towards and when,
among other things, the Warrant's term gets loraget therefore the Warrant's initial time value
rises.

The Warrants issued by Belfius Bank have a longntdihe unavoidable consequence of this is that
the initial leverage effect of the Warrant is sfgantly higher than 1. That also remains so fargé
part of the lifetime of the Warrant.

C.16  Maturity date, exercise date, final referenceate
The dates specified as such in the relevant Fieahs.

C.17 Settlement procedure
Belfius Bank will deliver the Underlying Value tosacurities account chosen by the Warrant Holder
or which must be opened by the investor for thippse. In case the amount of Warrants exercised is
inferior to the parity, Belfius Bank will proceed & settlement in cash by transfer to the cashusatco
indicated by the Warrant Holder.

C.18 How does the return take place?
Investing in a Warrant allows the Warrant Holderetercise its option(s) in case the Underly
Value price fixes above the Strike Price during En@rcise Period. The Warrant Holder benefits in
this case of the increase of the Underlying Valsieould the fixing occur below the Strike Price
during the Exercise Period, the loss is then lichite the original premium paid to acquire the
options. The Warrant Holder may also benefit (syffeom a positive (negative) evolution of the
price of the Warrant during its lifetime.

C.19 Exercise priceffinal reference price of the wterlying
[The price specified as such in the relevant Fireaimns.]

Underlyings

C.20 Type of the underlying and where informatioron the underlying can be found
Units of a UCITS registered in Luxembourg.
The prospectus of the Underlying Value can be cteduon the internet site of Candriam
(https://www.candriam.be/en/private/fund-details/l020144939.

C.22 Information about the underlying share

Description of the underlying share
Class C Share (theshar€’ or “Shares) of the compartment Candriam Equities L EUROP Ehimi

Candriam Equities L (theSICAV”), a UCITS duly registered under the laws of Luxemrg under
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the Commercial and Companies Register number B47&dHitted to trading since July 20, 1999 on
the non-regulated market EUR MTF with the Luxemligo@®tock Exchange. Code ISIN/Code
Trading: LU0027144939; Code Bloomberg: CEK3520 LX.

The Shares are offered both to legal entities aatdral persons and capitalize their profits. The
investment strategy of the SICAM to invest in shares of companies that are dstadal in the
European Economic Area. The portfolio of the SIC&&Mmprises at least 75 per cent. of investments
in company shares, whereas the remaining 25 pér mary be invested in other asset classes such as
money market instruments. The managers of the Sl@#ake discretionary investment choices
based on their own analysis and based on futureotxipons regarding the evolution of the asset
classes in which the SICAV can invest. Derivatiieansactions are also allowed either for
investment purposes or hedging purposes.

Settlement of the Shares is made on demand andlaityabasis in Luxembourg. There is no capital
guarantee. There are costs associated with theisitcmu of the Shares and the recurrent
management of the Shares. The deposit bank ofttheeSis RBC Investor Services Bank S.A.

Currency

EUR

Description of the rights attached to the securis and procedure for the exercise of those
rights

Dividend rights: none

The Shares are not vested with any dividend righnsidering that the shares of Class C within the
compartment Candriam Equities L EUROPE capitaliheg profits.

The number of shares of the SICAV that may be @ssi@nlimited.

Right to a share in liguidation surplus

All shares of the SICAV, including the Shares, eested with equal rights to a share in liquidation
surplus within their compartment, if angrorata the amount of shares existing within the relevant
compartment by date of its liquidation.

Vating rights

All shares of the SICAV are vested with an equaingpright, each share representing one vote. The
annual general shareholders’ meeting of the SICaYdld each year on April 18th at 13:00 at the
registered seat of the SICAV, or at any other dai@ place as notified beforehand by the SICAV to
the holders of shares.

Where and when the shares will be or have been adited to trading

Admitted to trading since July 20, 1999 on the megulated market EUR MTF with the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Description of any restrictions on the free transérability of the securities.

None.

Where the issuer of the underlying is an entity denging to the same group, the information to
provide on this issuer is the information required by the share registration document.
Therefore provide such information required for a simmary for Annex 1

Not applicable.

Risk factors

D.2

Key information on the key risks that are spedic to the Issuer.

Like all other financial institutions, Belfius Barfces financial risk in the conduct of its busses
such as credit risk, operational risk and marlksk ¢including liquidity risk).

General_credit risks are inherent in a wide rangBalfius Bank’s businesses. These include risks
arising from changes in the credit quality of itsrtowers and counterparties and the inability to
recover loans and any amounts due. Being a univeosamercial credit institution, Belfius Bank is
financing clients from the (local) public and sdc&ctor and corporates through its Public and
Corporate Banking business unit as well as houslshsklf-employed persons and small businesses
through its Retail and Commercial Banking busingss

Market risks can be understood as the potentiadmgvchange in the value of a portfolio of finahcia
instruments due to movements in market price lewelschanges of the instrument’s liquidity, to
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D.6

E.2b

E.3

changes in the volatility levels for market pricgschanges in the correlations between the leviels o

market prices. Management of market risk withinfidel Bank is focused on all Non Financial and

Financial Markets activities and encompasses isterae risk, spread risk and associated credit

risk/liquidity risk, foreign-exchange risk, equitisk (or price risk), inflation risk and commodity

price risk. Due to the nature of its activity, Bef Bank is prevented from assuming significant

exposure to market risk.

Operational risk is the risk of financial or nomdincial impact resulting from inadequate or failed

internal processes, people and systems, or froerredt events. The definition includes legal and

reputation risk but excludes strategic risk andeeggs from commercial decisions. Although Belfius

Bank has implemented risk controls and loss mitigaiactions, and has resources devoted to

developing efficient procedures and staff awaren&88 per cent coverage of operational risks can

never be attained, due to the very nature of thieks.

Liquidity risk at Belfius Bank is affected mainlyb

= the amounts of commercial funding collected frotaiteand private clients, small, medium-sized
and large companies and similar clients and the tlvage funds are allocated to clients through
commercial loans;

= the volatility of the collateral that is placed kitounterparties as part of the framework of
derivative and repo transactions (so called caskedurities collateral);

= the value of the liquid reserves by virtue of whigélfius Bank can collect funding on the repo
market or from the ECB;

the capacity to obtain interbank funding.

Key information on the key risks that are spedic to the securities.

The Warrants create options exercisable by thevaateholder. There is no obligation upon any

holder to exercise his Warrant nor, in the abseafcguch exercise, any obligation on the Issuer to

pay any amount to any holder of a Warrant, unleswiged otherwise. The Warrants will be

exercisable in the manner set forth in the Basspg&wtus and in the relevant Final Terms. The only

means through which the Warrant Holder can reala@dae from the Warrant prior to the Exercise

Period is to sell it. Belfius Bank provides somquldity by giving each Warrant Holder the

possibility to sell the Warrants to Belfius Bank.

- Investors may lose the value of their entire gteeent or part of it, as the case may be.

- If not exercised in accordance with the Terms @odditions during the Exercise Period, a Warrant

will become void and expire worthless.

- The value of the Warrants may also not exactlyetate with the value of the Underlying Value

(see section C.15 and C.18). In addition, the Teant Conditions of the Warrants may need to be

adjusted upon the occurrence of events relatitedJnderlying Value.

There is no assurance that an active trading méokéhe Warrants may develop and the Issuer may

engage in tradingactivities related to the Undedy/alue.

- Warrants may be subject to conversion or wrifeasfsociated to a regulatory bail-in under the

European Union's Bank Recovery and Resolution BDiveq2014/59/EU).

In the event of write-down or conversion exercibgd Union Resolution Authority, the investors in

the Warrants could be impacted as follows:

i. the security may be converted into ordinary ekar other instruments of ownership;

. the terms may be varied (e.g. the variatiothef Strike Price of the Warrants).

It is worth to note that financial public suppofiosild only be used as a last resort after having

assessed and exploited, to the maximum extentipaats, the resolution tools, including the bail-in

tool.

- The Warrant has a leverage effect. This mearisahg variation in the price of the Underlying

Value is in theory amplified. Therefore, the Watsimvolve a high degree of risk.

Reasons for the Offer and use of proceeds whelifferent from making profit and/or hedging

certain risks.

Not applicable.

A description of the terms and conditions of th Offer.

The Warrants will be offered for subscription agdfied in this Base Prospectus and the relevant

Final Terms at the relevant Issue Price (Commissioluded) (the Offer”). The Issuer has the right

to anticipatively terminate the Offering Periodtlife maximum amount of the Warrants issue has

been reached or if the market conditions adverafbct the interest of the Issuer, as the case may
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E.4

be.

The Warrants have not been offered or sold andneiilbe offered or sold directly or indirectly and
the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final Tersiadtsbeen distributed and will not be distributed,
except in such circumstances that will result impbance with all applicable laws and regulations.
The Warrants will not be physically delivered. They be held on a global securities account with
Belfius Bank, and only respectively assigned to MMatrHolders via an electronic platform managed
by Belfius Bank and accessible by every Warrantddol Belfius Bank will not charge any fees for
Warrants held in the aforementioned global se@siticcount.

The Issuer has the right to cancel any issue ofr&és under the Programme during their Offering
Period until the fifth business day before theguls Date, either (i) when it reasonably believes th
investors will not subscribe to the Offer for anamt of at least the Minimum Amount specified in
the relevant Final Terms or (ii) in case it considéhere is a material adverse change in market
conditions. Investors that have subscribed to ttW¢aerants will be notified pursuant to Condition
8.14. of such cancellation. The Issuer has the tiglanticipatively terminate the Offering Peridd i
the Maximum Amount of the relevant Warrants issas heen reached or if the market conditions
adversely affect the interest of the Issuer, azése may be.

The Warrants have not been and will not be registemder the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and are subject to U.S. tax law requirtsveamd, subject to certain exceptions, Warrants
may not be offered, sold or delivered within theitelth States of America, including its territories
and possessions, or to U.S. persons.

The Warrants have not been offered, sold or dedivemnd will not be offered, sold or delivered, as
part of their distribution at any time, or otheravisintii 40 days after the commencement of the
offering within the United States or to, or for taecount or the benefit of, U.S. persons and aedeal
to which the Warrants are sold during the restrigteriod, will receive a confirmation or other roati
setting forth the restrictions on offers and saléshe Warrants within the U.S. or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons.

The Warrants will be offered at the relevant IsBuiee (Commission included). This price comprises
all costs.

The financial service will be performed by BelfiBank.

The Offer is governed by the laws of Belgium. Asgltes arising out of or in connection with the
Offer shall be exclusively submitted to the juridtin of the competent courts in Brussels.

A description of any interest that is materiato the issue/Offer including conflicting interests.
The Issuer may also engage in trading activitieeldding hedging activities) related to the

Underlying Value and other instruments or derivagproducts based on or related to the Underlying
Value for its proprietary account or for other amsbunder its management. The Issuer may also
issue other derivative instruments in respect ef thnderlying Value. The Issuer may also act as
underwriter in connection with future offeringstok Underlying Value or other securities related to
the Underlying Value or may act as financial advise certain companies or in a commercial
banking capacity for certain companies. Such dw@wicould present certain conflicts of interest,
could influence the prices of the Underlying Valoeother securities referring to the Underlying
Value and could adversely affect the value of sWfrrants. In case the Calculation Agent should
make determinations and calculations in respetit@iVarrants, the Calculation Agent shall act kat al
times in good faith and a commercially reasonabéemer, but not necessarily in the interest of the
Warrant Holder.

Offer

E.7

Estimated expenses charged to the investor blyet Issuer

Subscribers to Warrants shall pay the Issue Prib&ehwincludes the Commission, both as
specified in the relevant Final Terms. The IssueeFs paid by the employer not by the employee
who has accepted the offer of the Warrants. Thex@a additional costs of subscription.

In respect of the Exercise of a Warrant duringEercise Period, the Warrant Holder shall pay,
besides the Strike Price, the applicable fees axeistrelated to a subscription in the Underlying
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Value, as may exist at such time.
There are no additional costs related to a satheWarrants to the Issuer. The Warrant Holder
shall only pay the applicable taxes related to sushle.

3. RISK FACTORS

(Annex IV.4 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

The following sets out certain aspects of the oféeof the Warrants of which prospective investshisuld be
aware of.

An investment in the Warrants involves a degre&kf Prospective investors should carefully coesithe risks
set forth below and the other information contaimedhis Prospectus (including information incorpted by
reference) before making any investment decisioaspect of the Warrants. The risks described bel@arisks
which the Issuers believe may have a material adveffect on the relevant Issuer's financial coadiaind the
results of its operations, the value of the Warsanit the relevant Issuer's ability to fulfil its l@ations under
the Warrants. All of these factors are contingeacihich may or may not occur and Belfius Bank isin@
position to express a view on the likelihood ofaallany of such contingencies occurring. Additioriak and
uncertainties, including those of which the Issigrnot currently aware or deems immaterial, mayoals
potentially have an adverse effect on the relevssuer's business, results of operations, financtaldition or
future prospectus or may result in other events tloaild cause investors to lose all or part of thevestment.

Factors which the Issuer believe may be materiatiie purpose of assessing the market risks assatiaith
the Warrants issued under the Programme are alsorilged below.

The Issuer believes that the factors describedvbekepresent the principal risks inherent in invegtiin
Warrants issued under the Programme, but the iitsibif the Issuer to pay principal or other amouatsor in
connection with any Warrants may occur for othessens which are not known to the Issuer or whiah th
Issuer deem immaterial at this time.

Prospective investors should also read the detaitddrmation set out elsewhere in the Base Progect
(including any documents deemed to be incorporateitl by reference) and reach their own views prior
making any investment decision.

In case of doubt in respect of the risks associatitkl the Warrants and in order to assess theirqadey with
their personal risk profile, investors should colhgbeir own financial, legal, accounting and taxperts about
the risks associated with an investment in theseaMs, the appropriate tools to analyse that inwesnt, and
the suitability of that investment in each investgarticular circumstances. No investor should ghase the
Warrants described in the Base Prospectus unless itivestor understands and has sufficient financia
resources to bear the price, market, liquidity,usture, redemption and other risks associated wveth
investment in these Warrants. The market valuebeaexpected to fluctuate significantly and investsould
be prepared to assume the market risks associatadivese Warrants.

Factors that may affect Belfius Bank’s ability tolffll its obligations under the
Warrants.

Like other banks, Belfius Bank faces financial iiskhe conduct of its business, such as credk, aperational
risk and market risk (including liquidity risk).
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3.1. Risks related to the business of banks in gEneand to the Business of
Belfius Bank

3.1.1. Credit Risk

General credit risks are inherent in a wide ranfgBedfius Bank’s businesses. These include risksray from
changes in the credit quality of its borrowers aotdinterparties and the inability to recover loand any
amounts due. Belfius Bank is subject to the creidit that third parties (such as trading countdipsy
counterparties under swaps and credit and othevadiee contracts, borrowers of loans made avadldny
Belfius Bank, the issuers of securities which BedfBank holds, customers, clearing agents andintghouses,
exchanges, guarantors, (re-)insurers and othemdiabintermediaries owing Belfius Bank money, sé@s or
other assets) do not pay, deliver or perform utldeir obligations. Bankruptcy, lack of liquiditypeinturns in
the economy or real estate values, operationalréibr other reasons may cause them to defaulhein t
obligations towards Belfius Bank.

Being a universal commercial credit institution,|f8ess Bank is financing clients from the public asdcial
sector and corporates through its Public and CatpoBanking business unit as well as households, se
employed persons and small businesses througteitslRnd Commercial Banking business unit.

Credit risk measurements rely principally on intnrating systems put in place by Belfius Bank urigiesel II.
The risk approach of Belfius Bank is based on dsislon to apply the IRBA Il Advanced method. Thisthod
stems from the so-called Internal Ratings-Basedréggh and it means that Belfius Bank makes usts @iwn
internal models for defining the risk parameterstiability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LG@)nd
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF — the conversioreims of percentage of an available credit linenrmamount
draw down) for off-balance-sheet commitments. Tdtisice has been acknowledged by the regulatorsh Eac
counterparty is rated by analysts in charge of itradk or by dedicated scoring systems. This tin
corresponds to a valuation of the counterpartysllef default risk, expressed on an internal @snale, and is
a key element in the loan granting process by thdiccommittee or by automated granting systenagings
are reviewed at least annually according to regryatonstraints, and this allows a proactive idaattion of
counterparties requiring regular monitoring by thatchlist” committee.

In order to control the general credit risk profiled to limit risk concentrations, credit risk limare defined for
each counterparty, fixing the maximum exposure rexlit risk deemed acceptable for a given countéypar
Limits may also be imposed per economic sectorpangproduct. The risk management department prayti
monitors these limits, in relation to the evolutiointhe perception of risks run by Belfius Bank.dmer to take
more recent events into consideration, specifidtéinmay be frozen at any time by the risk manageémen
department. Nonetheless, no assurance can bethakthne strategy and framework to control the gareredit
risk profile and to limit risk concentrations witle effective and will not have an adverse effectBaffius
Bank’s results of operations, financial conditiangrospects.

3.1.2. Market Risk

The businesses and earnings of Belfius Bank anits ohdividual business segments are affected bgketa
conditions.

Market risk can be understood as the potential mévehange in the value of a portfolio of finanémtruments
due to movements in market price levels, to chamgdbe instrument’s liquidity, to changes in thelatility
levels for market prices or changes in the cori@tatbetween the levels of market prices.

Belfius Bank records several additional value adjests which might vary significantly based on nedrk
evolutions of for example credit and basic risk.

Management of market risk within Belfius Bank iscéised on all Non Financial and Financial Markets
activities and encompasses interest rate risk,adpresk and associated credit risk/liquidity ridkreign-
exchange risk, equity risk (or price risk), infatirisk and commodity price risk.

Pagel6 of 96



Non Financial Markets activities

Managing structural exposure to market risks (idirlg interest rate risk, equity risk, real estag& and foreign
exchange risk) is also known as ALM. The structesgdosure at the Issuer results from the imbaléeteeen
its assets and liabilities in terms of volumes ations and interest rate sensitivity.

Belfius Bank's Board of Directors has the ultimatsponsibility for setting the strategic risk talece,
including the risk tolerance for market risks imnfinancial markets activities. The Management Boafr the
Issuer and Belfius Insurance have the ultimatearsipility for managing the interest rate risksBeflifius Bank
within the above set risk tolerance and withinrbgulatory framework.

Operational responsibility for effective ALM is @glated to the ALCo. The ALCo manages interest niake
foreign exchange risk, and liquidity risk of BeKilBank’s and Belfius Insurance’s balance sheethinwia
framework of normative limits and reports to the idgement Board. Important files at a strategiclleve
submitted for final decision to the Management Boarhich has the final authority before any praaltic
implementation.

The ALCo of Belfius Bank is responsible for guidiapmd monitoring balance sheet and off-balance +tshee
commitments and, in doing so, places an emphasis on

» the creation of a stabledome flow;

e the maintenance of economic value; and

» the insurance of robust and sustainable funding.
Financial Markets activities

Financial Markets activities encompass client-dgednactivities and hedge activities. No Financisrkéts
activities are undertaken at Belfius Insurance.

The Value-at-Risk (aR”") concept is used as the principal metric for gnomanagement of the market risk
Belfius Bank is facing. The VaR measures the manrinross the bank might be facing in normal and/or
historical market conditions over a period of 1@<laith a confidence interval of 99%. The followirigks are
monitored at Belfius Bank using a VaR computation:

» The interest rate and foreign-exchange rate rigk:dategory of risk is monitored via an historigaR
based on an internal model approved by the NatiBaak of Belgium

* The historical simulation approach consists of ngam@the portfolio through a time series of histati
asset yields. These revaluations generate a distibof portfolio values (yield histogram) on thasis
of which a VaR (% percentile) may be calculated.

» The main advantages of this type of VaR are itp8aity and the fact that it does not assume a @brm
but a historical distribution of asset yields (dlmitions may be non-normal and the behaviour ef th
observations may be non-linear).

» The general and specific equity risks are measarethe basis of a historical VaR with full valuatio
based on 300 scenarios.

» The spread risk and the inflation risk are measwiada historical approach, applying 300 observed
variations on the sensitivities.

Since the end of 2011, Belfius Bank has computBttessed Value-at-Risk%*VaR") on top of its regular VaR,
which also enters into the computation of weightistts for Market Risk. This S-VaR measure consgfts
calculating a historical VaR based on a 12 consexuhonths observation period which generates ahgekt
negative impacts in the bank’s current portfolidioancial instruments.
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3.1.3. Operational risk

Belfius Bank defines “operational risk” as the rigifinancial or non-financial impact resulting fnanadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systemsfroon external events. The definition includes dieg
reputational and strategic risk but excludes expefiom commercial decisions.

The framework on the management of operationalaidgelfius Bank is in place and is based on tlecjples
mentioned in the “principles for the sound managenoé operational risk” (Bank for International 8eents,
June 2011).

The governance structure is based on a first Esponsibility by the business management and anddawe
responsibility by the operational risk managemeagiadtment, who defines the methodological prinsipléhere
is a clear separation of duties between both lines.

The operational risk management includes the dadlemf operational events (loss data), the orgdita of
yearly risk and control self-assessments, as wethe performance of scenario analysis, the caecf
insurance claims and the yearly review of the iasge policies, advice on operational risk topicspadination

of the fraud management at Belfius Bank, the degraknt and testing of business continuity plans
and performance of business impact analysis, & arianagement programme, the management of infamat
risk. All activities of Belfius Bank are covered the current framework

3.1.4. Liquidity Risk
The liquidity risk at Belfius Bank is mainly stemmgj from:

e The variability of the amounts of commercial funglinollected from Retail and Private customers,
small, medium-sized and large companies, public eindlar customers and the way these funds are
allocated to customers through all type of loans;

« the volatility of the collateral that is to be dspged at counterparties as part of the credit stppo
agreement framework for derivatives and repo tretitsas (soealled cash & securities collateral);

« the value of the liquidity reserves by virtue ofigl Belfius Bank can collect funding on the repo
market and/ofrom the ECB;

e the capacity to obtain interbank and instituticitalding.

Liquidity and Capital Management(CM ), a division situated within the scope of the €hrinancial Officer
(“CFQO"), is the front-line manager for the liquidity arwhpital requirements of Belfius Bank. It identsje
analyses and reports on current and future liguigdsitions and risks, and defines and coordinfiading
plans and actions under the operational respoitgilol the CFO and under the general responsibdityhe
Management Board. The CFO also bears final operaticesponsibility for managing the interest rask r
contained in the banking balance sheet via thetfessa Liability Management ALM ") department and the
Asset and Liability Committee ALC0"), meaning that total balance sheet managemest Wehin its
operational responsibility.

LCM organises a weekly Liquidity Management Comedtt('.MC "), in presence of the CFO, the Risk
Department, the Treasury Department of the FindrMderkets and the Retail & Commercial and Public &
Corporate Business lines. This committee implem#r@siecisions taken by LCM in relation to obtainshort-
term and long-term funding on the institutional ke&s and through the commercial franchise.

LCM also monitors the funding plan to guarantee Belfius Bank will continue to comply with its ietnal and
regulatory liquidity ratios.

LCM reports on a daily and weekly basis to the Mpgament Board about Belfius Bank’s liquidity situpeti

Pagel8 of 96



Second-line controls for monitoring the liquiditgk are performed by the Risk department, whicluessthat
the reports published are accurate, challengeethed hypothesis and models, realises simulaven stress
situations and oversees compliance with limitdaasdown in the Liquidity Guideline.

3.1.5. Competition

Belfius Bank faces strong competition across allnitarkets from local and international financiatitutions
including banks, life insurance companies and mutigarance organisations. While Belfius Bank badit is
positioned to compete effectively with these coritped, there can be no assurance that increasegetition
will not adversely affect Belfius Bank’s pricing lpry and lead to losing market share in one or rmeekets in
which it operates.

Competition is also affected by other factors sashchanges in consumer demand and regulatory action
Moreover competition can increase as a resulttefmet and mobile technologies changing customieavieur,

the rise of mobile banking and the threat of bagkinsiness being developed by non-financial congsarall

of which may reduce the profits of the credit ington.

3.1.6. Increased and changing regulation of the &incial services industry could have an adverse
effect on Belfius Bank’s operations

As is the case for all credit institutions, BelfiBank’s business activities are subject to subistarggulation
and regulatory oversight in the jurisdictions inig¥hit operates, mainly in Belgium.

Recent developments in the global markets havedexrh increased involvement of various governmesal
regulatory authorities in the financial sector andthe operations of financial institutions. In peular,
governmental and regulatory authorities in Franttee United Kingdom, the United States, Belgium,
Luxembourg and elsewhere have, as a result, prowadilitional capital and funding requirements aasieh
introduced and may, in the future, be introducingignificantly more restrictive regulatory enviroant,
including new accounting and capital adequacy rulestrictions on termination payments for key paersl
and new regulation of derivative instruments. Qotrmregulation, together with future regulatory depenents,
could have an adverse effect on how Belfius Bamidaots its business and on the results of its dpesa

The recent global economic downturn has resultesiignificant changes to regulatory regimes. Therestbeen
significant regulatory developments in responsehi® global crisis, including the stress test exercto-
ordinated by the Committee of European Banking 8udgers in co-operation with the European CentrahiB
(the “ECB"), liquidity risk assessments and the adoptioraafiew regulatory framework. The most relevant
areas of regulation include the following:

. The requirements under Basel 1l have been impfeatkin the European Union through the adoption
of (i) Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parlemhand of the Council of 26 June 2013 on acceskeo
activity of credit institutions on prudential reqeinents for credit institutions and investment 8r(hCRD")

and (ii) Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the EurapeParliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on
prudential requirements for credit institutions a@ndestment firms (CRR” and together with CRD,CRD
V).

. The European Parliament and the Council of the gean Union adopted on respectively 15 April
2014 and 6 May 2014 Directive 2014/59/EU of the dpean Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014
establishing a framework for the recovery and ngsmh of credit institutions and investment firmada
amending Council Directive 82/891/EEC, and Direeti\2001/24/EC, 2002/47/EC, 2004/25/EC, 2005/56/EC,
2007/36/EC, 2011/35/EU, 2012/30/EU and 2013/36/Bbd Regulations (EU) No 1093/2010 and (EU) No
648/2012, of the European Parliament and of then€ib(the ‘Bank Recovery and Resolution Directivé or
“BRRD”). The aim of the BRRD is to provide supervisomnydaresolution authorities, including the resolution
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college of the NBB within the meaning of Articlet2d of the Law of 22 February 1998 establishingdfganic
statute of the National Bank of Belgium, or anycassor body or authority of the resolution colléigeluding
the SRB (as defined below)) (th&ldtional Resolution Authority” and, together with the national resolution
authorities of other participating Member Statés tNRAS” ), with common tools and powers to address
banking crises pre-emptively in order to safegdarahcial stability and minimise taxpayers' exp@esto losses.
Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 of the European Pamiaimand of the Council of 15 July 2014 establishing
uniform rules and a uniform procedure for the reoh of credit institutions and certain investmérs in the
framework of a Single Resolution Mechanism and ragigi Resolution Fund entered into force on 19 Augus
2014. From that moment, a centralised power ofluéiso has been established and entrusted to thgleSi
Resolution Board (theSRB"). The SRB work in close cooperation with the NRAs

. As part of the so-called banking union, ti&irfigle Supervision Mechanisrhor “SSM’ was adopted

by Council Regulation (EU) No 1024/2013 of 15 Oapl2013 conferring specific tasks on the European
Central Bank concerning policies relating to thedamtial supervision of credit institutions. Undee SSM, the
European Central Bank (ECB) will assume certainesuipory responsibilities in relation to Belfius iia
which were previously handled by the NBB. The ECRByninterpret the applicable banking regulations, or
exercise discretions given to the regulator unterapplicable banking regulations, in a differernmer than
the NBB.

. On 25 April 2014, a new law on the status and sugien of credit institutions was adopted in
Belgium (i.e.Wet op het statuut van en het toezicht op kreditetilngen / Loi relative au statut et au contréle
des établissements de crédithe ‘Belgian Banking Law’). The Belgian Banking Law entered, subject to
certain exceptions (including in respect of itsoteon regime), into force on 7 May 2014.

Belfius Bank’s business and earnings are also taifieby fiscal and other policies that are adoptgdhe
various regulatory authorities of the European Wniforeign governments and international agenciés
nature and impact of future changes to such paliaie not predictable and are beyond Belfius Bactdgrol.

Belfius Bank conducts its business subject to angyoegulation and associated regulatory riskduitiog the
effects of changes in the laws, regulations, pedi@nd interpretations mainly in Belgium but alsdhie other
regions in which Belfius Bank does business. Chsrigesupervision and regulation, in particular ielddum,
could materially affect Belfius Bank’s business firoducts and services offered by it or the valuiés assets.

On 23 November 2016, the European Commission fhéaliswo proposals amendirigter alia, the CRR, the
CRD, the BRRD and the SRMR. These proposals ai(i) tocrease the resilience of European institigiand

enhancing financial stability, (ii) improve banktshding capacity to support the EU economy anil fiiiither

facilitate the role of banks in achieving deeped amore liquid EU capital markets to support theatim of a

Capital Markets Union. These proposals remain hewsubject to negotiation between the Member Statds
have been submitted to the European Parliamentoatié Council for consideration and adoption.

3.1.7. Belgian banking law

On 25 April 2014, a new law on the status and sapen of credit institutions was adopted in Belgiyi.e.
Wet op het statuut van en het toezicht op kreditdliingen / Loi relative au statut et au contréles
établissements de crédit) (the “Belgian Banking Dawhe Belgian Banking Law entered, subject totaier
exceptions at that time (including in respect sfrésolution regime), into force on 7 May 2014.

The Belgian Banking Law is based on the existirgutatory framework and implements into Belgian l@w
the CRD, as furter explained in paragraplE8ective capital management and capital adequaay laquidity
requirements below, and (ii) the BRRD, as further explainedsiction 3.1.9Kuropean Resolution Regijne
below.
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The Belgian Banking Law, however, has an impactt thaes beyond the mere transposition of the
aforementioned CRD and BRRD. This is, in particulaut not solely, due to (i) the increased reguiato
attention to, and regulation of, corporate govecea(including executive compensation), (ii) the chder
strategic decisions to be pre-approved by the atguland (iii) the prohibition (subject to limitecceptions) of
proprietary trading. In respect of the last posimice introduction, thisprohibition did not havenaterial impact
on the business of Belfius Bank as it is currebiiyng conducted. The BRRD has been fully transpased
Belgian law in 2015.

In addition, the Lead Regulator’ (means the NBB, ECB or any successor entity primaesponsible for the
prudential supervision of the Issuer.) will needpte-approve any strategic decision of any Beldiaancial
institution subject to the Belgian Banking Law (inding the Issuer, and regardless of it being sy&tally
important or not). For these purposes, strategiiss include decisions having significance ietato each
investment, disinvestment, participation or strat@goperation agreement of the financial insténtiincluding
decisions regarding the acquisition of anotheritumson, the establishment of another institutiame
incorporation of a joint venture, the establishmierdnother country, the conclusion of cooperaigreement,
the contribution of or the acquisition of a bramdhactivities, a merger or a demerger. The LeadulRegr will
have the benefit of extensive discretionary powehis area.

It should be noted that (i) certain elements of Bledgian Banking Law require further detailed measuo be
taken by other authorities, in particular the NiagiloBank of Belgium, (i) certain elements of thel§an
Banking Law will be influenced by further regulai® (including through technical standards) takemoobe
taken at European level, and (iii) the applicatiérihe Belgian Banking Law may be influenced by theent
assumption by the European Central Bank of cedapervisory responsibilities which were previouséndled
by the National Bank of Belgium and, in general,tbg allocation of responsibilities between the dpean
Central Bank and the National Bank of Belgium.

Finally, it should be noted that certain of the &ean initiatives (in particular the prohibition proprietary
trading) to be transposed into Belgian law purstathe Belgian Banking Law are still in draft farer subject
to political discussion, at the European level. Mthihe Belgian Banking Law contains powers to \alline
government to conform the Belgian Banking Law tuelepments at a European level in certain areasittr a
royal decree, it cannot be ruled out that theré lvéldifferences between the regulatory regime pifgated by
the relevant European directives and the regulatiyme of the Belgian Banking Law.

3.1.8. Effective Capital Management and capital agdecy and liquidity requirements

Effective management of Belfius Bank’s capital iitical to its ability to operate its businesses, grow
organically and to pursue its strategy of returrimgtandalone strength. Belfius Bank is requirgadgulators
in EU and other jurisdictions in which it undertakegulated activities to maintain adequate capésdurces.
The maintenance of adequate capital is also negefmaBelfius Bank's financial flexibility in theface of
continuing turbulence and uncertainty in the glasadnomy.

In December 2010, the Basel Committee on Bankinge8ision (the Basel Committe€) reached agreement
on comprehensive changes to the capital adequamefrork, known as Basel lll. A revised version a&8l 11|
was published in June 2011. The purpose was te thésresilience of the banking sector by increabioth the
quality and quantity of the regulatory capital basel enhancing the risk coverage of the capitahénsork.
Among other things, Basel Il introduced new elilifiip criteria for common equity Tier 1, Additiondlier 1
and Tier 2 capital instruments with a view to nagsthe quality of regulatory capital, and increatesl amount
of regulatory capital that institutions are reqdite hold. Basel 1l also requires institutiongmaintain a capital
conservation buffer above the minimum capital satiehich, if not maintained, results in certain talpi
distribution constraints being imposed on BelfiuanB. The capital conservation buffer, to be congutisf
common equity Tier 1 capital, would result in afeefive common equity Tier 1 capital requirement/gber
cent. of risk-weighted assets (i.e., its assetssteljl for their associated risks). In addition, @dH directs
national regulators to require certain institutis@smaintain a counter-cyclical capital buffer chgriperiods of
excessive credit growth. Basel Il further introdda leverage ratio for institutions as a backstegsure, to be
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applied from 2018 alongside current risk-based letgry capital requirements. The changes in Basedrk
contemplated to be phased in gradually betweenalgr2013 and January 2022. Basel Ill has beendoted
in the European Union through CRD IV.

CRD IV (consisting of CRD and CRR) applies sincéahuary 2014 and imposes a series of new requitsmen
many of which are being phased in over a numbeeafs. Certain portions of CRD have been transpivged
Belgian law through the Belgian Banking Law andhaligh CRR applies directly in each Member StaiRRC
leaves a number of important interpretational issieebe resolved through binding technical starsjaatid
leaves certain other matters to the discretionatibnal regulators. In addition, the European CGarank may,
following the assumption of certain supervisorypa@ssibilities, interpret CRD IV, or exercise disive
accorded to the regulator under CRD IV (includimgians with respect to the treatment of assetstioéro
affiliates) in a different manner than the Natioigdnk of Belgium. To the extent that Belfius Banésh
estimated the indicative impact that CRD IV mayédawn the calculation of its risk-weighted assets eapital
ratios, such estimates are preliminary and suljeghcertainties and change.

Basel Ill and CRD IV change the capital adequacy &quidity requirements in Belgium and in other
jurisdictions. The application of, amongst othensreasingly stringent stress case scenarios byettalators
may (i) require Belfius Bank to raise additionapital resources (including common equity Tier 1diddnal
Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) by way of funthesuances of securities, and (ii) result in éxgTier 1 and
Tier 2 securities issued by Belfius Bank ceasingdont towards Belfius Bank’s regulatory capitéther at the
same level as present or at all. The requiremerdise additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital coudié a number
of negative consequences for Belfius Bank. If BalfBank is unable to raise the requisite capitahay be
required to further reduce the amount of its weddhisks.

The Phased In Common Equity Tier 1 capital rati@TCL ratio) stood at 15.7% at the end of June 2016,
compared to 15.9% at the end of 2015, and the Fuded Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (CETalia)
stood at 15.2% at the end of June 2016, compar2d.896 at the end of 2015. With the applicationthef 2016
grandfathering rules, the CET 1 ratio pro formatfer end of 2015 would have amounted to 15.6% coadpa

the CET 1 ratio of 15.9% as reported for the engQdf5.

The CET 1-ratio (Phased In) stood at 16.3% at 3@ A017. The CET-1 ratio (Fully Loaded) was 16.1%®
June 2017. The total capital ratio (Phased In) artezlito 19.1% at the end 30 June 2017. The topifataatio
(Fully Loaded) amounted to 18.5% at the end 30 20§'.

End June 2017, the Belfius leverage ratio Phasedlased on the current CRR/CRD |V legislationoodtat
5.4%, the leverage ratio Fully Loaded stood at 5.3%

The tier 1 capital ratio (ratio of the amount artil capital compared to the risk-weighted assketheobank)
can give an indication of the strength of a barkery the fact that tier 1 capital is the first laye absorb losses
in times of financial distress.

Any change that limits Belfius Bank’s ability to mege effectively its balance sheet and capitaluress going
forward (including, for example, reductions in pr®fand retained earnings as a result of impairsnand
increases in weighted risks) or to access fundogces could have a material adverse impact ofinascial
condition and regulatory capital position or resula loss of value in the Warrants.

3.1.9. European resolution regime

The BRRD grants powers to resolution authoritiest include (but are not limited to) the introdoatiof a
statutory “write-down and conversion power” in t@a to Tier 1 capital instruments and Tier 2 cabit
instruments and a “bail-in” power in relation tagéble liabilities (as defined in BRRD) and capitastruments.
These powers allow the Lead Regulator to cancebralk portion of the principal amount of, or intgren,
certain unsecured liabilities of an institution frdto convert certain debt claims into anotherusiég
including ordinary shares of Belfius Bank or anyest surviving group entity, if any. The “write dovand
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conversion” and “bail-in” powers are part of a hiea set of resolution powers provided to the ragwhu
authorities under the BRRD in relation to distrelsseedit institutions and investment firms. Thessotution
powers include the ability for the resolution autties to force, in certain circumstance of distrethe sale of
credit institution’s business or its critical fuimts, the separation of assets, the replacemesuhstitution of
the credit institution as obligor in respect of tetstruments, modifications to the terms of deistiuments
(including amending the maturity date, any intenesyment date or the amount of interest payabldoand
imposing a temporary suspension of payments) ardidosontinue the listing and admission to tradifiglebt
instruments issued by the credit institution.

The Resolution Authority must write down or conveit Tier 1 capital instruments and Tier 2 capital
instruments at the institution's or group’s poiftnon-viability (i.e., the point at which the rebevt authority
determines that the institution or group meet teditions for resolution or would cease to be \@aplithin the
meaning of Article 251 of the Belgian Banking Laif)those capital instruments were not written doam
converted). In addition, all Tier 1 capital instremts and the Tier 2 capital instruments must b&ewmidown or
converted before, or at least together with, theliegtion of any resolution tool (including the egise of the
bail-in powers).

The Phased In Common Equity Tier 1 capital rati@TCL ratio) stood at 15.7% at the end of June 2016,
compared to 15.9% at the end of 2015, and the Fuwded Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (CETalia)
stood at 15.2% at the end of June 2016, compar#d.896 at the end of 2015. With the applicationthef 2016
grandfathering rules, the CET 1 ratio pro formatfar end of 2015 would have amounted to 15.6% coeaip

the CET 1 ratio of 15.9% as reported for the eng(df5.

The CET 1-ratio (Phased In) stood at 16.3% at 3@ A017. The CET-1 ratio (Fully Loaded) was 16.1%®&
June 2017. The total capital ratio (Phased In) artezlito 19.1% at the end 30 June 2017. The topifataatio
(Fully Loaded) amounted to 18.5% at the end 30 20§'.

End June 2017, the Belfius leverage ratio Phasedlased on the current CRR/CRD |V legislationoodtat
5.4%, the leverage ratio Fully Loaded stood at 5.3%

The tier 1 capital ratio (ratio of the amount artil capital compared to the risk-weighted assketheobank)
can give an indication of the strength of a barkery the fact that tier 1 capital is the first laye absorb losses
in times of financial distress.

As some of the requirements are subject to fuiithetementation, it is not yet possible to assesdull impact
of the BRRD or the Banking Law on Belfius Bank amml holders of its securities. Furthermore, thevaaié
regulator has not yet established the minimum requént of own funds and eligible liabilities (MREEQr
Belfius Bank (expected Q1/2018).

All the mandatory information pursuant to the detic431 CRR is disclosed in our Annual Report aathiS
Annual Report, available on Belfius Bank’s website:

https://www.belfius.com/EN/results/index.aspx

https://www.belfius.com/EN/reports/index.aspx

3.1.10. Belgian bank recovery and resolution regime

Under the Belgian bank recovery and resolutionmegithe supervisory and resolution authorities,adnle to
take a number of measures in respect of any chesfitution they supervise if deficiencies in suctedit
institution's operations are not remedied. Suchsures include: the appointment of a special conioriss
whose consent is required for all or some of the decisions taken by all the institution's corporate bodies; the
imposition of additional requirements in terms ofvency, liquidity, risk concentration and the inggimn of
other limitations; requesting limitations on variable remuneration; the complete or partial suspension or
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prohibition of the institution's activities; the requirement to transfer all or part of the institution's participations
in other companies; replacing the institution's directors or managers; and revocation of the institution's licence,
the right to impose the reservation of distribugapiofits, or the suspension of dividend distribng or interest
payments to holders of Additional Tier 1 capitatiuments.

Furthermore, the Lead Regulator can impose spetifasures on an important financial institutiorci(iding
the Issuer, and whether systemic or not) when thadLRegulator is of the opinion that (a) such faian
institution has an unsuitable risk profile or (bgtpolicy of the financial institution can have egative impact
on the stability of the financial system.

The Belgian Banking Law allows the Resolution Authoto take resolution actions (in which respeldgse
see section 3.1.F(ropean Resolution Regijnabove). Such powers include the power to (i)ditbe sale of
the relevant financial institution or the wholepart of its business on commercial terms withoguneng the
consent of the shareholders or complying with ptacal requirements that would otherwise apply, t(@nsfer
all or part of the business of the relevant finahaistitution to a “bridge institution” (an entigreated for that
purpose which is wholly or partially in public coolf), (iii) separate assets by transferring impaioe problem
assets to a bridge institution or one or more assgtagement vehicles to allow them to be managéu avi
view to maximising their value through eventuaksail orderly wind-down.

In addition, since 1 January 2016, the Belgian Bamk aw provides a "bail in" power to the Resoluatio
Authority. Such bail-in power allows the Resolutidathority to write down or convert into shares ather
proprietary instruments all or part of a credittingion's eligible liabilities in order to (i) repitalise the credit
institution to the extent it is sufficient to restoits ability to comply with its licensing conditis and to
continue to carry out the activities for which st licensed and to sustain sufficient market comftgein the
institution, or (ii) convert or reduce the prindiamount of debt instruments that are transferced bridge
institution with a view to providing capital for ah bridge institution or as part of a sale of thesibess or
transfer of assets.

For the purpose of the Resolution Authority's fi@ipowers, credit institutions (including BelfiusBk) must at
all times meet a minimum requirement for own fuadsl eligible liabilities. This minimum requiremeastan
amount of own funds and eligible liabilities, exgged as a percentage of the credit institutiotes liabilities
and own funds. The draft technical standards orcitteria for determining the minimum requiremeat dwn
funds and eligible liabilities do not provide détadn the implications of a failure by an institrtito comply
with its minimum requirement for own funds and #ilg liabilities under the Directive 2014/59/EU tife
European Parliament and of the Council, establgshim EU-wide framework for the recovery and resofubf
credit institutions and investment firms, as seddgordance with Article 45 of such Directive (emsposed in
article 459 of the Belgian Banking Law) and Comnads®Delegated Regulation (C(2016) 2976 final) of\28y
2016, or any successor requirememMIREL "). However, if the approach set out by the Finah8tability
Board in respect of the Total Loss-Absorbing Caya€iTLAC ") for G-SIBs (all institutions included in
thelist of systemically important banki adopted in respect of MREL, then there is a ipdiyg that a failure
by an institution to comply with MREL could be tted in the same manner as a failure to meet minimum
regulatory capital requirements. Accordingly, duia by the Issuer to comply with its MREL requirem may
have a material adverse effect on the Issuer'snbssi financial conditions and results of operatidfor the
time being, Belfius Bank is not a G-SIB as defingdier the FSB TLAC term Sheet and is thereforeeculy
not subject to the FSB TLAC Term She&he TLAC requirements are a global standard forimmiim amounts
of loss absorbency capacity to be held by G-SIB& TLAC are amounts to be held in addition to tlpi€l
Adequacy Ration requirements, by G-SIBs.

Any bail-in of eligible liabilities will only occusafter, or at the same time as, the write-downamversion of
the Subordinated Debt by the Resolution Authori®nly where the exercise of these write-down and
conversion powers is insufficient to meet the regpients of Article 267/6 of the Belgian Banking Laill the
Resolution Authority exercise its bail-in powers @y writing-down or converting the principal amduof
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subordinated debts that do not constitute Tier Tier 2 capital instruments and (ii) to the extsath write-
down or conversion is insufficient, the principah@unt of the remaining eligible liabilities (eadmé taking
into account the priority of claims in insolvenayppeedings).

Based on recent disclosure in MREL published by SB#fius has calculated that its mechanical tavgaild
potentially amount to 24.5% of risk exposure inyfubaded format. Including the Market Confidencbatye
(as defined below on page 49), Belfius mechanargiet would potentially amount to 27.25%.

The “write-down and conversion power” (see parpr8.1.9 European resolution regimeabove) has also
been transposed in the Belgian Banking Law.

Subject to certain exceptions, as soon as anyesktiproceedings (included bail-in) have been teitidby the
Resolution Authority, the relevant counterpartiésuch credit institution would not be entitledinwoke events
of default or set off their claims against the d@réuktitution. The Belgian Banking Law confirmsathpowers
described above will not affect the financial cw@lal arrangements (including close-out netting agyb-
transactions) subject to the Belgian law of 14 Delser 2004 on financial collateral (transposing Blines
2002/47/EC in Belgian law), although the mere fét a recovery or resolution measure is takenhay t
Resolution Authority may not cause an event of déefgive rise to any close-out or enforcementexfusity to
the extent that the essential provisions of theement remain respected. In addition the proteafdimancial
collateral arrangements provided for by the Beldsamking Law is slightly broader than the regime @4 in
the BRRD (with the latter containing certain exéeps to the protection of such arrangements toetttent
deposits that may be repayable by a deposit geastheme are part of such arrangements) and as a
consequence the Belgian Banking Law may need smiended to provide for the same exceptions.

As indicated above, under the Belgian Banking Lthw,powers of the supervisory and resolution aitibsrare
significantly expanded. Implementation by the sujgary and/or resolution authorities of any of theowers
of intervention could have an adverse effect onriterests of the Warrant Holders.

3.1.11. Business conditions and the general economy

The Issuer’s profitability could be adversely aféet by a worsening of general economic conditions
domestically, globally or in certain individual nkats such as Belgium. Factors such as intere, riaiftation,
investor sentiment, the availability and cost d@dit, the liquidity of the global financial markedasd the level
and volatility of equity prices could significantffect the activity level of customers. For exaepl

. An economic downturn or significantly higher intsteates could adversely affect the credit
quality of Belfius Bank’s on-balance sheet and lfance sheet assets by increasing the risk tlgpeater
number of Belfius Bank’s customers would be unable to meet their obligations;

. A continued market downturn or further worseningtioé economy could cause Belfius
Bank to incur mark-tanarket losses in some of its portfolios; and

. A continued market downturn would be likely to letal a decline in the volume of
transactions that Belfius Bank executes for itstammers and, therefore, lead to a decline in therme it
receives from fees and commissions and interest.

All of the above could in turn affect Belfius Basldbility to meet its payment obligations under\tfearants.

3.1.12. Current market conditions and recent dey@irents

Thanks to the strengthening economic growth througtEurope and the pick up in international traithe,
general economic momentum hasen rather solid and kept on building during tist fhalf of 2017. The
Belgian economy benefitted from this improved intional environment and the performance of ouneoty
gradually improved in the first half of 2017 withrogvth rates for the first quarter above expectation
Fundamentally the Belgian economy showed markecdissigf improvement in the job market where
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unemployment decreased significantly in all regiarsd where jobs in the private sector were created.
Confidence, both with consumers as within busirgsstayed at its highest values since a coupleeafsy
supporting both residential and corporate investmemhe ECB also continued its policy of monetary
accommodation, though it lowered the amount ofmitsthly bond purchases by 20%. The tendency ferdst
rates to decline seems to have ended and yieldsaised mildly since the beginning of the year.

The gradual improvement of the economic situati®rbased on a combination of different factors toat
currently expected to prevail for the whole yeaP017:

Pick up in international trade : The reduction o Chinese excess production capacity stopped the
downward pressure on international goods priceaticig room for increases in corporate profits in
the US, the euro zone and Belgium. This then sted international trade and corporate
investment.

Gradual recovery of the euro zone economy and dbdnflation : The euro zone economy
continued on its way towards more growth. This @strstrongly seen in the steady and generalised
decrease in unemployment, supporting growth in wonmion. The stronger employment is however
not yet strong enough to induce important increasesages. This subdued wage growth supports
the competitive position of the euro zone, Belgineiuded. However on the negative side it implies
that growth via consumption remains moderate aatlittilation remains below the target set by the
European Central Bank. Moreover oil prices droppgdin exerting a downward pressure on the
headline inflation number.

ECB policy : As announced in December 2016, theopean Central Bank lowered the amount of
its monthly purchases of bonds in April. It alsealy acknowledged the general improvement in the
euro zone economy and stated that the danger laitidefis no longer present. These more positive
messages resulted in financial markets believingt the ECB will announce an end of the

Quantitative Easing program sometime during theseédhalf of 2017. As a result long term interest
rates rose and the curve steepened, though thiedetiee 10 year interest rates stayed below 1% for
the core members of the euro zone.

Waning of political risks : The outcome of the Kgtive elections in France and the Netherlands
was positive for the existence of the euro zoneh wuro-sceptic parties losing the elections. This
reduced distrust with respect to the euro permitpckads to come in again. The economy is
expected to perform along the same lines in thersédalf of the year. However risks to the
downside are still present: the outcome of the Brergotiations is still unclear, though the
probability of a soft Brexit has considerably increased since the beginning of the year; the new US
administration is likely to pursue a more protecisd and less collaborative economic policy and the
Italian bank sector still suffers from a high ambahnon performing loans.

On 23 June 2016, in a referendum the UK expredsedish to leave the European Union. This outcoras w
unexpected by the financial markets and led tangtreclines in the stock markets as well as a degiren of

the euro and especially the sterling against thedol&r. Due to the rush of investors to high quyatissets,
interest rates also fell. The 10-year German bumsh decame negative and traded at approximatelyppsaat

the end of June. How the exit from the Europeanobniill work out, in which time frame, and which
economic sectors will be impacted, is for the tilmeing unknown. This again increases uncertainty and

volatility.

The UK is also one of Belgium’s most important estpoarkets. According to the National Bank of Bali
business with the UK represents approximately EURlI®n of added value. What effect the Brexit nizgve
on these trade relations is currently unknown.

The credit risk exposure of Belfius counterpartiethe United Kingdom amounted to EUR 11.8 billioy the
end of June 2017. About half of this credit riskpesure concerns bonds, of which two-third are fidta
linked, issued by utilities and infrastructure ca@mjgs in the United Kingdom that operate in regdatectors
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such as water and electricity distribution. Thesads are of satisfactory credit quality (97% investt grade),
and moreover the majority of the outstanding boars covered with a credit protection issued by editr
insurer that is independent from the bond issuée Temainder concerns the bond portfolio of Belfius
Insurance, a short-term credit portfolio for tragsmanagement of Belfius Bank and receivables earaig
houses. The credit risks on those portfolios ase af satisfactory credit quality.

3.1.13. Uncertain economic conditions

Belfius Bank’s business activities are dependentherlevel of banking, finance and financial seegicequired
by its customers. In particular, levels of borrowing are heavily dependent on customer confidence; the state of

the economies Belfius Bank does business in, manketest rates and other factors that affect ttenemy.

Also, the market for debt securities issued by kaskinfluenced by economic and market conditiomd, &o

varying degrees, market conditions, interest raesency exchange rates and inflation rates ieroHuropean
and other countries. There can be no assuranceuhant events in Europe or elsewhere will notseamarket
volatility or that such volatility will not advergeaffect the price of the Warrants or that ecormimd market
conditions will not have any other adverse effébe profitability of Belfius Bank’s businesses ayuherefore,
be adversely affected by a worsening of generah@mic conditions in its markets, as well as by igmeand

domestic trading market conditions and/or relatetdrs, including governmental policies and inities. An

economic downturn or significantly higher interestes could increase the risk that a greater numibBelfius

Bank’s customers would default on their loans dreotobligations to Belfius Bank, or would refrairom

seeking additional borrowing. As Belfius Bank cumthg conducts the majority of its business in Belgj its

performance is influenced by the level and cyclicature of business activity in this country, whishn turn

affected by both domestic and international ecowoamd political events. There can be no assurdmeat
lasting weakening in the Belgian economy will nelvé a material adverse effect on Belfius Bank'sirieit
results.

3.1.14. A downgrade in the credit rating

The rating agencies, Standard & Poor’s, Moody's Bitdh Ratings, or other rating agency if appliegahise
ratings to assess whether a potential borrower bdllable in the future to meet its credit committaeas
agreed. A major element in the rating for this jmsgis an appraisal of the company’s net assetandial
position and earnings performance. In addition,fiBelBank is wholly owned by the Belgian federadtst
through the Federal Holding and Investment Company it is possible that, if the ratings assignedhie
Belgian federal state were to be downgraded, tbatdcresult in the ratings assigned to Belfius Béekng
negatively affected. Moreover, as the ownershig bénk is one of the factors taken into accoudeitermining

a bank’s rating, a change of ownership of Belfi@gsB could have a potential impact on the ratingigasd to
Belfius Bank. A bank’s rating is an important comrgieve element in its competition with other banksalso
has a significant influence on the individual rgdnof the most important subsidiaries. A downgrgdin the
mere possibility of a downgrading of the ratingB#lfius Bank or one of its subsidiaries might haverse
effects on the relationship with customers and len gales of the products and services of the compan
question. In this way, new business could suffeglfiBs Bank’s competitiveness in the market miglket b
reduced, and its funding costs would increase auhistly. A downgrading of the rating would alsovea
adverse effects on the costs to Belfius Bank ofimgi equity and borrowed funds and might lead te ne
liabilities arising or to existing liabilities begncalled that are dependent upon a given ratinggoeiaintained.
It could also happen that, after a downgradingfiBelBank would have to provide additional collatefor
derivative transactions in connection with ratireséd collateral arrangements. If the rating of iBelBank
were to fall within the reach of the non-investmgraide category, it would suffer considerably. umi this
would have an adverse effect on Belfius Bank'sigttib be active in certain business areas.

3.1.15. Catastrophic events, terrorist attacks atter acts of war
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Catastrophic events, terrorist attacks, other attwar or hostility, and responses to those acty oraate
economic and political uncertainties, which coudtvén a negative impact on economic conditions irréiggons
in which Belfius Bank operates and, more specifjcain the business and results of operations ¢fflBeBank
in ways that cannot be predicted.

3.1.16. The proposed financial transactions tax (F)

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission phédlisa proposal (the “Commission’s Proposal”) for a
Directive for a common financial transactions téxe(“FTT”) in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greeceatbp
France, ltaly, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and 8loa (the “participating Member States”).

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scopecanid, if introduced, apply to certain dealingdimancial
instruments (including secondary market transasjidm certain circumstances. The issuance and gphien
of financial instruments should, however, be exempt

Under the Commission’s Proposal the FTT could applgertain circumstances to persons both withid an
outside of the participating Member States. Gehgrialwould apply to certain dealings in financiabtruments
where at least one party is a financial institutiand at least one party is established in a paatiog Member
State. A financial institution may be, or be deentede, “established” in a participating MembertStam a
broad range of circumstances, including (a) bysaating with a person established in a particigakitember
State or (b) where the financial instrument whiglsiibject to the dealings is issued in a particigatlember
State.

In December 2015, 10 of the original 11 Member &dtassued a statement setting out areas wherenagmee
had been reached as well as areas that were ifl. &Estonia has indicated that it no longer sugpitre
proposal.

The FTT proposal remains subject to negotiatiomben the participating Member States and the sobpay
such taxation is uncertain. Additional EU Membeat& may decide to participate.

Prospective investors are strongly advised to seakeir own professional advice in relation to
the FTT.

3.1.17. A substantial part of Belfius Bank’s assetiee encumbered

Like every credit institution, a non-negligible paf the Issuer’s assets are collateralised (bynmez an
outright pledge, repo transaction or otherwisee @mount of assets pledged is linked to the fundmagted by
external parties who demand collateral to mitightepotential risk on the Issuer.

Belfius Bank established in November 2012 a Belditmitgage Pandbrieven Programme and in October 2014
a Belgian Public Pandbrieven Programme. Both progras are licensed by the NBB and each can issue
Belgian pandbrieven for a maximum amount of EURD20,000,000. In accordance with the law of 3 August
2012 establishing a legal regime for Belgian cogidvends, the investors of pandbrieven benefit feoctual
recourse, being an unsecured claim against thegesstate of Belfius Bank and an exclusive clagaiast the
relevant special estate of Belfius Bank: one spexstate for the mortgage pandbrieven and anotpecial
estate for the public pandbrieven. However, thersvdrHolders may not exercise any rights againsitiarch

any assets of the special estates as they areeddsiar the holders of pandbrieven. A credit ingidn cannot
issue any further Belgian covered bonds if the arhafi cover assets exceeds 8 per cent. of thengsredit
institution’s total assets.

The special estate in relation to the Belgian Mage Pandbrieven Programme is mainly composed of
residential mortgage loans and the special estatelation to the Belgian Public Pandbrieven Progre is
mainly composed of loans to Belgian public sectdities. The value of the assets, contained inréhevant
special estate, need to be in proportion with theinal amount of issued pandbrieven under suchrpnoge
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(in accordance with applicable law and issue camth). Only pandbrieven investors and other creslitawhich
can be identified based on the pandbrieven issnditions, have a claim on the relevant specialtesta

Finally, it should be noted that the Belgian Bawgkibaw introduced (i) a general lien on movable &sse
(“algemeen voorrecht op roerende goederen”/"privigégénéral sur biens meublgsfor the benefit of the
deposit guarantee fund‘garantiefonds voor financiéle diensten”/"fonds dgarantie pour les services
financiers”) as well as (ii) a general lien on moveable asketshe benefit of natural persons and SMEs for
deposits exceeding EUR 100,000. These general ¢ietesed into force on 3 March 2015. Such genérakl|
could have an impact on the recourse that any WakHalders would have on the general estate ofigeBank

in the case of an insolvency as the claims whictefiefrom such general liens will rank ahead @& thaims of
the Warrant Holders.

3.1.18. Bail-in of senior debt and other eligibliabilities, including the Warrants

Given the entry into force of the bail-in regimlee tWarrant Holders may lose some or all of theiegtment as
a result of the exercise by the Resolution Autlyasftthe “bail-in” resolution tool.

Following the transposition of the BRRD bail-in g into Belgian law as of 1 January 2016, the Reism

Authority has the power to bail-in (i.e. write down convert) more subordinated debt, if any, andaedebt
(including contingent liabilities such as the Watts), after having written down or converted Tiecdpital
instruments and Tier 2 capital instruments. Théibgiower will enable the Resolution Authority tecapitalise
a failing institution by allocating losses to itkaseholders and unsecured creditors (includingWaerant
Holders) in a manner which is consistent with therdrchy of claims in an insolvency of a relevanahcial
institution. The bail-in power includes the powerdancel a liability or modify the terms of contisa¢or the
purposes of deferring the liabilities of the reletvinancial institution and the power to convettadility from

one form to another.

In summary (and subject to the implementing ruligsy, expected that the Resolution Authority viié able to
exercise its bail-in powers if the following (curatize) conditions are met:

(a) the determination that Belfius Bank is failing ar likely to fail has been made by the relevant
regulator, which means that one or more of the¥alhg circumstances are present:

(i) Belfius Bank infringes or there are objective elatsgo support a determination that
Belfius Bank will, in the near future, infringe thequirements for continuing authorisation
in a way that would justify the withdrawal of thethorisation by the competent authority,
including but not limited to because Belfius Bardshincurred or is likely to incur losses
that will deplete all or a significant amount of its own funds;

(i) the assets of Belfius Bank are or there are objectlements to support a
determination that the assets of Belfius Bank wmll,the near future, be less than its
liabilities;

(iii) Belfius Bank is or there are objective elementsstpport a determination that
Belfius Bank will, in the near future, be unablep@y its debts or other liabilities as they
fall due;

(iv) Belfius Bank requests extraordinary public finahsigpport,

(b) having regard to timing and other relevant circumses, there is no reasonable prospect that any
alternative private sector measures or superviseotion taken in respect of Belfius Bank would
prevent the failure of Belfius Bank within a reasonable timeframe; and

(c) aresolution action is necessary in the publicrege
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The BRRD specifies that governments will only bétked to use public money to rescue credit insitis if a
minimum of 8% of the own funds and total liabilgieave been written down, converted or bailed jrbpway
of derogation, if the contribution to loss absasptand recapitalisation is equal to an amount esg than 20%
of risk-weighted assets and certain additional d¢@rss are met.

Insolvency ranking in Belgium:

Warning: Belgian law is marked by a complex systefnstatutory liens based upon the Mortgage Act and
numerous other statutes creating specific classereditors, as well as security interests graftgdhe debtor
(mortgage, pledge, charge). Due to this complexesysconflicts of ranking between creditors oftaisa
Ranking agreements between secured creditors Adeavel common (just like subordination agreementte
other end of the hierarchy). Ranking amongst secwaed special lien creditors varies depending an th
modalities (composition of the estate, compositibthe liabilities, date, etc.) of the case. Aasequence, the
creditor hierarchy may vary from case to case. félew hierarchy is an indication and may not bestwred as

a universally valid ranking of creditors.

Common Equity Tier 1

Additional Tier 1

Tier 2 + other Subordinated Liabilities

Non Preferred Senior Unsecured Instruments
fore. 289/1 2° Belgion Bonking Low 25 April 2014

|
25/2, 27 Zelgion Conk: o 22 024

Other Preferred Senior Unsecured Liabilities

‘ Pan Passu

Derivatives ‘

Deposits Large Enterprises (>100,000 EUR)

Deposits SME and Physical Persons (>100,000 EUR)

Covered Deposits (<100,000 EUR)

Secured Liabilities

3.2. Risks related to the Warrants generally

3.2.1. Warning: Warrants may not be a suitable istment for all investors

Warrants involve a high degree of risk and investors must be prepared to sustain a total loss of the purchase
price of their Warrants. The occurrence of fluctuations or the non-occurrence of anticipated fluctuations in the
price of the Underlying Value will disproportionately affect the value of the Warrants and may lead to the
Warrants expiring worthless.

Purchasers of Warrants risk losing their entire investment if the Underlying Value does not perform as
anticipated. Further risks may include, among others, interest rate, foreign exchange, time value and political
risks. A Warrant is an asset which, other factors held constant, tends to decline in value over time and which
may become worthless when it expires. Prospective purchasers of Warrants should be experienced with respect
to options and option transactions, should understand the risks of transactions involving the relevant Warrants
and should reach an investment decision only after careful consideration, with their financial and tax advisers, of
the suitability of such Warrants in light of their particular financial circumstances.

The risk of the loss of some or all of the purchase price of a Warrant upon expiration means that, in order to
recover and realize a return upon his or her investment, a purchaser of a Warrant must generally be correct about
the direction, timing and magnitude of an anticipated change in the value of the share underlying the Warrants.
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Assuming all other factors are held constant, therema Warrant is ‘out-of-the-money’ and the shoiiter
remaining term to expiration, the greater the tlskt purchasers of such Warrants will lose all art pf their
investment.

In addition, investors should consider that themreton the investment in Warrants is reduced bycthgts in
connection with the purchase and exercise or $dleedNVarrants.

The Warrants do not entitle the Warrant Holderseteive a coupon payment or dividend yield andettoee do
not constitute a regular source of income. Possddses in connection with an investment in therdfdgs can
therefore not be compensated by other income frmm\arrants. Further to this, the investor beaesitk that
the financial situation of the Issuer declines that insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings aretiristl against
the Issuer - and that as a result the Issuer cdulffititits payment obligations under the Warrants

The Warrant has a leverage effect. This meansahgtvariation in the price of the Underlying Valigein
theory amplified. Therefore, the Warrants involvéiigh degree of risk. The leverage effect, means tie
investment of an amount in Warrants compared t@rectdinvestment of the same amount in the Undeglyi
Value may result in significantly higher gains lal$o in significantly higher losses. The (non-)acence of
anticipated fluctuations in the price of the Ungliery Value may disproportionately affect the valog
Warrants. Warrants may expire worthless if the Ulyileg Value does not perform as anticipated. It no
exercised in accordance with the Terms and Comditduring the Exercise Period, a Warrant will beeamid
and expire worthless. In order to recover and zeadi return upon its investment, a Warrant Holdastnbe
correct about the direction, timing and magnitutlaroanticipated change in the value of the Undeglyalue.
Warrant Holders should also consider that the retur the investment in Warrants is reduced by thetscin
connection with the purchase, exercise and/or shlhe Warrants. The loss born by the Warrant Holde
limited to the original premium paid to acquire Wearrants. Such premium is paid by the employeroyathe
employee who has accepted the offer of the Warr&mployees receive Warrants for no consideration.

A Warrant's leverage effect is determined by appiythe following formula:

(Leverage OP/OS x S/P)

where:

S = the price of the Underlying Value

P = the value of the Warrant

The ratiooP/0S, which is called the Delta of the Warrant, is tlegree to which the Warrant changes value
divided by the degree to which the Underlying Vatlenges valuedP/0S is not a constant, and the ratio
changes throughout the term of the Warrant.

As and when the leverage effect approaches 1, aaWabehaves more and more like the Underlying &¥alu
and the risk associated with the Warrant is theeefdmost the same as the risk associated witiniegathat
Underlying Value. The above formula reveals tha ltverage tends towards 1 if the Delta of the afsyr
oPI6S, and S/P tend towards 1. Both ratios move towams and when, among other things, the Warrae's t
gets longer and therefore the Warrant's initialetivalue rises.

The Warrants issued by Belfius Bank have a lonmiérhe unavoidable consequence of this is thatritial
leverage effect of the Warrant is signifcantly tegithan 1. That also remains so for a large pathefifetime

of the Warrant.

3.2.2. The influence of trading or hedging transaans of the Issuer on the Warrants

The Issuer may in the course of its normal busirediity engage in trading in the Underlying Valda
addition, the Issuer may conclude transactionsrdemoto hedge itself partially or completely agaithe risks
associated with the issue of the Warrants. Thegeitaes of the Issuer may have an influence on rierket
price of the Warrants. A possibly negative impalcthe conclusion or dissolution of these transangtion the
value of the Warrants cannot be excluded.

3.2.3. Hedging against the market risk
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Due to fluctuating supply and demand for the Wassathere is no assurance that their value wilietate with
movements of the Underlying Value. Prospective pasers intending to purchase Warrants to hedgestgaie
market risk associated with investing in the Unglag Value should recognize the complexities ofizitig

Warrants in this manner. For example, the valuthef\Warrants may not exactly correlate with theugadf the
Underlying Value.

3.2.4. Adjustments

In relation to the terms and conditions of the \&ats, events relating to the Underlying Value magghabout
adjustments to such terms and conditions which mey from those made by the organized derivatives
markets.

3.2.5. Liquidity Risk

There is no assurance that an active trading méoké#he Warrants will develop. Neither is it pddeito predict
the price at which Warrants will trade in the setamy market or whether such market will be liquidliquid.

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, list Warsaoih an Exchange or MTF. No application is madkstahe
Warrants on an Exchange.

The Warrants can be freely transferred to any tpady, except that (i) they may not be offeredd sor
delivered within the United States of America, utihg its territories and possessions, or to Ue8sgns, and
(ii) that they may not be transferred by a Wartdalder to its employer.

3.2.6. Potential conflicts of interest

The Issuer may also engage in trading activitieslfding hedging activities) related to the UndiexdyValue
and other instruments or derivative products basedr related to the Underlying Value for its priefery
account or for other account under its managenidrg. Issuer may also issue other derivative instnisnan
respect of the Underlying Value. The Issuer mayp alst as underwriter in connection with future offgs of
the Underlying Value or other securities relatedthie Underlying Value or may act as financial adwito
certain companies or in a commercial banking capdor certain companies. Such activities couldspre
certain conflicts of interest, could influence fivices of the Underlying Value or other securitieferring to the
Underlying Value and could adversely affect theugabf such Warrants. In case the Calculation Agéould
make determinations and calculations in respethefWarrants, the Calculation Agent shall act htimles in
good faith and a commercially reasonable manneémaiunecessarily in the interest of the Warraniddo

3.2.7. Post-issuance information

The relevant Final Terms may specify that the ratéussuer will not provide post-issuance informoatin
relation to the Underlying Value. In such an evémigstors will not be entitled to obtain such mmf@tion from
the relevant Issuer.

3.2.8. Change of law

The Terms and Conditions of the Warrants are, sathe extent referred to therein, based on Beltaanin

effect as at the date of issue of the relevant &gt No assurance can be given as to the impaatyopossible
judicial decision or change to Belgian law or adstimative practice after the date of issue of thkwvant
Warrants.

In addition, any relevant tax law or practice apgllile as at the date of this Base Prospectus athd/atate of
purchase or subscription of the Warrants may chatgay time (including during any subscriptionipéror

the Exercise Period of the Warrants). Any such geamay have an adverse effect on a Warrant Holder,
including that (i) the Warrants may be cancelletbieetheir Maturity Date due to whatsoever chanfjéaw
resulting in the Issuer no longer being legallyittadt to execute its obligations arising from tHiase
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Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms, (ii) theidity of the Warrants may decrease, and/or (hig tax
treatment of amounts payable or receivable by cartaffected Warrant Holder may be less than otiserw
expected by such Warrant Holder.

3.2.9. Legal investment considerations may restdettain investments

The investment activities of certain investors awmbject to investment laws and regulations, oren@vbr
regulation by certain authorities. Each potentisdestor should consult its legal advisers to deirsemnvhether
and to what extent Warrants are legal investmemtg.f

4. CHOICES MADE BY THE ISSUER

According to article 5(4) of Directive 2003/71/E@e Issuer has chosen to issue Warrants under & bas
prospectus. The specific terms of each Trancheheilset forth in the applicable Final Terms. Iniidd, the
Issuer chooses as its home Member State the Kingdid@algium.

The Issuer has freely defined the order in theegrdion of the required items included in the scites and
building blocks of the Commission Regulation (ECB®9/2004 of 29 April 2004 implementing Directive
2003/71/EC as regards information contained ing@otises as well as the format, incorporation greace
and publication of such prospectuses and disseinmatf advertisements (herein referred to as “Ratiprh
(EC) 809/2004") according to which this Base Prosgge is drawn up. The chosen presentation is a
consequence of the combination of Annex IV, Anndk ahd Annex XIV of Regulation (EC) 809/2004. In
order to enable the Warrant Holders to identifythie presentation below the corresponding provisiohs
Regulation (EC) 809/2004, cross-references wilhizgle to the relevant annexes of Regulation (EC)j280821
and their subsections. Finally, any items which rdii require, in their absence, an appropriate negat
statement according to Regulation (EC) 809/2004, rant included in the presentation when the Isssers
determine.

5. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

(Annex IV.1 and XII.1 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

Belfius Bank SA/NV, with registered office at 10@Yussels, Boulevard Pachéco 44, Belgium, as Issuer,
accepts responsibility for the information giventire Base Prospectus. Having taken all reasonatke to
ensure that such is the case, the information gwdan this Base Prospectus is, to the best dnitavledge, in
accordance with the facts and contains no omidsgiely to affect its import.

6. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY
REFERENCE

This Base Prospectus should be read and constrwghjunction with:

(a) the audited consolidated accounts of Belfius Bamkthe years ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2016, including the reports of the stayutuditors in respect thereof, as well as the
unaudited half-yearly report for the period endiB June 2017 (the Half-Yearly Report

Page33 of 96



2017)(available on https://www.belfius.com/EN/results/index.a3pxwhich are incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus; and

(b) the prospectus of the Underlying Value, includihg annual accounts thereof for the year ended 31

December 2016 and the relevant report of the siatuauditors in this respect (available on
https://www.candriam.be/en/private/fund-details/l020144939, which are incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus.

Such documents shall be incorporated in and form p&this Base Prospectus, save that any statement

contained in a document which is incorporated Hgresmce herein shall be modified or supersededHer
purpose of this Base Prospectus to the extentatstbitement contained herein modifies or supersedes
earlier statement (whether expressly, by implicatio otherwise). Any statement so modified or sapded
shall not, except as so modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Base Prospectus;

Copies of all documents incorporated by referenddis Base Prospectus may be obtained withougehfaom
the offices of Belfius Bank and on its websitét|fs://www.belfius.bg/

The tables below set out the relevant page refesefar: the (i) consolidated balance sheet, (insctidated
statement of income, (iii) consolidated cash fldatesment, (iv) audit report on the consolidatedoaots, (v)
notes to the consolidated financial statements, fein-consolidated balance sheet, (vii) non-codstdid
statement of income, and (viii) audit report on tiem-consolidated accounts of Belfius Bank as sétirothe
2015 and 2016 Annual Reports of Belfius Bank.

Information contained in the documents incorpordtgdreference other than information listed in thble
below is for information purposes only, and doesfaom part of this Base Prospectus.

The consolidated balance sheet and consolidatéeingtat of income of Belfius Bank can be found ie th
section headed “7. Belfius Bank SA/NV” of this Ba&amspectus.

Belfius Bank SA/NV

Annual Report 2015 Annual Report 2016 Half-Yearly Report 2017

(English version) (English version) (unaudited — condensed)
audited audited
consolidated balance sheet 82 96 44
consolidated statement of income 84 98 46
consolidated statement of comprehensive 47
income 85 99
Consolidated statement of change in equity 86 100 48
consolidated cash flow statement 90 104 52
audit report on the consolidated accounts 198 222 94
notes to the consolidated financial 53
statements 91 105
non-consolidated balance sheet 202 226 N/A
non-consolidated statement of income 205 229 N/A
audit report on the non-consolidated N/A
accounts 208 232
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7. BELFIUS BANK SA/NV

(Annex IV of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

7.1. Belfius Bank profile

Belfius Bank SA/NV (the “Issuer” or “Belfius Bank™) is a public limited company (naamloze
vennootschap/société anynome) established on 23 October 1962 for an unlimited duration and incorporated
under Belgian law which collects savings from the public. The Issuer is licensed as a credit institution in
accordance with the Belgian Banking Law. It is registered with the Crossroads Bank for Enterprises under
business identification number 0403.201.185 and has its registered office at 1000 Brussels, Boulevard Pachéco
44, Belgium, telephone +32 22 22 11 11.

The share capital of Belfius Bank is three billion, four hundred and fifty-eight million, sixty-six thousand, two
hundred and twenty-seven euros and forty-one cents (EUR 3,458,066,227.41) and is represented by 359,412,616
registered shares. The shareholding of Belfius Bank is as follows: 359,407,616 registered shares are held by the
public limited company of public interest Federal Holding and Investment Company (FHIC), in its own name,
but on behalf of the Belgian State, and 5,000 registered shares are held by the public limited company Certi-Fed.
Certi-Fed is a fully-owned subsidiary of FHIC. Belfius Bank shares are not listed. At the end of 2016, total
consolidated balance sheet amounted to EUR 17@rbilAt the end of June 2017, total consolidateldze
sheet amounted to EUR 172 billion.

With an essentially Belgian balance sheet for its commercial activities and customers from all segments, Belfius
is in a position to act as a universal bank “of and for Belgian society”. Belfius is committed to maximal
customer satisfaction and added social value by offering products and providing services with added value
through a modern distribution model. Thanks to a prudent investment policy and a carefully managed risk
profile, Belfius aspires to a sound financial profile that results in a solid liquidity and solvency position.

Simplified Group structure as at the date of this Base Prospectus

FMIC

I
Belfius Bank

[ | | l I | |
Belfiu Crefius* Belfius Belfiu Belfiu Belfiu Belfiu
Insuranc Lease Lease Lease Commercia Investment

Services Financ Partner
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100 100%

7.2. Main commercial subsidiaries

Belfius Insurance
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Insurance company marketing life and non-life iasiwe products, savings products and investments for
individuals, the self-employed, liberal professionempanies and the public and social sector. Atethd of
June 2017, total consolidated balance sheet ofuBdlisurance amounted to EUR 22 bilfion

Crefius

Company servicing and managing mortgage loanshAtend of June 2017, total balance sheet of Crefius
amounted to EUR 38 millidh

Belfius Auto Lease

Company for operational vehicle leasing and caetflmanagement, maintenance and claims management
services. At the end of June 2017, total balaneetstf Belfius Auto Lease amounted to EUR 290 onifli

Belfius Lease

Company for financial leasing and renting of prefesal capital goods. At the end of June 2017 tzdéance
sheet of Belfius Lease amounted to EUR 755 mitlion

Belfius Lease Services

Financial leasing and renting of professional @pgoods to the self-employed, companies and libera
professions. At the end of June 2017, total balasteet of Belfius Lease Services amounted to EWB831,
million®.

Belfius Commercial Finance

Company for financing commercial loans to debtalsbtor in-solvency risk cover and debt recoverymfro
debtors (factoring). At the end of June 2017, tb@khnce sheet of Belfius Commercial Finance ameslitd
EUR 819 milliorf.

Belfius Investment Partners

Company for administration and management of fuAdshe end of June 2017, total balance sheet dfuBe
Investment Partners amounted to EUR 45 million

7.3. Results 2016

The consolidated net income rose for the fifth y@aa row to EUR 535 million in 2016 against EUR650
million in 2015, up 5.8%. Belfius Bank contribut&UR 335 million and was mainly driven by the good
commercial activity and a strict cost control. Bedf Insurance made a very sizeable contributioBWdR 201
million, despite the negative impact of exceptioia&tors such as terror attacks and floods.

The net income from commercial activities (Franehigrew by 9% to EUR 666 million thanks to the rare
combination of a rise in revenues (EUR 2,377 milliap 2.4% compared to 2015) and continuous loweoin
costs (EUR 1,355 million, down by 2.1% compare@@45). The cost-income ratio of the commerciahtigis
improved significantly by 3% to 57% compared withil8. The cost of risk remained stable (EUR 68 onillj
demonstrating the Franchise’s continued good crpditity.

The total net income of the Side-activities (sel@weamounted to EUR -130 million against EUR -I6iilion
in 2015. In 2016 total income of the Side-actidt@mounted to EUR -118 million and was impactedhsy
active tactical de-risking programme (EUR 100 roilliosses before taxes) and negative fair valuesadents

1 For more details, see the annual report 2016 BifuBdnsurance.
2 Total IFRS balance sheet before consolidationsacijents
% Total IFRS balance sheet before consolidationsacijents
“ Total IFRS balance sheet before consolidationsadijents
® Total IFRS balance sheet before consolidationsacijents
® Total IFRS balance sheet before consolidationsaaijents
’ Total IFRS balance sheet before consolidationsantjents
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in more volatile financial markets. Cost of risk amted to EUR 48 million compared to EUR 28 million
2015. This increase results from specific impairhwdrarges related to US RMBS.

The CET 1-ratio (Phased In) was 16.6% at 31 Decer2d&6 compared to 15.9% at 31 December 2015. The
CET-1 ratio (Fully Loaded) was 16.1% at 31 Decen#tii6 compared to 14.9% at 31 December 2015.

The total capital ratio (Phased In) amounted tal%Pat the end of 2016 against 17.7% end 2015. otz t
capital ratio (Fully Loaded) amounted to 18.4%h&t ¢nd of 2016 against 16.2% end 2015.

The regulatory risk exposure amounted to EUR 4@libro end 2016, a decrease of 0.3 billion compated
2015, thanks to further active tactical de-risking.

End 2016, the Belfius leverage ratio Phased Insetan the current CRR/CRD |V legislation - stob&.4%,
the leverage ratio Fully Loaded stood at 5.3%.

As a result of the annual “Supervisory Review anglf&ation Process” SREP’) conducted by the ECB,
Belfius must maintain as from December 2015 a mimmCET 1 ratio of 11.25%, which is composed of a
minimum SREP CET 1 ratio of 10.75% (including capitonservation buffer) and a buffer for domestic
systemically important institutions of 0.50% (whiefil grow to 1.50% in 2018).

Following the SREP performed at the end of 2016filehas been informed by the ECB of its new mimm
capital requirements. For 2017 the ECB imposes aPdased In minimum CET 1 requirement, which is
composed of :

. a Pillar 1 minimum of 4.5%,

. a Pillar 2 Requirement (P2R) of 2.25%,

. a capital conservation buffer (CCB) of 1.25% and

. a buffer for (other) domestic systemically impottarstitutions (O-SlI buffer) of 1%.

The ECB has also notified Belfius of a Pillar 2 Gance (P2G) of 1% CET 1 for 2017.
7.4. Results 1H 2017

Despite the persisting weakness of interest réesfirst half-year 2017 was marked by favouraldaditions
on the financial markets, and this had a positinpéct on results.

Income increased by 8% compared with the samegé&st year and amounted to EUR 1.136 billion.

By virtue of efficient and sustainable balance sta®l liquidity policy, the bank succeeded in presg its
interest margin and in raising net interest incdige8% to EUR 744 million. At the same time, net e
commission income rose by 5% to EUR 264 million.

At the insurer, Life and Non-Life activities gentrad earnings of EUR 150 million and EUR 97 million
respectively.

Other income (and charges) amounted to EUR -11omilThese were primarily impacted by sector Isyia
an amount of EUR 217 million, fully booked to thesf half-year. Nevertheless, in a comparable peragher
income for the first half-year was EUR 36 millioigher than last year, in view of the end of thevecaind
tactical risk reduction programme implemented lgsir, and the improvement of conditions on therfaial
markets. In addition, Belfius was able to take adage of the general trend towards the standaioiisaff
derivatives contracts.

Despite significant investments made in digitalat Belfius continues strictly to manage its costhese
posted a further fall of 2%, to EUR 662 million.e'mcrease of income coupled with the reductionasts, the
“scissor effect”, enabled the Cost-Income ratidéoimproved by 6% compared with the same periadykear,
to 58.3%.

In view of the good credit quality of businessesl gortfolios, the favourable economic environment a
excellent risk management, the cost of risk, at EA9Rnillion, remained at a low level.
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The net income before tax achieved by Belfius walRE445 million (+27%). After deduction of tax, the
consolidated net profit was EUR 361 million (+45%glfius Bank and Belfius Insurance contributedtese
results in amounts of EUR 235 million and EUR 126iom respectively.

The CET 1-ratio (Phased In) stood at 16.3% at 3@ A017. The CET-1 ratio (Fully Loaded) was 16.1%®
June 2017. The total capital ratio (Phased In) artealito 19.1% at the end 30 June 2017. The topaflataatio
(Fully Loaded) amounted to 18.5% at the end 30 20§'.

End June 2017, the Belfius leverage ratio Phasedtased on the current CRR/CRD |V legislationoodtat
5.4%, the leverage ratio Fully Loaded stood at 5.3%

7.5. Segment reporting 1H 2017

Analytically, Belfius splits its activities and amants in three segments: Retail and Commercial (RGblic
and Corporate (PC) and Group Center (GC); with R@ BC containing the key commercial activities of
Belfius.

« Retail and Commercial (RC) managing the commercial relationships with ingdii&l customers
and with small & medium sized enterprises bothaatkoand insurance level;

« Public and Corporate (PC) managing the commercial relationships with pulsiéctor, social
sector and corporate clients both at bank and amser level;

* Group Center (GC) containing the residual results not allocatedn® tivo commercial segments.
This mainly consists of results from Bond and Datilve portfolio management. Note that as from 1
January 2017, Belfius integrated the former Sidgrsnt into Group Center.
7.5.1. Retail and Commercial (RC)

The Retail and Commercial business line offersvidgials and the self-employed, the liberal professiand
SMEs a complete range of retail, commercial andapei banking products as well as insurance services

Belfius Bank is among the top 4 leading banks ifgBen and serves its approximately 3.5 million cusers

through 679 points of sale, a contact center atatge number of automatic self banking machinesiclwh
makes the Bank a 24-hour-a-day operation. Bel§usading in the mobile banking industry and presidtate
of the art apps.

In Belgium, for retail customers, Belfius Insurarc®nbines the advantages of the exclusive agenhtgorie of
DVV insurance with those of the Belfius Bank bramztworks, whilst also relying on Corona Directlieect
insurer active via the internet and “affinity pasts®

Strategy

The implementation of the Belfius 2020 strategyRetail and Commercial, as charted in 2015, wasdaed in
2016.

The RC strategy aspires to achieve four ambitign20d20:

. To go from 95% customer satisfaction towards consaitustomers who are prepared to actively
recommend Belfius.
. To further develop a differentiated and digitallypported business model, with an ideal balance

between qualitative relationship management onotiee hand, and efficient, user-friendly direct
channels on the other. Two complementary omni-chbapproaches are being developed to that
purpose: one with digital focus geared to retastomers combined with value-added branch
interactions at key life moments, and the otherhwaccount management focus geared to
privilege, private and business customers suppdryecery convenient digital tools.

. To increase the dynamic market share in core ptsdocour aspired market share of minimum
15%.

8 Affinity partners are external parties with whorar@na collaborates and that offer Corona insuraneeucts.
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. To further implement our continued focus on proesssith true added value for our customers,
and as such target a further improvement in casinre ratio te< 60%.

RC commercial performance in 2016

The commercial activity was particular dynamic Bil8: total customer assets grew by 2.8% in 2016UR
102.5 billion. After a strong increase in 2015, tnganic growth further increased in 2016 by 33%UR 2.5
billion. EUR 34.2 billion of the total savings aimtvestments is held by 66,000 private clients.

On-balance sheet deposits totalled EUR 62.0 bilibthe end of 2016, slightly up (+3.2%) from thed eof
2015. Customers adopted a rather wait-and-seadstfbr deposits because of the historically loteriest rates.
There was very good growth in the funds depositeduirrent and savings accounts, which reached EUR 1
billion (+16.7%) and EUR 40.0 billion (+7.2%) respieely. Less capital found its way to long-ternpital
investments (a drop of 46.4% for savings certiisaand a light increase of 2.2% for bonds issueBdifjus).

Off-balance sheet investments went up by 5.8% coetpto the end of 2015, to EUR 29.6 billion, ant th
thanks to a more pronounced customers’ preferemcerbducts with potentially higher yields (mutdahds,
mandates). Outstanding investments given to Belfimsnandates and service contracts grew furthgfiré by
13% to EUR 10.2 billion.

Life insurance reserves of investment products areslito EUR 10.9 billion, down by 6.7% comparedhie
end of 2015. Investments in Branch 21 life insueapmoducts decreased because of the low interest, daut
that drop was partially offset by Branch 23 proguct

Total loans to customers rose strongly to EUR 4dlflon at the end of 2016. The increase occurned i
mortgage loans (+5.9%) and business loans (+5.88jtgage loans, which account for two thirds oflains,
amounted to EUR 28.8 billion at the end of 2016jlevhonsumer loans and business loans stood at EWR
billion and EUR 11.4 billion respectively.

New long term loans granted to retail clients dyr2916 amounted to EUR 6.3 billion. These new Il
loans are mainly mortgage loans. The new productibrtonsumer loans amounting to EUR 0.7 billion
increases with 14% and reaches the highest lewval @he production of long-term loans for the Besst
segment increases to EUR 3.0 billion (+23%).

The gross production of insurance products to coste in the Retail and Commercial segment amoutated
EUR 1,130 million in 2016, compared with EUR 1,2%8lion in 2015, i.e. a 11.6% drop, in line with rkat
tendencies.

Non-life insurance premiums amounted to EUR 504ioni] up 5% compared to the end of 2015. This iasee
was possible thanks to further bank-insurance dgweént and increased cross-selling activities,artigular
with mortgage loans.

Life insurance premiums amounted to EUR 626 millioompared with EUR 798 million in 2015; a 21.6%
drop. There is a strong decrease in Life Brancprgniums (-56.6%) and a limited decrease in Lifari8h 21
premiums (-2.7%) This is due to low client appeititéow interest rate environment.

Total life insurance reserves, in the Retail andh@ercial segment, dropped by 5.0% to EUR 13.4dpilkt the
end of 2016 as a result of a difficult context eltaerised by low interest rates. A clear shift @w products
can be noted in the life reserves. Unit-linked rese (Branch 23) increased by 10%, whereas guadnte
interest products reserves (Branch 21 and 26) éxpy 8%.

RC commercial performance in 1H 2017

The commercial activity remained solid. Total sggmnd investments grew by 2.6% in the first hAlQ@l7 to
EUR 105.2 billion at the end of June 2017. Aftestrong increase in 2016, the organic growth renthsiable
in 1H 2017 at EUR 2.1 billion. This is an undispupgoof of the ever increasing confidence Belfamspiring
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to its customers. EUR 35.8 billion of the total isg and investments is held by Private Bankingnt§.
Investments via mandates and service-contracteased since June 2016 by 21% to reach EUR 11rbillio

On-balance sheet deposits totalled EUR 63.5 billiothe end of June 2017, slightly up (+2.4%) fitte end of
2016. Customers adopted a rather wait-and-seadstfor deposits because of the historically loteriest rates.
There was very good growth in the funds depositeduirent and savings accounts, which reached EUR 1
billion (+12.8%) and EUR 41.1 billion (+2.7%) resgigely. Less capital found its way to long-termef rate
investments (a drop of 13.2% for savings certiisaind a decrease of 5.6% for bonds issued byuBElfi

Off-balance sheet investments went up by 6.0% coetpto the end of 2016, to EUR 31.4 billion, ant th
thanks to a more pronounced customers’ preferemcerbducts with potentially higher yields (mutdahds,
mandates). Strong net production in asset manageanenBranch 23 and Branch 44 insurances, suppbsted
the successful development of new products (Myf8last Multimanager funds and Belfius Invest).

Life insurance reserves for investment productsiared to EUR 10.3 billion, down 5.6% compared t® ¢imd
of 2016. Investments in Branch 21 life insurancargateed products decreased because of the loreshte
rates, but that drop was partially offset by Bra@8rand Branch 44 products.

Total loans to customers rose strongly to EUR 48libn at the end of June 2017. The increase gecur
mainly in mortgage loans (+3.1 %) and businessddaf3.5%). Mortgage loans, which account for twiedth of
all loans, amounted to EUR 29.7 billion at the ehdune 2017, while consumer loans and business Is@od
at EUR 1.4 billion and EUR 11.8 billion respectiyel

New long-term loans granted to retail clients dgriiH 2017 amounted to EUR 3.3 billion. In the finstf-year
of 2017, the new production of mortgage loans iaseel by 15.3% to EUR 2.9 billion. During the saragqul,
EUR 1.6 billion in new long-term business loansevgranted, up 14.1% compared to the first halasf year.

The total insurance premiums from customers inRb&ail and Commercial segment amounted to EUR 597
million in 1H 2017, compared with EUR 562 milliom 1H 2016, an increase of 6.2%.

Life insurance premiums amounted to EUR 319 millioompared with EUR 302 million in 1H 2016, a 5.6%
rise despite the historically low interest enviram

Non-life insurance premiums amounted to EUR 278ioni| up 6.9% compared to 1H 2016. This high growth
was mainly possible thanks to the further develapnué the bank distribution channel, where we retia
strong increase of 12.6% in non-life premiums \erittindeed, thanks to the “one-stop-shopping” cphoé
Belfius, the mortgage loan cross-sell ratio foe finsurance increased from 82% at the end of JOhé @ 84%

at the end of June 2017. The mortgage loan crdkgasie for credit balance insurance went up fr@d2% at
the end of June 2016 to 145% at the end of Juné.201

Total life insurance reserves, in the Retail andn@®rcial segment, dropped since end 2016 by 4.5E4Jte
12.8 billion at the end of June 2017 as a result abntext characterised by historically low ingtreates. A
clear shift between products can be noted in teerves. Life Branch 23 reserves increased by 118éreas
Life Branch 21 and 26 reserves fell by 7.5%.

Belfius further developed its digitally supportedsiness model in the first half of 2017. The numbenew
active retail and business customers rose by 187602%), whereas the number of active mobile aggrau
increased by 236,000 to 946,000 units in a one, yhawost reaching the threshold of 1 million appras

Belfius continues to extend the functionalitiestefapps. In the first half-year 41% of the new gien saving
contracts, 27% of the new credit cards and 29%hef new savings accounts were subscribed via direct
channels.

RC net income after tax amounted to EUR 234 milirodH 2017.

7.5.2. Public and Corporate (PC)
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Belfius has always been the preferred partner dflipuisector and social organisations (hospital§osts,
universities, retirement homes...) in Belgium. toydes its clients with a complete and integratadge of
products and services, ranging from credit lending treasury management, insurance products, tgebud
optimisation and financial IT solutions.

Corporate banking activities are directed prindipat medium-sized corporates having a decisioningak
center in Belgium and also at corporates offerivartservices to the public sector

Strategy

As market leader in the Public and Social sectmmfthe outset, Belfius invests in dedicated presland
services adapted to its customers so as to pralila a service that meets all their needs. Publiestments
are however hindered by measures taken to rededeutiiget deficit.

Belfius draws on its historical knowledge in théstor to help Belgian companies who wish to dotess with
the public authorities, thereby enabling them todfié from a competitive advantage in this inteirggmarket.

Moreover, offering all the products and servicesgB® companies need, Belfius can fully assumeadls of
support of the Belgian economy.

As such, Public and Corporate confirms followingstgic axes:

. Remain the undisputed leader in the Public & Social segment;
. Continue its growth strategy in the market of Bafgcorporates.

Aware of the challenges faced by the public autlesri(such as the ageing of the population, health@ageing
infrastructures and sustainable development) asthbsses (such as growth, innovation and transRetlius

is going to bring together the driving forces thgbuts Smart Belgium programme, and establish agoiog

cooperation between the public authorities andrmssies. Belfius is keen to create solutions treddathe
challenges faced by society in a smart and sustEmaanner. To that end, Belfius is going to createique
forum to match supply and demand, the smart idédkeolocal authorities, the social sector, and Isarad

large businesses, while providing efficient leviersealize such ideas and solutions with a viewupporting a
more sustainable society.

PC commercial performance in 2016

At 31 December 2016, total customer assets were EURDbillion, an increase of 7.2% compared with ¢imd
of 2015. On-balance sheet deposits rose by EURIlliéh (+6.3%), to EUR 22.9 billion. The off-balaa sheet
customer investments registered a strong growt®.5%o to reach EUR 8.2billion. Life insurance ressrof
investment products amounted to EUR 0.6 billio2016.

Total outstanding loans went down slightly (-0.2%EUR 38.3 billion. Outstanding loans in Publidgbocial
banking are decreasing mainly due to lower dembad tmaturing stock, increased competition on thgi®u
and Social Sector market, and the structural shifhore alternative financing. Intensified commalasirategy
towards Belgian corporates results in 7.4% incréesmpared to December 2015) of outstanding loaf&UR
9.5 billion as of end December 2016. Off-balancsesitommitments remained stable at EUR 20.1 billion

Despite the continued weak market demand in théigpahd social sector, Belfius granted EUR 2.3iduillin
new long-term lending in 2016, up 27% compared@t52 Belfius also plays an active role in Debt @alpi
Markets business. During 2016 the Bank launchedviative funding to the public and social sectorsedotal
amount of EUR 5.2 billion and increased its levigbarticipation to 86% of the public issuers.

The production of long-term loans to corporate aors amounted to EUR 3.4 billion in 2016. The reark
share rose by 1.5%, while it grew by 1% in 2015thAfis level of participation rising to 58%, Bel§ialso
confirmed its position as leader for bond issues ta@asury certificates for corporate clients. 01&, the Bank
launched EUR 0.9 billion of innovative funding twte clients.

Page41 of 96



With regards to insurance activities, the Publicl &@orporate segment recorded good income dynarmnics,
particular for non-life insurance products.

Non-life insurance premiums increased strongly J#®to EUR 133 million. This demonstrates the sasaa
the strategy developed for property & casualty iasge products (fire, accidents, other risks),theough sales
via specialised brokers.

Gross premiums received in the life segment amautdeEUR 262 million, an increase of 1.0% thankshi®
strong position and expertise enjoyed by Belfiugsmiche market. Despite the constant reductiothe local
authorities’ room to manoeuvre and pressures offiqpfibances, Belfius PubliPension (a “first-pilfgpension
product) continues to respond to customer needs.

PC commercial performance in 1H 2017

At the end of June 2017, total savings and investsngtood at EUR 30.8 billion, a decrease of 2.8pmared
with the end of 2016. On-balance sheet depositsngeicby EUR 0.8 billion (-3.6%), to EUR 22.1 bih. The
off-balance sheet investments registered a smalledse of 0.9% to reach EUR 8.1 billion. Life iresuwe
reserves for investment products amounted to E@Rillion in at the end of June 2017.

Total outstanding loans increased by 2.3% to EUR 88lion. Outstanding loans in Public and Sodiahking
remained stable mainly due to lower demand, inecasmpetition on the Public and Social Sector etadnd
the structural shift to more alternative financimgtensified commercial strategy towards Belgiampooates
results in an increase of 8.4% (compared to Dece@®#6) of outstanding loans to EUR 10.3 billionca€nd
June 2017. Off-balance sheet commitments decrehSeéeto EUR 19.2 billion.

Despite the continued weak market demand in théigpahd social sector, Belfius granted EUR 0.7idnillin
new long-term lending in the first half of 2017,wd0 18% compared to the same period of last yedfiuBe
continues to play an active role in Debt Capitarkéés business. During 1H 2017 the bank signedfoneding
agreements to the public and social sectors footal amount of EUR 3.9 billion and kept its level o
participation at 86% of the public issuers.

The production of long-term loans to corporate eogtrs amounted to EUR 1.8 billion in the first haflf2017,

up 23% compared to the same period of last yeath Wiparticipation rate of 56%, Belfius also camiéd its

strong position for bond issues and treasury deaités for corporate clients. In the first halfa6f17, the bank
launched EUR 1.1 billion of innovative funding twse clients.

With regard to insurance activities, the Public &aporate segment recorded solid underwriting mals, in
particular for non-life insurance products.

Non-life insurance premiums increased by 2.6% tdRE®0 million. This demonstrates the success of the
strategy developed for property and casualty imeteggroducts (fire, accidents, other risks), heowgh sales
via specialised brokers, and is reflected in tleegase in premium revenues for occupational actictarer and
property damage cover.

Gross premiums received in the life segment amaunte EUR 158 million, a stabilization despite the
historically low interest environment.

PC net income after tax amounted to EUR 105 milirohH 2017.
7.5.3. Group Center (GC)

Since the separation from Dexia Group end 201 1fjlBepresented its financial accounts in two sedsien
* Franchise i.e. Belfius’ core business lines; and
» Side i.e. Belfius’ non core assets and exposuresrited from the Dexia era. Since end
2011, Belfius actively executed a tactical de-nigkiprogram with respect to its Side
portfolios, resulting in a strong decrease of @uding volumes and a positive evolution of
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the portfolios’ key risk indicators. Thanks to teentinued efforts, the risk profile of Side

was brought in line with the targeted risk profitence, as from 1 January 2017 onwards,
Belfius integrates the remainder of Side into Fhese (i.e. Group Center) and no longer
separates its financial reporting into the segmeErdaschise and Side.

As of today, Group Center (GC) mainly contains theidual results not allocated to the two commeércia
segments, as well as the residual interest ratdiguidity management results through internal $fan pricing
between the business lines and ALM. The former Sagnent has been totally integrated in this Gepter.

In general, GC consists of:

* a bond portfolio, consisting of an ALM Liquidity hd portfolio and an ALM Yield bond
portfolio,

e a derivatives portfolio, stemming from the formeldeés portfolio containing the
collateralized interest rate derivatives with Dexiaon collateralized interest rate
derivatives with international non financial coumt@rties and sold and bought credit
guarantee contracts and

» other activities such as financial markets servit®s management of two former specific
loan files (loans to Holding Communal & Arco) arnetGroup Center of Belfius Insurance.

These portfolios and activities are further destibelow:

7.5.3.1. Bond Portfolio
ALM Liquidity bond portfolio

The ALM Liquidity bond portfolio is part of BelfiuBank’s total LCR liquidity buffer and is a wellwdirsified,
high credit and liquidity quality portfolio.

At the end of June 2017, the ALM Liquidity bond tiolio stood at EUR 8.1 billion, down 1% compared t
December 2016, mainly due to the natural amortpatf the portfolio. End of June 2017, the portiolvas
composed of sovereign and public sector (70%), arate (3%), covered bonds (21%) and asset-backed
securities (6%).

At the end of June 2017, the ALM Liquidity bond ffolio has an average life of 9.4 years, and anmage
rating of A- (100% of the portfolio being investmegnade (1G)).

ALM Yield bond portfolio

The ALM Yield bond portfolio of Belfius Bank is udeo manage excess liquidity (after optimal comriagrc
use in the business lines) and consists mainlyghf uality bonds of international issuers.

At the end of June 2017, the ALM Yield bond potitioktood at EUR 4.4 billion, down 9% compared to
December 2016, mainly due to some sales, the hatomartization of the portfolio as well as foreigrchange
impacts. End of June 2017, the portfolio was coraga¥ sovereign and public sector (10%), corpoféés),
financial institutions (9%) and asset-backed séiesr(15%).

At the end of June 2017, the ALM Yield bond poriddhas an average life of 19.7 years, and an aea@ing
of A- (93% of the portfolio being investment gra@e)).

7.5.3.2. Derivatives portfolio
Dexia derivatives

While it was still part of the Dexia Group, form&exia Bank (now Belfius Bank) was Dexia Group’s
“competence center” for derivatives (mainly inténege swaps): this meant that all Dexia entitiesenable to
cover their market risks with derivatives with Da&x@ank, mainly under standard contractual termsted|to
cash collateral. Former Dexia Bank systematicatlyeced these derivative positions externally, assalt of
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which these derivatives broadly appear twice infiBelaccounts: once in relation to Dexia and onoe f
hedging. Remaining outstanding notional amount efvétives with Dexia amounted to approximately EUR
32.2 billion at the end of June 2017, a furtherease of EUR 7.7 billion compared to the end of6201

Credit derivatives

At the end of June 2017, the credit derivativesfptio amounted to EUR 4.2 billion, down EUR 0.4libn
compared to December 2016, mainly due to amortizatilt relates essentially to Financial Guarant@esal
Return Swaps and Credit Default Swaps issued opocate/public issuer bonds (80%), ABS (17%) and
covered bonds (3%). The good credit quality of thderlying reference bond portfolio, additional geation
against credit risk incorporated in the bond itselfl the protections purchased by Belfius maindynfivarious
monoline insurers (US reinsurance companies, aaflgrmssured Guaranty) result in a portfolio thetl00%
investment grade (IG) in terms of credit risk plefi

At the end of June 2017, the average rating ofpthréfolio remains at A- and the average residual dif the
portfolio stood at 10.2 years.

7.5.3.3. Other Group Center activities

At the level of the bank, the management of twoadggloan files inherited from the Dexia era (Holglin
Communal & Arco), results on hedge solutions imm@eated for clients (so-called financial markets Flow
Management activities) and the results on treaaatiyities (Money Market) are also allocated to Gr&enter.
Finally, Group Center also contains the resultarycosts on assets and liabilities not allocated specific
business line.

The Group Center of Belfius Insurance is fully efited to this sub-part (iii) of the consolidatecb@y Center.
Belfius Insurance Group Center contains income fassets not allocated to a specific businesstlirgecost of
Belfius Insurance’ subordinated debt, the resultsame of its subsidiaries and the costs not alémtdao a
specific business line.

GC net income after tax amounted to EUR 22 millroH 2017.

7.6. Post-balance sheet events
Interim dividend

The Board of Directors has decided to pay out aerim dividend in September of EUR 75 million oreth
current year profit of 2017.

Green light given for IPO of Belfius

During April of this year, the Management Board &hnel Board of Directors made an announcement threds
their intention to list Belfius. The Federal Goverent, as sole shareholder, has decided to go ahigadhis
plan to partially privatise Belfius. The privatigat will take place through a minority listing (mexum 49%)
on the Belgian stock exchange.

The listing will provide Belfius with access to thapital market in Belgium, and provide additiofiakibility

to manage our strategic goals. The listing is seea major step for Belfius, five years into owrjeey with our
customers. This is a very exciting new chapterBelfius, and will provide us with the opportunity solidify
our position in the market and ensure that we hle @ provide even better client-centric solutions

Measures decided in summer agreement

The decision of the Belgian government on 26 J@y2entailed several measures which Belfius isecuily
investigating. Among these measures is the decigiogradually decrease the corporate tax rate iigiB®
from 33.99% to 29% in 2018 and 25% in 2020. Thet fiigh level impact analysis for Belfius showsegative
impact in the statement of income resulting from bassessment of the deferred taxes (both defexexbsets
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and liabilities) as well as a positive impact inth®r Comprehensive Income” following the reassessrokthe
deferred taxes (both deferred tax assets anditiab)l

New non-preferred senior debt issuance (Tier 3)

On 20 July 2017, a new Belgian law was voted madfythe hierarchy of claims in case of resolutiord a
allowing the creation of a new class of non-prefdrsenior debt instruments ranking between subaielihdebt
and other senior unsecured creditors. Belfius plarmiild up its layer of MREL eligible instrumenrity issuing

these new non preferred senior notes in the upapyears.

7.7. Risk Management

Fundamentals of credit risk in 2016

Banking activities in Retail and Commercial

Belgium experienced throughout 2016 a modest lmatdst economic growth. Against this background, ilegd
to the Retail and Commercial business line — onth@fcore segments at the Bank — remained at aléngih
and this based on a stable lending policy in génaltzeit adjusted for some elements (see further).

Demand for consumer credit remained stable in 2Thé. criteria used for granting consumer loans ieeth
generally unchanged from the preceding years atiderwith the “Responsible Lending” charter thapiart of
the Belgian Financial Sector Federation (FebelfiR@cently, customers have been offered the posgiba

introduce their loan applications via mobile plaths, by using the Belfius App. Nevertheless, thiesufor

evaluating the loan request remained basicallyéme as for loans requested through traditionairela.

The production of mortgage loans remained veryasust throughout 2016, and was even higher th@2915.
The expected deceleration of the market — as aequence of the winding down of the “housing bonins”
Flanders and Brussels — was more than compensytiae impact of low interest rates. These low iesérates
also caused early repayments to remain at a high. [@he vast majority of prepaid existing mortgdgans
were refinanced internally. Overall, mortgage pmithn (EUR 8.3 billion, of which EUR 3.3 hillion
repayments) was realized at constant credit quality

The historical low risk level of the mortgage pofith is also reflected by the cost of risk that eens at a very
low level. The Risk Department continued its refnéml monitoring of the potential higher risk segtseof
mortgage loans (combinations of longer repaymemtgehigher loan-to-value financing ratios and kigtiebt
service costs vs. income ratios). The Bank tooksuess to keep production in these niches withiotdimits.
This approach is in line with the concerns exprédsg the National Bank of Belgium with regard teeth
evolution of the Belgian residential real estatd amortgage market. Accordingly, the National Baxkanced
higher risk weights for higher “loan-to-value” mgeige loans.

Belfius has more than 275,000 self-employed workansfessionals and SMEs as customers. Each othe@f
can rely on the personal service of a businessdrafike Bank’s project to have lending decisiorrsbigsiness
loans taken by local teams working close to thetamer was further intensified in 2016. This strgteg
contributes clearly to a better knowledge of thetemer and his or her situation, while numerousstasd
realised statistics indicate that the risk remave#i under control. The continuous fine-tuning bétdecision-
making logic and the enhanced and quickly reaatiemitoring on deteriorating risk profiles is clgadearing
fruit.

The overall profitability and strength of BelgiaMBs remained good, although the latter are moreraack
confronted with a changing consumer pattern (e-goremerce). In 2016, according to Graydon, 10,066
companies were forced to cease business, whictbwés lower than the number in 2015, and impliestarn
to the level of 2010. 20,708 jobs were as suchaptisk. This is the lowest number since 2008 kibginning of
the economic crisis, and a decrease of 10% compar2@l5. Bankruptcies declined in all major sestexcept
for the hotel and catering industry which showedremease of 4.3%. If the terrorist attacks of Mag916 are
an explanatory factor for Brussels, in the resthaf country it is rather the introduction of theHite” cash
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register (i.e. a mandatory system to track castnénhotel and catering industry sectors). The irmpadhe

above mentioned terrorist attacks on Belfius’ gditf was negligible. Consequently, the cost of hass loans
at Belfius Bank remained at a good risk/return lleared within the target levels. Belfius thereforgends to
keep supporting the production of business loals®) & relation to start-ups. At the same time, Rigk

department continues the improvement of the prookssrly warning indicators in order to keep penevaly

the risks in this market segment well under control

Banking activities in Public and Corporate

In 2016, Belfius kept providing the public and sdcsector, as well as mid & large companies, with a
extensive and integrated range of products andcesit strengthened its partnership with the austrs from
the public and social sector by continuing to itvigs having an in-depth knowledge of their needsl an
continuing to be able as such to offer them new taifidred solutions to fund their operations, manggeir
finances and meet their insurance requirementssirhtegy to become also the reference partnexdignorates
that service this public and social sector (BusrtesGovernment) was further implemented.

The Public Sector loans portfolio maintained itsyviow risk profile. The economic climate of lowfliation,
moderate growth and historical low interest levelsulted in a limited pressure on the expenditofeBelgian
municipalities. Local tax increases with an eyebtalget balance were for that reason rather limildee
indebtedness of municipalities remains stable hait financial costs have fallen as a result ofttistorical low
interest rates. The increase of staffing and ojeyatxpenditures is being kept under control, amotier
things also thanks to the low inflation. Besides ¢lurrent budgetary limits, some other structueédnms will
weigh on the finances of municipalities in the cogiyears, such as the ongoing pension reform feir th
statutory staff, the contribution of local auth@stto remedying Belgian public finance, the conseges of the
tax shift, the challenges of the ageing populatiod finally the increasing costs of social aid aedurity. On
this last point it is worth mentioning that 2016sne key year for the long-expected reform of givibtection.
Around 250 local fire brigades have been integrée84 new emergency response zones, which allnbeca
operational in the course of 2016. These zones tiavability to bill some of their services. Nevestess, the
lion’s share of their receipts consists of allowes)f which 20% are currently paid out by the fatikevel and
80% by the municipalities. This means that theresti$ a long way to go in order to reach the bakuh
financing assumed in the reform of civil protection

From a risk management point of view, the hosp#fattor remains a focus of attention. The potential
developments in the area of hospital funding aosetly monitored. The indebtedness of Belgian halksptias
increased importantly the past 5 years. The operaprofit of the sector - after a stabilization 2015 —
deteriorated again. As a consequence, some hasplisplay a structural shortfall in repayment citpac
According to our well-known studies, the Belgianspital sector seems somewhat underfunded and an
overcapacity regarding beds and infrastructure glevThe Minister of Public Health works on a pltn
address these challenges.

Belfius’ corporate business is focused on Belgiamganies with a turnover in excess of EUR 10 milli¢/ith
6,000 customers, we are actually positioned as alectyer in this segment, but a growth strategy has
successfully been launched since 2015. Belfiustalasn the necessary measures to ensure that thighgr
strategy goes hand in hand with a good creditwoess and acceptable risk concentrations. The gregfite of
the corporate lending remained fairly stable du28d6, which also meant that the cost of risk rewgiat an
acceptable level and within the limits set. RealFG@rowth in Belgium slightly decelerated in 20161t@%,
supported by low interest rates, low energy praed a declining unemployment. The wage restréiet, 2015
index jump and the tax shift have made especiallybigger and exporting companies more competithgea
result, the general recovery of profitability of|l§@n corporates - already started in 2014 — coetihin 2016.
However, the planned Ukkit from the European Union could weight on Belgium’s economic expansion; 8.8%
of Belgian exports are directed to the UK, représgn7.7% of GDP, the largest share (as a projectib
national output) amongst EU countries. A follow-afpglobal Brexit risks and impacts at portfolio é&was put
in place, but did not reveal critical problems.
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Belfius monitors sector risks in a proactive wayl aiefined specific measures with regard to a lichitember
of more vulnerable sectors. In the shipping indu®elfius Bank continued to focus exclusively,ialsas done
in previous years, on shipping companies and ostigpping-related businesses that have a commercial
relationship with the Bank and a clear link witte tBelgian economy. Connections with companiesdbatot
meet these criteria were further reduced. Declirglapal trade, weaker demand for commodities armex
shipping capacity caused drops in prices and grdfitoughout 2016. In August, the US based Inteynat
Shipholding as well as the Korean based Hanjin [8hg the world’s 7th largest shipping companydiler
bankruptcy. Despite some positive price effects ttuenajor players no further providing supply, ficéal
distress in the shipping industry is not expectedniprove soon. However, Belfius’ shipping portéolis
adequately covered by specific impairments as altollective impairments. What's more, ongoingitess
consolidation and alliances could prompt a moreigiied capacity growth and so improve freighesabver
the medium-term. Real estate financing, relatetdtt residential and commercial real estate, igrgrortant
business activity within Belfius. Also on industigvel, the Bank’s lending activity in the real éetaector
continues to increase considerably. The evolutiara estate financing over the last years isg@baluated in
the context of the following factors: the sustagniow interest rate environment, the fact that Belgoanks
have a large deposit base and are confronted watraech for yield, the gross debt ratio of Beldimuseholds
that has increased and has recently slightly exaxbétk average Euro area ratio. This combinaticgleshents
induces a concern at NBB level about an over etialuaf the Belgian (residential) property and atbthe
threat of strong volume growth with potentially lemcredit standards, lower margins and low prowisig
levels. Belfius is aware of these potential pifadhd has traditionally applied strict originatiemd acceptation
criteria (LTV, maturity, collateral valuation) orew transactions and a solid monitoring of projeatsboth
residential and commercial real estate financinglfills real estate credit exposure is consideredeisg
correctly diversified in terms of underlying assgies, individual name concentration and geogragblsigread.

Finally it is worth mentioning that Belfius intefied its portfolio management in the course of 20h@he first
place through the gradual sale of higher risk edpess and/or exposures that are no longer consigerdxing
core business (e.g. shipping-related business utithocommercial relationship), but also by deveigpiisk
hedging and risk sharing programs.

Insurance

The management of the credit risk of Belfius Insem is the responsibility of Belfius Insurance risk
management team, albeit in collaboration with thedit and risk teams at Belfius Bank and within thek
management guidelines regarding credit limits, #tat apply to the whole of the Belfius group. Agls, this
means that credit limits are defined on a constdididasis and that transfers of limits betweenBaek and
insurance arm of the business are permitted, pedvitiat both parties agree. The CROs of BelfiuskBard
Belfius Insurance coordinate the requests together.

Exposure to credit risk

As at 30 June 2017, the total credit risk exposwithin Belfius, reached EUR 177.4 billion, up EBRbillion
or 3% compared to the end of 2016. This growthasnhy due to higher commercial activities in thesfihalf of
2017 and to an increase of the deposit facilithatNational Bank of Belgium.

At bank level the credit risk exposure increasetthwPo to EUR 161.3 billion. At the level of Belfilissurance,
the credit risk exposure went down by 5% to EURL1$llion at the end of June 2017.
Breakdown of credit risk by counterparty

31/12/2011 | 30/06/201
In EUR billion
Central governments 20.3 24.7
Of which government bonds 13.4 12.7
Public sector entities 50.3 49.0
Corporate 27.5 27.7
Monoline insurers 4.2 3.8
ABS/MBS 1.4 1.3
Project Finance 2.1 2.1
Individuals, self-employed and SME’ 42.3 43.8
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Financial institutions 23.6 24.3
Other 0.7 0.8
Total 172.¢ 1774

The credit risk exposure on public sector entidiad institutions that receive guarantees of theddiqpsector
entities (28% of the total) and on individuals,fsghployed and SMEs (25% of the total) constitute two
main categories.

The relative proportion of the segment central gorents increased from 12% end 2016 to 14% endiroé J
2017. This growth is a direct consequence of Bglfincreasing excess liquidities posted at the dveti Bank
of Belgium. Inside this segment, the credit riskgmvernment bonds decreased by 5% from EUR 13idrbit
the end of 2016 to EUR 12.7 billion at the end wfie] 2017. More than half (57%) of the governmemtdso
portfolio is invested in Belgian government boridkile at bank level the Belgian government bongseasent
36% of the total government bond portfolio, theatide proportion at Belfius Insurance stood at 76%.

End of June 2017, the credit risk exposure on gatpe and financial institutions was respectiveédoland
14%. The credit risk on monoline insurers (2% of total) on bonds issued by issuers mainly active i
infrastructure and public utilities projects is goeninantly an indirect risk arising from credit gaatees written
by Belfius Bank and reinsured with monoline insarer

Belfius’ positions are mainly concentrated in thadpean Union: 95% or EUR 153.4 billion at bankeleand
98% or EUR 15.9 billion for Belfius Insurance. 688b the total credit risk exposure is on counterpart
categorised in Belgium country exposures, 7% inUinéed Kingdom, 6% in France, 3% in Italy and 2f0 i
Spain. The credit risk exposure to counterpartiethé United Kingdom amounted to EUR 11.8 billigtnout
half of this credit risk exposure concerns bondswbich close to two-third are inflation-linked,sised by
utilities and infrastructure companies in the Udiitkingdom that operate in regulated sectors suchadsr and
electricity distribution. These bonds are of satisbry credit quality (97% investment grade), aratenver the
majority of the outstanding bonds are covered wdtltredit protection issued by a credit insurer tisat
independent from the bond issuer. The remaindeterois the bond portfolio of Belfius Insurance, arsterm
credit portfolio for treasury management of Belf@snk and receivables on clearing houses. Thetatisis on
those portfolios are also of satisfactory credialgy The credit risk exposure to counterpartiesltaly
amounted to EUR 5.8 billion, of which EUR 3.7 hali of Italian government bonds.

At the end of June 2017, 84% of the total credik @xposure had an internal credit rating investngeade
(1G).

Asset quality

At the end of June 2017, the amount of impairechdoand advances to customers was EUR 2,059 million,
down 11% compared to December 2016. This decressdts, mainly from the partial sale in the firsifrof
2017 of conditionally US government guaranteed r&venortgages that were downgraded to non-perfgrimin
2016 and for which a specific impairment charge Wwasked. In 1H 2017, the specific impairments cank
and advances to customers decreased to EUR 1,228 mi

The asset quality ratio improved from 2.54% at ¢imel of 2016 to 2.23% at the end of June 2017 aed th
coverage ratio further strengthened from 54.4%0td %.

In the first half of 2017, collective impairments lmans and advances to customers decreased by/EulRon
to EUR 321 million.

Liquidity risk

Consolidation of the liquidity profile

During the first half of 2017, Belfius consolidati¢'d diversified liquidity profile by:
» stabilising its funding surplus within tleemmercial balance sheet;

» continuing to obtain diversified longrm funding from institutional investors;
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» collecting short and medium-term (CP/CD/EMTN) detosom institutional investors.

In March 2017, Belfius Bank increased its partitipato the ECB TLTRO Il funding programme with EUR
billion, amounting to EUR 4.0 billion end of Jun81Z with a purpose to finance investment needsMES
social sector and retail clients (mortgage loardusied).

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), introduced viitlihe framework of the Basel Il reforms, has beeoa
pillar | requirement for European banks on 1 Octdh#l5 (at a level of 60%). Belfius Bank closede@917
with a LCR of 128%. The LCR of the Bank has remdiabove 100% during the first half of 2017. In Befg

the law requiring banks to respect a LCR of 100% baen cancelled in 2016 and the minimum LCR
requirement is 80% for 2017 as introduced in th&kldelegated act.

The Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR), based on aurent interpretation of current Basel Il ruletpcd at
115% at end of June 2017.

Minimum requirement for own funds and eligible lidlities

It is expected that a formal Minimum Requirementdan funds and Eligible Liabilities (MREL) levelilvbe
given to Belfius by SRB in 2017. At this stage, floomal MREL target has been communicated to Belfius
Based on the recent disclosures on MREL publishe®®RB, Belfius’ mechanical targetvould potentially
amount to 24.5 % of risk exposures (in Fully Loaé@dhat).

This target is surrounded by uncertainties as th®jfiean Commission published a revised legislgireposal
related to MREL requirements on 23 November 201BRB). This proposal is still under negotiation la¢ t
European level at the time of the finalizationluét1H 2017 report.

As of today the SRB has not yet fully clarified wiiunsecured long term funding will be MREL-eligiblf
(part of) our unsecured funding would no longerMiREL eligible, it is Belfius’ intention to roll, atmaturity
during the coming years, into MREL-eligible instremnts.

Liquidity reserves

At the end of June 2017, Belfius Bank had quicklghitisable liquidity reserves of EUR 34.5 billiomhese
reserves consisted of EUR 9.9 billion in cash, EURD billion in ECB eligible bonds (of which EURO7.
billion are CCP-eligibl&), EUR 11.1 billion in other assets also eligibtetttee ECB and EUR 2.6 billion in
other liquid bonds.

These reserves represent 4.9 times the Bank'dutistial funding outstanding end of June 2017 aawdryg a
remaining maturity of less than one year.

Note that during the first half of 2017, Belfiudled the retained vehicle Penates 4 and simultasigassued
Penates 6 also fully retained on the balance shb&t.operation had a net positive impact of EURISllion on
the total liquidity buffer.

Funding diversification at Belfius Bank

Since the end of 2016, total funding of the bardtéased from EUR 108 billion to EUR 112 billionthé end
of June 2017. RC and PC funding (commercial fundmegresent an important part of total funding elfis
Bank with EUR 85 billion of which EUR 64 billion isoming from RC-clients. The commercial funding
increased with EUR 1 billion since December 2016rbduced its relative importance (to 77%) in tétedding
following a more important increase of interbankl aapo funding.

9 (1) Potential MREL requirement, published by SRBNovember 2016, could be equal to the higher of:

— Double (Pillar 1 + Pillar 2 requirement)+ Combirgdffer (CBR). Including the Market Confidence Cgar(equal to the CBR less 125
bps) Belfius’ mechanical target would potentialig@unt to 27.25%; or

— 8% of total liabilities and own funds (takingardiccount derivative netting where applicable).
0 (2) CCP = Central Counterparties.
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Belfius Bank also receives medium-to-long-term veisale funding, including EUR 8.4 billion from coedr

bonds (EUR 6.1 billion backed by mortgage loans BoR 2.3 billion by public sector loans), Asset Bad

Securities (ABS) issued for EUR 0.5 billion and EUR billion in TLTRO funding from ECB as at 30 &un
2017.

The remainder of the Bank’s funding requirementme® from institutional short-term deposits (Tregsur
mainly obtained through placement of CertificateBeposit and Commercial Paper.

The collected funding is used, firstly and most amantly, to finance the granting of loans to RGQl &C
clients.

Next to that, Belfius Bank also has a high qudli@R eligible buffer held to meet the LCR requirememd a
yield portfolio.

As a result of derivative contracts to cover inseneate risk of its activities, Belfius Bank has autstanding
position in derivatives for which collateral must posted and is being received (cash & securitiélateral).
Against the background of historical low interestes, in net terms, Belfius Bank posts more colihtihan it
receives.

The loan-to-deposit ratio, which indicates the prtipn between assets and liabilities of the conuiaér
balance sheet, was 92% at the end of June 2017.

Encumbered assets

According to our current interpretation of the EBAideline on the matter, the encumbered assetelfit8
Bank level amount to EUR 36.4 billion end June 2@hd represent 23.1% of total bank balance shegt an
collateral received under securities format, whadhounts to EUR 157.6 billion (EUR 152.9 billion etssand
EUR 4.7 billion collateral received). This repretsea decrease of the encumbrance ratio of 0.6% adpo
end 2016.

Since the set-up of the first covered bond progranmm2012, the bank has issued covered bonds fotah
amount of EUR 8.4 billion. End June 2017, the assetcumbered for this funding source are composed o
commercial loans (public sector and mortgage loand)amount to EUR 10.6 billion.

During the first half of 2017, the bank securitisadrtgage loans through the issue of a new velR#@ates 6),
with a limited impact on the encumbered amount. tifge loans encumbered for Penates 5 and Penates 6
issues amount to EUR 0.5 billion.

The bank is also collecting funding through repakats and other collateralised deposits. End J@i& 2the
total amount of assets used as collateral foratiiwity amounts to EUR 8.2 billion, of which EUR4illion is
linked to the ECB funding and EUR 2.6 billion iskied to repo transactions.

It is worth mentioning that, during the first hab17, the volume of assets encumbered for the E@Bifig and
for repo transactions increased with respectiva\REL.2 billion and EUR 1.7 billion. The TLTRO Il fiding
increased with EUR 1.0 billion to 4.0 billion dugithe first half of the year.

The balance of encumbered assets is mainly linkezblateral pledged (gross of collateral receivint)the
derivatives exposures for EUR 14.6 billion (deceeeSEUR 3.9 billion compared to end 2016), untherform
of cash or securities. A significant part of catlat! pledged is financed through collateral reaifrem other
counterparties with whom the bank concluded derigatin the opposite direction.

Regarding the “Other assets” (unencumbered) onnbalasheet, they are mainly composed of assets not
available for encumbrance such as derivatives y&irevalue revaluation of portfolio hedge and tessets.

7.8. Ratings
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At 30 October 2017, Belfius Bank had the followiragings:

Long-term rating Outlook Short-term rating
Fitch A- Stable F2
Moody's A2 Positive Prime-1
Standard and Poor’s A- Stable A-2

7.9. Other information

The Issuer is not dependent on any of its subsidiasave for Belfius Insurance SA/NV. Belfius Irence
SA/NV holds the licenses required for insuranceautakings, and Belfius Bank consequently relies éor the
insurance activities carried out by it.

There are no recent events particular to BelfiuskBahich are, to a material extent, relevant toekaluation
of its solvency.

There is no arrangement known to Belfius Bank, dperation of which may at a subsequent date résut
change of control of Belfius Bank.

7.9.1. Litigation

Belfius (Belfius Bank and its consolidated subgigis) is involved as a party in a number of litigas in
Belgium, arising in the ordinary course of its mesis activities, including those where it is actsgan insurer,
capital and credit provider, employer, investor gadpayer.

In accordance with IFRS, Belfius makes provisiamssiuch litigations when, in the opinion of its ragement,
after analysis by its company lawyers and extelegdl advisors as the case may be, it is prob&bieBelfius
will have to make a payment and when the amoustohf payment can be reasonably determined.

With respect to certain other litigations againetfBis of which management is aware (and for whasttording

to the principles outlined above, no provision lmBeen made), management is of the opinion, after due
consideration of appropriate advice, that, whilgsitoften not feasible to predict or determine th#mate
outcome of all pending litigations, such litigatioare without legal merit, can be successfully aeééel or that

the outcome of these actions is not expected tdtresa significant loss.

The most important cases are listed below, regssdté whether a provision has been made or notir The
description does not deal with elements or evohgtithat do not have an impact on the position dfile If

the cases listed below were to be successful foogposite parties, they could eventually resulinonetary
consequences for Belfius. Such impact remains urtiizdole at this stage.

7.9.1.1. Housing Fund of the Brussels Capital Regio

On 9 October 2012, the Housing Fund of the Brus€dpital Region (Woningfonds van het Brussels
Hoofdstedelijk Gewest/Fonds du Logement de la RedmBruxelles-Capitale) summoned Belfius Bank teefo
the Brussels Commercial Court. The Housing Fundsaiieed for a total amount of EUR 32,000,000 to 4
treasury notes issued by Municipal Holding (Gemelgké Holding/Holding Communal) between July and
September 2011(Commercial Paper Programme). Faltpttie liquidation of Municipal Holding, the Hougin
Fund could only receive repayment for EUR 16,000,00demands the payment by Belfius Bank of tha-no
repaid capital. As the loss incurred on this inwesit is the result of a voluntary waiver of theirdldy the
Housing Fund, which matches half of the investmBetfius Bank rejects the demand from the Housingd=

On 27 March 2014, the Brussels Commercial Couréepieal the claim application by the Housing Fund, bu
declared it unfounded. The Housing Fund lodgedpmeal against this judgement on 3 June 2014.

There was no significant evolution in this clainridg 2016 and the first half of 2017. The datelef hearings
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is not yet known
No provision has been made for this claim.

7.9.1.2. BBTK and ACLVB

On 8 May 2014, two trade unions within Belfius BaBIBTK and ACLVB, summoned Belfius Bank before the
Brussels Labour Tribunal. They demand the annulnoérthe collective bargaining agreements (CBA) that
Belfius Bank signed in 2013 with two other tradeéoms of the Bank. BBTK and ACLVB are of the opinion
that these collective bargaining agreements amaiiithout their consent, previous collective bargadni
agreements Belfius Bank also concluded with thienaddition, they are of the opinion that an emplogan
only sign a collective bargaining agreement witmsoof the existing trade unions within the firmthe said
employer has not signed previous collective baiggiagreements with other trade unions.

The case was pleaded on the hearing of 6 Februy. 2At this hearing, the President of the Laboour©
requested an opinion from the Labour Prosecutoiclwivas issued on 17 March 2017. This opinion is no
binding for the Labour Court. The Prosecutor comsd that Belfius Bank did not breach the law olfective
bargaining agreements, but stated that the newn“Bklfius 2016” CBA should be declared as “inexiste
based on a legal technical interpretation of cetfiaim requirements from the CBA Act.

On 8 June 2017, the Labour Court decided in amrirediary judgement that: (i) CBA may validly berségl by
only 1 trade union, even though they modify old&ACconcluded with other (more) trade unions; (iglfus
did not violate the unions’ rights to collectiverfaining; and (iii) the CBA “Belfius 2016” did hower not
respect the formalities imposed by the CBA Act &oidthat reason, they are declared relatively byllthe
Labour Court.

The Court reopened the case in order to enablepaa debate about the consequences of the eeladiNity of
the CBA. The dates of the different procedural si@e as follows:

*17/7/2017: written submissions filed by ACLVB an8BK

*18/9/2017: written submissions filed by Belfius Ran

+30/10/2017: oral pleadings

In the meantime ACLVB and BBTK have filed their #ein submission.

On 4 July 2017, Belfius has registered a new seh@e CBAs with the competent Federal Authorit@DF
WASO/SPF ETCS) which contain the abovementionednétities as decided by the Labour Court. As a
consequence, Belfius is of the opinion that thatie nullity of the initial CBA is covered and ththe claims
filed by the trade unions became without subject.

No provision has been recorded for this procedsr8ealfius Bank remains confident that it has enouglid
arguments to obtain a final judgement in its favand prove that the CBA Act was respected.

7.9.1.3. Arco — Cooperative shareholders

Belfius Bank has been summoned by Arco - Cooperasivareholders in two separate procedures, i.e. one
procedure before the Dutch speaking Commercial {GufuBrussels and another procedure before the tGfur
First Instance of Antwerp, Section Turnhout:

e On 30 September 2014, 737 shareholders from 3 auiegaf the Arco Group (Arcopar, Arcoplus and
Arcofin) summoned Belfius Bank, together with theafdrementioned Arco companies, before the
Dutch speaking Brussels Commercial Court. Pringipathey demand the annulment of their
agreement to join the capital of these 3 compaageshareholder, based on fraud or error. They
demand that the Court orders Belfius Bank jointhyg aeverally and in solidum with each of the 3
above mentioned Arco companies to repay their ahmontributions, increased by interest and
compensation. On an ancillary basis, they appliethe Commercial Court to order Belfius Bank to
pay compensation based on an alleged shortcomiriig imformation duty towards them. Amongst

Page52 of 96



others because the file submitted by the individiiareholders lacks information with respect tapro
and assessment of damages, Belfius cannot assessrient of the claim and has to reject it.

On 19 December 2014, 1,027 shareholders and omaritady 2016, 466 other shareholders of the 3
above mentioned Arco companies joined the summoreswluntary basis. Belfius has asked for their
files so that it can evaluate the content of thkiim.

On 17 December 2015, 2,169 shareholders of theo@ealmentioned Arco companies issued a writ to
the Belgian State for compulsory intervention. Thigmand that the Commercial Court orders the
Belgian State to pay compensation based on thgeallédlegality of the guarantee scheme the Belgian
State enacted in favour of Arco shareholders. Teisiand is subordinated to the rejection of their
claims against Belfius Bank for the annulment dittcontributions and has no negative impact on
Belfius Bank.

In June 2017, the claimants have asked the cossttbriefing deadlines and a hearing date.

There was no other significant evolution in thiail during the first half of 2017.

* Belfius Bank has also been summoned by three Aneceholders (Arcopar) on 24 October 2016 to
appear before the Court of First Instance of AnpyeSection Turnhout. The claimants demand a
compensation from Belfius Bank on the basis of naecontractual liability. They allege that BeKiu
Bank would have given them misleading or at leastpiirect advice. Belfius’ defense is currently lgein
prepared, whereby the main objective is to dematesthat Belfius Bank has committed no mistake at
all. In the alternative order, in the hypothesiattany claim against Belfius Bank were to be acmbpt
then Belfius Bank has initiated a hold harmlessntlagainst Arcopar. The case will normally be
pleaded on 18 December 2017.

No provision has been made for these claims bedaeKris Bank is of the opinion that it has suféiot valid
arguments to result in these claims being decler@dimissible and/or without merit.

7.9.1.4. Ethias

Ethias is currently managing one of Belfius’ penspdans in a segregated fund, whereby 100% ofittanfial
gains on the underlying assets are allocated topthe according to a profit sharing agreement lid
concluded between the parties. Ethias claims anb@aat increase in management costs, even thdughst
not in accordance with the existing agreementsvi¢nv of Belfius Bank’s refusal on this increasehigs
terminated the profit sharing agreement and thneateo transfer unilaterally the pension plan assawvards
Ethias’ main fund. Should that happen, Belfius Baviduld be compelled to evaluate these assets based
Ethias’ guaranteed rates (rather than at marketieyawith a negative impact on the Bank's Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) as a consequence.

In order to prevent this, Belfius Bank has summoritgbias before the Court in Brussels in summary
proceedings on 23 December 2016. On 18 January, #0d Court prohibited the transfer of the assaibject

to a penalty up to 3 million EUR, and ordered Edhia continue allocating 100% of the financial gaia the
segregated fund.

Ethias appealed against the judgment before thesBtsi Court of Appeal. On 20 June 2017 the Cotitt (s
summary proceedings) ruled against Ethias againnaaidtained the prohibition to transfer the plaa&sets.
However, because summary proceedings do not alloadgudication on the merit, the Court also ruledtt
Ethias was no longer required to allocate 100%effinancial gains to the pension plan.

Alongside the summary proceeding, a proceedinghennterit was also introduced by Belfius Bank at the
commercial court of Brussels on 12 January 201#rs&judgment is not expected before 2018 (H1)s&hon
clear and valid contractual provisions, Belfiuoighe opinion that Ethias may not (i) unilaterallg-segregate
the pension fund; and (ii) terminate the profitraig.agreement.

The valuation of the assets remains marked-to-nhatkhe end of the 1H 2017. Consequently no O@kichis
taken into account with respect to this litigation.
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7.9.2. Management and Supervision of Belfius Bank

Belfius Bank complies with its country’s of incomadion corporate governance regime, such as st ligrthe
Belgian Banking Law and the Companies Code.

7.9.2.1. Composition of the management board andefboard of directors

1. Management Board

The Management Board currently has six members hdne all acquired experience in the banking and
financial sector. The members of the Management®fmam a college.

As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the ManageBoard consists of the following six members:

Significant other function
performed outside Belfius

Name Position Bank
Marc Raisiére Chairman none
Dirk Gyselinck Member none
Eric Hermann Member none
Olivier Onclin Member none
Dirk Vanderschrick Member none
Johan Vankelecom Member none

The above members of the Management Board have hibsiness address at 1210 Brussels, Place Charles
Rogier 11, Belgium.

The Board of Directors has delegated all of its agggment powers to the Management Board set up from
among its members. Such delegation of its powees dot extend to the determination of the geneniidyy or

to any other powers that are reserved pursuatte¢dCbmpanies Code or to the Banking Law to the @oér
Directors.

As a result, the Management Board is responsibigHe effective management of the bank, directind a
coordinating the activities of the various businksss and support departments within the framewairkhe
objectives and general policy set by the Board icé&ors.

The Management Board ensures that the bank’s tassawivities are in line with the strategy, riskmagement
and general policy set by the Board of Directarpalsses on relevant information to the Board oé@ors to
enable it to take informed decisions. It formulgtesposals and advices to the Board of Directoth wiview to
define or improve the bank’s general policy andtsiyy.

The members of the Management Board are requirethmy out their duties in complete objectivity and
independence.

Working under the supervision of the Board of Dices, the Management Board takes the necessaryuresas
to ensure that the bank has a robust structuredstotthe bank’s organisation, including superyisoeasures,
with a view to guaranteeing the effective and pritidaanagement of the bank in accordance with thekiBg
Law.

There are no potential conflicts of interest betwesy duties to Belfius Bank of the members of the
management board and their private interests dret duties.
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2. Board of directors

Belfius Bank is managed by its Board of Directovkjch is entitled to take any action the right tbigh is not
expressly reserved to the General Meeting of Sluddels of Belfius Bank by law or the articles ofasiation
of Belfius Bank. In accordance with the Banking Ldke Board of Directors has delegated to the Mamemt
Board of Belfius Bank all such powers to the maximextent permitted under Belgian law.

Pursuant to the articles of association of BelBask, the Board of Directors of Belfius Bank is qomeed of a
minimum of 5 members appointed for maximum term#oaf years. The table below sets forth the nanfi¢iseo
Directors, their position within Belfius Bank anldet other significant functions they perform outsBigfius
Bank.

The executive members of the Board of Directordl skithdraw on the date of the General Shareholders
Meeting held in the year in which they reach the af65.

The non-executive members of the Board of Direcstyadl withdraw on the date of the General Shadsrsl
Meeting held in the year in which they reach the afy70.

The Board of Directors has the right to make areption to the aforementioned principles on a casedse
basis if it considers it to be in the company’'stleterest.

The business address for the members of the BdaBirectors is 1210 Brussels, Place Charles Rogler
Belgium.

Composition as at the date of the Base Prospectus

As at the date of this Base Prospectus, the Bolirectors consists of 16 members, 6 of whom gittloe
Management Board.

The Board of Directors, which is made up of proif@ssls from a variety of industries, including tfieancial
sector, has the expertise and experience requsssrti@ted with the bank’s various operating busiegs

Significant other
functions performed
Name Position outside Belfius Bank

Jozef Clijsters................ Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank none

Marc Raisiére................. Chairman of the
Management Board of
Belfius Bank none

Dirk Gyselinck............... Member of the Management
Board of Belfius Bank
Responsible for Public &
Corporate Banking none

Eric Hermann................. Member of the Management
Board of Belfius Bank
Chief Risk Officer none

Olivier Onclin................. Member of the Management
Board of Belfius Bank
Chief Operating Officer
Responsible for Operations,
IT, Purchasing & Facility
Management and
Organisation none
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Significant other

functions performed
Name Position outside Belfius Bank
Dirk Vanderschrick......... Member of the Management

Johan Vankelecom.........

Els Blaton

Paul Bodart

Jean-Pierre Delwatt.......

Carine Doutrelepont.......

Georges Hubner............

Diane Rosen

Chris Sunt..........c...vveee.

Lutgart Van Den Berghe

Rudi Vander Vennet......

Board of Belfius Bank

Responsible for Retail and

Commercial Banking

Member of the Management

Board of Belfius Bank
Chief  Financial  Officer
Responsible for Financial
Reporting, Research,
Liquidity —and  Capital
Management, Corporate
Advisory, Asset and
Liability Management,

Legal and Tax

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Member of the Board of
Directors of Belfius Bank
(Independent Director)

Chairman of the
Management Board of
Belfius Insurance

none
Consultant

Professor in Financial
Markets at the Solvay
Business School

Chairman of the Board

of Directors of
Eurogentec

Lawyer and Full
Professor at the
Université Libre de

Bruxelles (ULB)

Full Professor at HEC
Management School of
the University of Liége
and

Associated Professor at

the University  of
Maastricht, School of
Business and
Economics,  Limburg
Institute of Financial
Economics

Finance Director of
BAM Belgium

Lawyer

Executive Director at
Guberna and
Extraordinary Professor
at the Vlerick Business
School

Full Professor in
Financial Economics
and Banking at the
University of Ghent
(UG)
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There are no potential conflicts of interest betwaay duties to Belfius Bank of the members ofltbard of
directors and their private interests and otheiedut

7.9.2.2. Advisory committees set up by the board directors

The Board of Directors of Belfius Bank establisheatious advisory committees to assist in its task, a
Nomination Committee, a Remuneration Committee, Aarlit Committee and a Risk Committee. These
committees are exclusively composed of Non-Exeeulirectors. At least one member of each advisory
committee is independent within the meaning of deti526ter of the Companies Code. The membersesfth
advisory committees sit at a maximum in two of hesmmittees.

There are no potential conflicts of interest betweaay duties to Belfius Bank of the members of ahyhe
following advisory committees and their privateeirgsts and other duties.

1. Nomination committee

As of the date of the Base Prospectus, the Nonoima€Committee of Belfius Bank has the following
membership:

Name Position

Lutgart Van Den Berghe Chairman — Director offis| Bank

Jozef Clijsters Member - Chairman of the Bodr®ivectors of Belfius Bank
Carine Doutrelepont Member - Director of Belfius Bank

Johan Tack Member — Director of Belfius Insurance

The members of the Nomination Committee have ttpiired skills, on the basis of their education and
professional experience, to give a competent adelpendent judgment on the composition and operafitime
bank’s management bodies, in particular on theviddal and collective skills of their members armebit
integrity, reputation, independence of spirit amdibility.
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The Nomination Committee:

identifies and recommends, for approval of the 8halders Meeting or of the Board of Directors as
the case may be, candidates suited to filling veiesnon the Board of Directors, evaluates the li@an
of knowledge, skills, diversity and experience witthe Board of Directors, prepares a descriptibn o
the roles and capabilities for a particular appoint and assesses the time commitment expected,;
decides on a target for the representation of tierepresented gender within the Board of Director
and prepares a policy on how to increase the nuwfbenderrepresented gender in order to meet that
target;

periodically, and at least annually, assesses tiiuetare, size, composition and performance of the
Board of Directors and makes recommendationswitlit regard to any changes;

periodically, and at least annually, assesses tiogvledge, skills, experience, degree of involvement
and in particular the attendance of members ofBibard of Directors and advisory committees, both
individually and collectively, and reports to thed8d of Directors accordingly;

periodically reviews the policies of the Board afd2tors for selection and appointment of membérs o
the Management Board, and makes recommendatidhe ®oard of Directors;

prepares proposals for the appointment or mandanal as the case may be of directors, members of
the Management Board, the Chairman of the Boafdirgctors and the Chairman of the Management
Board,;

assesses the aptitude of a director or a candiiedetor to meet the criteria set forth for being
considered as an independent director;

examines questions relating to problems with thecassion of directors and members of the
Management Board;

establishes a general and specific profile forames and members of the Management Board;
ensures the application of provisions with regarddrporate governance;

prepares proposals for amendments to the intented of the Board of Directors and the Management
Board,;

assesses the governance memorandum each yeamaedstary proposes amendments;

checks observance of corporate values;

at least annually discusses and analyses the tptavgi statement and qualitative analysis of
communications regarding stress, burn-out and irgpijate behavior at work and actions to be taken
to remedy situations.

In performing its duties, the Nomination Commitesgsures that decision-taking within the Board afebiors
is not dominated by one person or a small groupeo$ons, in a way which might be prejudicial to ithterests
of the bank as whole.

The Nomination Committee may use any type of resmithat it considers to be appropriate to theopeidnce
of its task, including external advice, and receigppropriate funding to that end.

The Nomination Committee acts for both Belfius Bamkl Belfius Insurance.

2. Remuneration committee
As of the date of the Base Prospectus, the Remiimer&ommittee of Belfius Bank has the following
membership:

Name Position

Lutgart Van Den Berghe Chairman - Director offiBe Bank

Jozef Clijsters Member - Chairman of the Bodr®ivectors of Belfius Bank
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Carine Doutrelepont Member - Director of Belfius Bank

Johan Tack Member — Director of Belfius Insurance

The members of the Remuneration Committee haverateired skills, on the basis of their education an
professional experience, to give a competent addgandent judgment on remuneration policies andtipes
and on the incentives created for managing risksital and liquidity of the bank.

In order to perform its tasks correctly, the Renratien Committee interacts regularly with the R&ammittee
and the Audit Committee.

The Risk Committee ensures that the Belfius groujsk management, capital requirements and liguidit
position, as well as the probability and the spremtime of profit are correctly taken into consiaéon in
decisions relating to remuneration policy.

The Audit Committee contributes to the establishinoérobjectives for the independent control funetiaf the
Auditor General.

The Remuneration Committee prepares the decisiothe Board of Directors by inter alia:

- Developing the remuneration policy, as well as mgkpractical remuneration proposals for the
chairman, the non-executive members of the Boar®ioéctors and the members of the advisory
committees under the Board of Directors. The Badrdirectors submits these remuneration proposals
to the General Meeting for approval.

« Developing the remuneration policy as well as mgkpnactical proposals for the remuneration of the
chairman of the Management Board and, on his paedpfer the remuneration of the members of the
Management Board. The Board of Directors then détexs the remuneration of the chairman and the
members of the Management Board.

« Providing advice about the proposals made by tlagrmian of the Management Board of Belfius Bank
in relation to the severance remuneration for membgthe Belfius Bank Management Board. On the
proposal of the remuneration committee, the BodrdDioectors of Belfius Bank determines the
severance remuneration of the chairman and merobéne Belfius Bank Management Board.

« Advising the Board of Directors in relation to themuneration policy for employees whose activity
has a material impact on the risk profile of thdfiBe Group (known as “Identified Staff”) and in
relation to the compliance of the allocation of teveration to Identified Staff with regard to the
remuneration policy put in place for such people.

« Preparing the remuneration report approved by tbar® of Directors and published in the annual
report.

« Periodically checking to ensure that the remunenatrogrammes are achieving their objective and are
in line with applicable conditions.

« Annually assessing the performance and objectif/édseomembers of the Management Board.

« Providing an opinion of the elaboration of a globRisk Gateway” in consultation with the Risk
Committee, containing various levers applied atoter points in the performance management cycle
with an impact on determination of the variable veeration.

The Remuneration Committee exercises direct sugiervi over the determination of objectives and
remuneration of the individuals responsible for itmgependent control functions (Chief Risk Offic&eneral
Auditor & the Compliance Officer).

The Remuneration Committee acts for both BelfiuskBand Belfius Insurance.
3. Audit committee

As at the date of the Base Prospectus, the Auditr@ittee of Belfius Bank has the following membepshi
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Name Position

Chairman

Georges Hubner Director of Belfius Bank
Member

Paul Bodart Director of Belfius Bank
Member

Chris Sunt Director of Belfius Bank

The Audit Committee has at least one independeatiir with the individual expertise required irtaantancy
and/or audit and has collective expertise in tekl§ of banking as well as accountancy and audit.

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directorits task of carrying out prudential controls anekrcising
general supervision. The Audit Committee of BelfiBank operates independently of the Audit Committee
implemented at Belfius Insurance. However, the eeipe Audit Committees of Belfius Bank and Belfius
Insurance meet jointly at least once a year. Addéi joint meetings may be held at the request®iGhairman

of the Audit Committee of Belfius Bank.

4, Risk Committee
As at the date of the Base Prospectus, the Riskn@tbe® has the following membership:

Name Position

Rudi Vander Vennet Chairmai
Director of Belfius Bank

Georges Hubner Member
Director of Belfius Bank

Chris Sunt Member
Director of Belfius Bank

Diane Rosen Membe
Director of Belfius Bank

The members of the Risk Committee have the indalidexpertise and professional experience requiced t
define the strategy regarding risk and the levelsif appetite of the bank.

The Risk Committee has advisory powers and respititisis with regard to the Board of Directors ihet
following areas:

« appetite and strategy regarding the bank’s cuaedtfuture risks, more particularly the effectivesne
of the risk management function and the governatrceture to support them;

« monitoring implementation of risk appetite and gy by the Management Board;

« allocating the risk appetite to various categooissks and defining the extent and limits of rigk
order to manage and restrict major risks;

« considering the risks run by the bank with its oosr tariffs.

« assessing activities which expose the bank torisd;

« supervising requirements in terms of capital aqdidity, the capital base and the bank’s liquidity
situation;

« the guarantee that risks are proportional to thk'sacapital;
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« formulating an opinion with regard to major trartsats and new proposals for strategy activitie$ tha
have a significant impact on the bank’s risk appeti

« obtaining information and analysing managementntsps to the extent and nature of the risks facing
the bank; and

« monitoring the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessnientess (ICAAP) and the Recovery Plan.

The Risk Committee of Belfius Bank operates indeleely of the Risk and Underwriting Committee of
Belfius Insurance. On the request of the Chairwfaihe bank’s committee, a joint Risk CommitteeBafifius
Bank and Belfius Insurance may be held. To pronsoiend remuneration policy and practices, subje¢héo
tasks of the Nomination Committee and the Remuimraommittee, the Risk Committee examines whether
incentives in the remuneration system take propmount of the institution’s risk management, equity
requirements and liquidity position, as well as piebability and distribution of profit over time.

The Risk Committee and the Audit Committee periafjcexchange information in particular concernihg
quarterly risk report, the specific report on opieraal risks, the effective management report eaabsessment
of internal control and the risk analyses perforrogdhe Legal, Compliance and Audit department® dim of
this exchange of information is to enable the twonmittees to perform their tasks properly and tetthe
form of a joint meeting.

5. Mediation Committee
A Mediation Committee has been established withBelfius group.

As at the date of the Base Prospectus, the Medi&@@mmittee has the following membership:

Chairman Jozef Clijsters

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Belfius Baakd
Belfius Insurance

Members Jean-Pierre Delwart

Independent Director

Belfius Bank

Johan Tack

Independent Director

Belfius Insurance

The Mediation Committee is responsible for passipgions relating to material transactions or opiers
between, on the one hand, Belfius Bank and itsidisloees and, on the other hand, Belfius Insurasce its
subsidiaries, or between their respective subs&diaSuch opinions are sent to the Board of Dirsctd the

companies concerned, which will then take a défiaitiecision on the planned transaction or opeamatio

7.10. Selected financial information
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Consolidated balance sh

Assets

(in thousands of EUR) Notes 31/12/15 31/12/16
1. Cash and balances with central banks 5.2 576,276 5,111,050
1. Loans and advances due from banks 5.3. 24,318,002 22,002,553
1. Loans and advances to customers 5.4. 87,189,152 89,702,399
V. Investments held to maturity 5.5. 5,017,155 5,393,247
V. Financial assets available for sale 5.6. 19,733,565 18,819,789
VI Financial assets measured at fair value througffitpoo loss r 5.7 3,222,991 2,985,979
VI Derivatives 5.9. 25,943,567 25,307,222
VI Fair value revaluation of portfolio hedge 4,372,902 4,533,779
IX. Investments in equity method companies r 5.10 106,775 97,044
X. Tangible fixed assets M 511 1,199,789 1,091,687
Xl Intangible assets M 512 81,941 122,541
Xl Gooduwill r 5.13 103,966 103,966
Xl Current tax assets 6,116 10,662
XIV. Deferred tax assets I 5.14 565,622 405,847
XV. Other assets r 5.15 1,169,777 1,004,389
XVI. Non current assets (disposal group) held for satediscontinued operations I 5.16 3,354,528 28,772
TOTAL ASSETS 176,962,124 176,720,926
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Liabilities

(in thousands of EUR) Notes 31/12/15 31/12/16
1. Due to banks 6.1. 11,537,622 12,581,830
1. Customer borrowings and deposits 6.2. 68,162,754 74,171,040
1. Debt securities 6.3. 27,777,552 23,981,430
V. Financial liabilities measured at fair value tugh profit or loss 6.4. 6,916,469 7,524,251
V. Technical provisions of insurance companies 6.5. 16,688,571 15,990,324
M. Derivatives 5.9. 30,060,085 29,572,521
VL. Fair value revaluation of portfolio hedge 226,472 207,474
VIl Provisions and contingent liabilities 6.6. 405,543 412,243
IX. Subordinated debts 6.7. 913,004 1,398,653
X. Current tax liabilities 42,369 60,609
XI. Deferred tax liabilities M 5.13 271,967 272,877
XII. Other liabilities i 6.8 2,056,561 1,535,952
X1, Liabilities included in disposal group and dintinued operations M 6.9 3,243,438 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 168,302,407 167,709,206
Equity
(in thousands of EUR) Notes 31/12/15 31/12/16
XIV. Subscribed capital 3,458,066 3,458,066
XV. Additional paid-in capital 209,232 209,232
XWVI. Treasury shares 0 0
XV Reserves and retained earnings 4,135,228 4,491,306
XV Net income for the period 506,076 535,229
CORE SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 8,308,602 8,693,833
XIX. Remeasurement available-for-sale reserve onritées 757,329 729,864
XX. Frozen fair value of financial assets reclassifto loans and advances (544,177) (498,653)
XXI. Remeasurement defined benefit plan 119,611 86,990
XXIL. Discretionary participation features of insurze contracts 6.5. 28,788 32,839
XX, Other reserves (11,462) (33,326)
GAINS AND LOSSES NOTRECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF INCOME 350,089 317,714
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 8,658,691 9,011,547
XXIV. Non-controlling interests 1,026 173
TOTAL EQUITY 8,659,717 9,011,720
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY | 176,962,124 176,720,926
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consolidated statement of income

(in thousands of EUR) Notes 31/12/15 31/12/16
|
. Interest income 7.1. 4,672,441 3,983,201
1. Interest expense 7.1. (2,648,756) (2,039,969)
1. Dividend income 7.2. 61,647 88,233
V. Net income from equity method companies 7.3. 8,292 5,018
V. Net income from financial instruments at fair walthrough profit or loss 7.4. 37,732 16,870
VI Net income on investments and liabilities 7.5. 14,180 115,710
VII. Fee and commission income 7.6. 601,668 625,109
VI Fee and commission expense 7.6. (104,668) (117,639)
IX. Premiums and technical income from insurancevities 6.5. 1,444,631 1,479,376
X. Technical expense from insurance activities 6.5. (1,730,512) (1,734,155)
XI. Other income 7.7. 138,992 218,785
XIl. Other expense 7.8. (311,785) (381,267)
INCOME 2,183,862 2,259,271
X1, Staff expense 7.9. (610,419) (580,201)
XIV. General and administrative expense 7.10. (432,834) (447,364)
XV. Network costs (275,993) (265,994)
XVI. Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 7.11. (77,205) (72,722)
EXPENSES (1,396,451) (1,366,281)
GROSS OPERATING INCOME 787,411 892,990
XVIl. Impairments on financial instruments and provisiéorscredit commitments 7.12. (92,665) (115,969)
XVIII.  Impairments on tangible and intangible assets 7.13. (12,798) 2,502
XIX. Impairments on goodwill 7.14. 0 0
NET INCOME BEFORE TAX 681,948 779,524
XX. Current tax (expense) income 7.15 (61,135) (56,522)
XXI.  Deferred tax (expense) income I 715 (114,738) (187,750)
NET INCO ME AFTER TAX 506,075 535,251
XXII. Discontinued operations (net of tax) 0 0
NET INCOME 506,075 535,251
Attributable to non-controlling interests (1) 23
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 506,076 535,229

8. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF
THE WARRANTS

(Annex Xl1.4 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

The following is the text of the terms and condidthe Terms and Conditions, each chapter or subchapter
individually referred to as Condition”) of the Warrants, subject to completion and ammeedt and as
supplemented or varied in accordance with the aslewrovisions of the Final Terms. In the eventaoly
inconsistency between the provisions of the FireahTs and the other provisions of this Programme Fihal
Terms will prevail. All capitalised terms that anet defined in these Terms and Conditions will have
meanings given to them in the relevant Final Terms.

References in the Terms and Conditions to the Wtgrare to the Warrants of one Series only, natlto
Warrants that may be issued under the Programme.
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The Warrants will be issued in series (eacltSaries) having one or more issue dates and on termswibe
identical (or identical other than in respect o# tBtrike), the Warrants of each Series being irgdnm be
interchangeable with all other Warrants of thati€XrEach Series may be issued in tranches (each a
“Tranche”) on the same or different issue dates. The sipe¢drms of each Tranche (which will be
supplemented, where necessary, with supplememtastand conditions and, save in respect of theeisiste,
issue price and principal amount of the Tranché mél identical to the terms of other Tranches & same
Series) will be set out in the Final Terms.

To the extent applicable, the Issuer and the Caticul Agent undertakes to comply with Book VI ofeth
Belgian Code of Economic Law@EL") in respect of Warrants issued under the Prograramd placed in the
framework of a public offer in Belgium. For thisnpese, a public offer has the meaning set fortAriicle 3 of
the Belgian Act of 16 June 2006 on the public offEinvestment instruments and the admission tdirigaof
investment instruments on a regulated market.

In accordance with Articles 1.8.22° and VI.82 to.84 of the Belgian Code of Economic Law, the Issuay
not make a unilateral modification of a produdt ifoncerns an essential feature of the produdgssno make
modifications to the Warrants that would allow tights and obligations under the Warrants to beased and
performed by the Warrant Holders in view of realisia return to the extent possible in accordancb thie
initially agreed terms and contractual equilibremd provided the following cumulative conditions anet:

(i) it is limited to events of force majeure or etrevents which significantly modify the economytteé contract
and for which the Issuer is not responsible;

(i) the modification itself is not significant, sthat it does not create an imbalance betweenigsrand
obligations of the parties, to the detriment of Warrant Holders. The Issuer must take all measamesmake
every effort to continue the product under simdicumstances; and

(i) no costs are charged to the Warrant Holders.
(iv) the contract term must be drawn up in a paid intelligible manner

The Conditions that grant or may grant the Issuet/@ the Calculation Agent a unilateral right t@dify
certain features of the Warrants are :

(a) Condition 8.7.1 (Change of law)

(b) Condition 8.7.2. (Cancellation option upon oppaif Investment Strategy)

(c) Condition 8.9 (Market Disruption Event or settient disruption event);
(d) Condition 8.10.1 (Potential Adjustment Event);
(e) Condition 8.10.2 (De-Listing, Insolvency, Merdevent or Nationalisation).

The early termination features of the Warrants jgled by this Chapter 8, including upon a changehi
Investment Strategy as defined under section 8(T&ncellation option upon change of investmerdtegy")

of the Base Prospectus, are only possible upoavéhts of force majeure or other events which Sgamtly

modify the economy of the Warrant and for which tbguer is not responsible (ii), except in the aafstorce

majeure, the Issuer is required to indemnify therrdfg Holder for the loss suffered by the Warramidér

because of the early termination; (iii) the corafitthat no costs are charged to the Warrant Haddr(iv) a
pro rata refund of the costs already borne by tivestor (in the proportion (total initial term mgelapsed
period)/total initial term), must be provided for.

When the early termination features of the Warramtwsided by this Chapter 8 occur, the Issuer shayl in
accordance with the indemnification-principle laldwn in article VI.83. 10° CEL, at least the FairuMet
Value of the Warrantair Market Value means the valuation using (i) the most relevaatlable market data,
or, (i) if no such relevant data may be foundts televant time, a valuation mathematical modelegaly
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accepted in the financial sector that maximisesus® of relevant observable inputs and minimisesuse of
unobservable inputs. Reference is made to the tiatugrinciples laid down in section 8.6.1 below.

The Conditions that grant or may grant the Issmelf@ the Calculation Agent a right to terminatel @ancel
the Warrants under certain circumstances are :

(a) Condition 8.7.1 (Change of law)

(b) Condition 8.7.2. (Cancellation option upon ofpamf Investment Strategy)
(c) Condition 8.10.2 (De-Listing, Insolvency, Merdevent or Nationalisation).

8.1. Form, Issue Price and Title

The Warrants are issued in dematerialised formhénR@enomination(s) specified in the relevant Fihatms.
The Issue Price of the Warrants will be at leasRELD,- (Commission included).

The Warrants will not be physically delivered. Theil be held on a global securities account witblfis
Bank, and only respectively assigned to Warrantdeld via an electronic platform managed by BelBask
and accessible by every Warrant Holder. Belfius iBarill not charge any fees for Warrants held in the
aforementioned global securities account.

These Warrants can be exercised during the ExePgsed. Consequently, the only means through wtiieh
Warrant Holder can realize value from the Warrararpo the Exercise Date is to sell it through #ezondary
market.

The issue of the Warrants has been authorized dpjutdons of the Issuer, as will be specified ia televant
Final Terms.

8.2. Governing law and jurisdiction

The Warrants are governed by the laws of Belgiurh.dfsputes arising out of or in connection witheth
Warrants shall be exclusively submitted to thesgiGtion of the competent courts in Brussels.

8.3. CurrencyThe Warrants are issued in EUR andvh&ie will always be expressed in EUR.

8.4. Definitions

The terms used in this Base Prospectus shall l@méaning as expressed hereunder, unless definevise
in this Base Prospectus. The definitions do notyafgpterms used in the extracts and press reldhaésas the
case may be, are mentioned in this Base Prospectus.

Base Prospectus . the present document, including, for the avoidamdedoubt, the
Summary, any of its Annexes or, as the case mayshbsequent
supplements, which together constitute a base pobsp for the
purposes of the articles 29 and 49 of the Prospecaw of 16 June
2006;

Belfius Bank . Belfius Bank NV/SA, a limited liability company ainlimited duration
incorporated under Belgian law and registered unte¥ number
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Calculation Agent

Commission

Company Code

De-listing

Disrupted Day

Early Closure

Early Termination Amount

Exchange

0403.201.185 and having its registered office atl®wmrd Pachéco 44, B-
1000 Brussels;

Belfius Bank NV/SA (abbreviated as “Belfius Banki)nless specified
otherwise in the relevant Final Terms;

The commission included in the Issue Price, as ifipécunder the
relevant Final Terms;

The Belgian company code, introduced by the Law dflay 1999 (as
amended);

Means that the Shares ceases, for any reason,ligtdzt on the Related
Exchange;

Any scheduled trading day on which a relevant Ergesor any Related
Exchange fails to open for trading during its regutading session or on
which a Market Disruption Event has occurred,;

The closure on any Exchange Business Day of tievaat Exchange or
any Related Exchange(s) prior to its scheduledirgjosme unless such
earlier closing time is announced by such Exchas)gef Related
Exchange(s) at least one hour prior to the eaofi€i) the actual closing
time for the regular trading session on such Exghés) or Related
Exchange(s) on such Exchange Business Day andhéi)submission
deadline for orders to be entered into the Exchamdeelated Exchange
system for execution at the scheduled closing timesuch Exchange
Business Day;

Means that, if the Warrants, are cancelled theelsaiill pay an amount
to each Warrant Holder in respect of each Warratd hy such Warrant
Holder which amount shall be the Fair Market Vabiea Warrant. The
Issuer will also take into account the Merger Eyebe-listing,
Nationalization or Insolvency, the value of the Erging Value, the
volatility of the Underlying Value, the time reméig to the Maturity
Date, the characteristics of the Underlying Valtes dividends of the
Underlying Value, any changes of interest rateg, @mange in currency
exchange rates, the liquidity of the Underlying M&aland any related
transaction costs as the case may be and as dpeli€air Market
Value means the valuation using (i) the most relevaatlable market
data, or, (ii) if no such relevant data may be tbahthe relevant time, a
valuation mathematical model generally acceptethénfinancial sector
that maximises the use of relevant observable snpatl minimises the
use of unobservable inputs. Reference is made & whluation
principles laid down in section 8.6.1 below.

Each exchange or quotation system, any successemyrsubstitute
exchange or quotation system, including for theigarece of doubt but
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Exchange Business Day

Exchange Disruption

Exercise

Exercise Date

Exercise Period

Final Terms

FSMA

IFRS

Insolvency

Issue Date

Issue Price

Issuer

Market Disruption Event

without limitation, any regulated market;

A day on which the Exchange is open for business;

Any event (other than an Early Closure) that dissupr impairs (as
determined by the Calculation Agent) the abilitynwdrket participants in
general (i) to effect transactions in, or obtainrke& values for, the
Shares on the Exchange, or (i) in futures or oticontracts relating to
the Share on any relevant Related Exchange;

Delivery of the Underlying Value against paymenttioé Strike Price.
The request to Exercise needs to be submitted giutie Exercise
Period;

Date during the Exercise Period on which the Wasrare exercised,;

Each business day on which commercial banks iniB®lgre open for
business from (and including) the date as specifietthe relevant Final
Terms until (but excluding) the Maturity Date;

The document containing the specific final termisitireg to a specific
series of the Warrants;

The Financial Services and Markets Authorifyu{orité des services et
marchés financiers/ Autoriteit voor Financiéle Dsten en Markten
designated by the Prospectus Law of 16 June 2008heasauthority
competent to approve this Base Prospectus;

International Financial Reporting Standards;

Means that by reason of the voluntary or involuptdiquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency of or any analogous prdoeg affecting the
SICAV (i) all the Shares are required to be tramsf to a trustee,
liquidator or other similar official or (ii) holdsrof the Shares become
legally prohibited from transferring them;

The issue date specified as such in the relevaual Fierms;

The issue price specified as such in the releveral Ferms;

Belfius Bank;

Means in respect of any Share, the occurrence wmteexxe of (i) a
Trading Disruption, (ii) any disruption that affeatrelevant Exchange
which in either case the Calculation Agent deteasiis material, at any
time during the one hour period that ends at tHevesit scheduled
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Maturity Date

Merger Date

Merger Event

Nationalization

Offer

Offering Period

Potential Adjustment Event

closing time or (iii) an Early Closure;

The maturity date specified as such in the relefaml Terms;

Means, in respect of a Merger Event, the date wpluch all holders of
Shares (other than, in the case of a takeover,o8bares owned or
controlled by the offeror) have agreed or havevooably become
obliged to transfer their Shares;

Means any (i) reclassification or change of Shates results in a
transfer of or an irrevocable commitment to transtdl Shares

outstanding, (ii) consolidation, amalgamation orrgee of the SICAV

with or into another entity (other than a consdimla amalgamation or
merger in which the SICAV is the continuing entityd which does not
result in any such reclassification or change bSahres outstanding) or
(iii) other takeover offer for Shares that resutisa transfer of or an
irrevocable commitment to transfer all Shares (othan Shares owned
or controlled by the offeror), in each case if erger Date is on or
before the Valuation Date in respect of the releéVdarrant;

Means that all the shares or all the assets otautimly all the assets of
the SICAV are nationalized, expropriated or areentlise required to be
transferred to any governmental agency, authorigntity;

Any offer on the basis of and, in accordance wiitis Base Prospectus
and the relevant Final Terms;

The offering period specified as such in the rat\nal Terms;

Means any of the following:

(i) a subdivision, consolidation or reclassificatiof Shares (unless a
Merger Event) or a free distribution or dividend $fares to existing
holders by way of bonus, capitalization or simitsue;

(i) a distribution or dividend to existing holdeo$ Shares of (a) Shares
or (b) other share capital or securities grantimg right to payment of
dividends and/or the proceeds of liquidation of BI€EAV equally or
proportionately with such payments to holders oér8h or (c) any other
type of securities, rights or price as determifmdthe Calculation
Agent;

(iii) an extraordinary dividend (provided that awydinary dividend,
whether or not in the form of cash, will not be smlered as a Potential
Adjustment Event);

(iv) a repurchase by the SICAV of Shares whethar af profits or
capital and whether the consideration for such n&mse is cash,
securities or otherwise; or

(v) any other event having, in the opinion of thaldDlation Agent, a
diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretiealue of the Shares;
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Prospectus Law of 16 June
2006

Related Exchange

Share

SICAV

Strike Price

Summary

Trading Disruption

Underlying Value

Valuation Date

Warrant

Warrant Holder

8.5. Exercise Procedure

The Belgian Law of 16 June 2006 on the public oféérinvestment
instruments and the admission to trading of invesininstruments on a
regulated market (as amended);

Means, in respect of the Warrant, each exchangguotation system
where trading has a material effect (as determimgdhe Calculation
Agent) on the overall market for futures or opti@whtracts relating to
such Warrant;

The Underlying Value, specified as such in thevate Final Terms;

Candriam Equities L, a UCITS duly registered undlee laws of
Luxembourg under the Commercial and Companies Regimumber
B47449, with multiple compartments, incorporated fn indefinite
duration.

The Strike Price is equal to the net asset valui@fUnderlying Value,
specified as such in the relevant Final Terms;

The summary of the Base Prospectus as such termsdd in the
Prospectus Law of 16 June 2006;

Any suspension of or limitation imposed on tradibg the relevant
Exchange or Related Exchange or otherwise and whéty reason of
movements in price exceeding limits permitted by thlevant Exchange
or Related Exchange or otherwise (i) relating te iWarrant on the
relevant Exchange, or (ii) in futures or optionsittacts relating to the
Share on any relevant Related Exchange;

a class C share of the compartment Candriam EgquitiEEUROPE
(capitalisation), admitted to trading on the nogulated market EUR
MTF with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (Code ISIBUE Trading:
LU0027144939; Code Bloomberg: CEK3520 LX), withirar@riam
Equities L, a UCITS duly registered under the lagfsLuxembourg
under the Commercial and Companies Register nuBB&rn49, with
multiple compartments, incorporated for an indééirduration;

Means in respect of any exercised Warrant, the MgtDate in respect
of such Warrant;

Means a warrant that is offered pursuant to thiseBarospectus and the
relevant Final Terms;

A person holding Warrants through a participant ior,the case a
participant acts on its own account, that participa
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8.5.1. Exercise Notice

The day on which the Warrants are exercised ieddhle Exercise Date and falls within the Exer&iseod. In

order to exercise the Warrants the Warrant Holtlatl sat the earliest at the start of the Exerélseiod and at
the latest on the day before the Maturity Datejfydts decision to the Issuer exclusively via deatronic

platform managed by Belfius Bank and accessiblevgyy Warrant Holder.

There are no costs related to the Exercise othar the ordinary charges related to the acquisitibthe
Underlying Value, as may exist at such time. Ashef date of this Base Prospectus, such costs dexceed
2.5% of the amount so acquired, with a minimum@d EUR per transaction.

If not exercised in accordance with the Terms amhdZions during the Exercise Period, a Warrant wil
become void and expire worthless.

Besides the Exercise, a Warrant Holder may aldo/¢airants to the Issuer on the secondary markesuth
case the selling price of a Warrant will be deterxi in good faith by the Issuer in accordance \ilih
principles laid down in section 8.6.1 below.

8.5.2. Settlement

Belfius Bank will deliver the Underlying Value toscurities account chosen by the Warrant Holdevtoch

must be opened by the investor for this purposecase the amount of Warrants exercised is infedahe

parity, Belfius Bank will proceed to a settlemeamtiash by transfer to the cash account indicatettidWWarrant
Holder.

8.5.3. Consequence of the Exercise
The Exercise is irrevocable.

8.5.4. Exercise period

The Exercise Period is defined in the relevant IFlieams.
8.6. Further information relating to the Warrants

8.6.1. Information relating to the pricing of the Afrants

The value of the Warrants is determined, as wittioop, by valuation models for options (for examplee
‘Black & Scholes’ model, trinomial model,...). Thigle is determined by different variables. The iotpat
some of these variables can be described as follows

- The value of the Underlying Value: the value of Warrant increases if the Underlying Value's value
increases in respect to the Strike Price.

- The Strike Price: the value of the Warrant increagethe Underlying Value's value increases in
respect to the Strike Price.

- The volatility: the value of the Warrant varies ating to the expected volatility of the Underlying
Value’s value until Maturity Date. The volatility ithe change in the value of the Underlying Value
calculated over a fixed time interval. The probigpibf a Warrant being more in-the-money is higtier
the Underlying Value is highly volatile (i.e. if las a large number of substantial price movements)
than when the Underlying Value is little volatilkccordingly, the value of a Warrant will increase i
the volatility of the Underlying Value increases.

- The remaining maturity: the longer the remainingturity (until Maturity Date) of a Warrant, the
greater the probability of the Warrant being in-theney at a certain point in time during this
remaining maturity. Therefore under normal circianses, the value of the Warrant with a longer
remaining maturity will be greater than the valdeadVarrant with a shorter remaining maturity. In
short, the value of the Warrant decreases if theaging maturity diminishes.
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- The interest rate for the remaining maturity: tladue of the Warrant increases if the interest vaitd
Maturity Date increases.

Investors may find information about the historicetlurns of the Underlying Value on the websitehef Issuer
or, if such information cannot be consulted onwhmbsite, through a written request at the corpasate of the
Issuer.

Investors should take into consideration that all ariables mentioned above may each influence the v
of the Warrant independently. In practice, any of hese variables can vary at the same time.
Consequently, the change in the value of the Warrdancan only be determined by taking into
consideration the combined effect of the changes iralue of each of these variables separately.

8.6.2. Information relating to the behaviour of thé&/arrants

Generally, the (non-)occurrence of anticipated tflatons in the price of the Underlying Value may
disproportionately affect the value of Warrants.rdats may expire worthless if the Underlying Vatiaes not
perform as anticipated. If not exercised in accocgawith the Terms and Conditions during the Exerci
Period, a Warrant will become void and expire wiedh. In order to recover and realize a return uip®n
investment, a Warrant Holder must be correct altbetdirection, timing and magnitude of an anticight
change in the value of the Underlying Value. Warrkiolders should also consider that the return lon t
investment in Warrants is reduced by the costsoimnection with the purchase, exercise and/or shide
Warrants. A general description of these costsasiged in section 8.6.3 below.

More in particular, investing in a Warrant allowsetWarrant Holder to exercise its option(s) in ctse
Underlying Value price fixes above the Strike Pritging the Exercise Period. The Warrant Holderelfigsiin
this case of the increase of the Underlying Valsleould the fixing occur below the Strike Price dgrithe
Exercise Period, the loss is then limited to thiginal premium paid to acquire the options. The k&far Holder
may also benefit (suffer) from a positive (negatieeolution of the price of the Warrant duringlifstime.

The Warrant has a leverage effect. This meansahgtvariation in the price of the Underlying Valigein
theory amplified.

A Warrant’s leverage effect is determined by apmythe following formula:
(Leverage #P/0S x S/P)

where:
S = the price of the Underlying Value
P = the value of the Warrant

The ratiooP/0S, which is called the Delta of the Warrant, is thegree to which the Warrant changes value
divided by the degree to which the Underlying Vatlenges valuedP/0S is not a constant, and the ratio
changes throughout the term of the Warrant.

As and when the leverage effect approaches 1, aawabehaves more and more like the Underlying &alu
and the risk associated with the Warrant is theeefdmost the same as the risk associated witinnegathat
Underlying Value. The above formula reveals tha lgverage tends towards 1 if the Delta of the afdrr
oPI0S, and S/P tend towards 1. Both ratios move towhm@sand when, among other things, the Warraet's t
gets longer and therefore the Warrant's initialetivalue rises.
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The Warrants issued by Belfius Bank have a longt@rhe unavoidable consequence of this is thatritial
leverage effect of the Warrant is signifcantly ldgtthan 1. That also remains so for a large patthefifetime
of the Warrant.

8.6.3. Costs in connection with the purchase, exgecand/or sale of the Warrants

Subscribers to Warrants shall pay the Issue Paapecified in the relevant Final Terms. The Id3tee is paid
by the employer not by the employee who has acdepee offer of the Warrants. There are no additicoats
of subscription.

In respect of the Exercise of a Warrant during Exercise Period, the Warrant Holder has to payStiike

Price specified in the relevant Final Terms. Thek8tPrice is equal to the net asset value of thdddying

Value, specified as such in the relevant Final TerBy exercising Warrants, the Warrant Holder pases the
Underlying Value at the Strike Price for an amoahWarrants corresponding to the Parity as spetifiethe

relevant Final Terms. In addition, the Warrant Holdhall pay the applicable fees and taxes reltied

subscription in the Underlying Value, as may eatssuch time.

A Warrant Holder may also sell Warrants to the éssiuring the entire term of the Warrants irrespectf the
applicable Exercise Period. In such case the gefiice of a Warrant will be determined in goodHéaby the
Issuer in accordance with the principles laid damsection 8.6.1 above. There are no additionascetated to
such a sale. In addition, the Warrant Holder spajl the applicable taxes related to such a salspexfied in
section 8.15.2 below.

8.7. Cancellation

The early termination features of the Warrants igelc below are only possible upon (i) events ofcéo
majeure or other events which significantly modtig economy of the Warrant and for which the Isssigrot
responsible (ii), except in the case of force maethe Issuer is required to indemnify the Waridalder for
the loss suffered by the Warrant Holder becausthefearly termination; (iii) the condition that gosts are
charged to the Warrant Holder and (iv) a pro ra&farrd of the costs already borne by the investortlie
proportion (total initial term minus elapsed pejitatal initial term),_such as, commissions, oglifeady paid,
the Actual Exercise Price, the Exercise Cost andetkercise Expense, must be provided for.

8.7.1. Cancellation upon change of law

The Issuer will cancel the Warrants upon the o@nae of a change of law rendering illegal the eltentby it
of its obligations arising out of this Base Progps@nd/or the relevant Final Terms in accordanitie section
8.10.2 (ii) below. The principles enumerated in pheamble to this Chapter 8 shall apply.

8.7.2. Cancellation option upon change of Investm&irategy

Upon the occurrence of a change of investmentegfyaénacted by the management bodies of the Uridlgrly
Value (the fnvestment Strategy), the Issuer may cancel Warrants in accordandd wéction 8.10.2 (i)
below. The principles enumerated in the preambtbisoChapter 8 shall apply.

8.7.3. Discharge upon cancellation

Any Warrants so cancelled in accordance with tregdtion may not be reissued or resold and thegabbns

of the Issuer in respect of any such Warrants dhallle iure fully discharged upon payment of the Early
Termination Amount and of the loss incurred by W¥arrant Holders. The principles enumerated in the
preamble to this Chapter 8 shall apply.

8.8. Payment

Subscribers to Warrants shall pay the Issue Pridgd® subscribed Warrants in cash.

Any amounts payable by the Issuer in respect ofWerants, shall be made by transfer to the casbumt
indicated by the Warrant Holders, subject to afilmable laws and regulations.
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If the date for payment due to the Warrant Holdeis day, which is not a business day in the ptdgayment,
the Warrant Holders shall not be entitled to paymertiil the next business day, unless otherwiseipd in
the relevant Final Terms.

8.9. Description of market disruption event or $&ttent disruption that affects
the Underlying Value

“Market Disruption Event” means in respect of the Share, the occurrencexatence of (i) a Trading
Disruption, (ii) an Exchange Disruption, which iither case the Calculation Agent determines is rizfeat
any time during the one hour period that endsatétevant scheduled closing time or (iii) an E&lgsure.

If any Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day, then Weaduation Date shall be the first succeeding schetlitrading

day that is not a Disrupted Day, unless each ofelight scheduled trading days immediately followthg

original Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day. In tlase, (i) that eighth scheduled trading day $felleemed to
be the Valuation Date, notwithstanding the fact gweh day is a Disrupted Day and (ii) the CaldalaAgent

shall determine, its good faith estimate of theugabf the Share as of the scheduled closing timthaneight
scheduled trading day.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Valuation Datetfier Share not affected by the occurrence of a PpiscuiDay
shall be the original Valuation Date.

8.10. Adjustments to the Underlying Value

The adjustments features of the Warrants spedifolw are only possible, for essential featurethefproduct,
if such modification would allow the rights and igaitions under the Warrants to be exercised antbimeed
by the Warrant Holders in view of realising a rettw the extent possible in accordance with thiaify agreed
terms and contractual equilibrum, and providedfttiewing cumulative conditions are met: (i) itlisited to
events of force majeure or other events which figartly modify the economy of the contract and fdrich
the Issuer is not responsible; (ii) the modificatitself is not significant, so that it does notate an imbalance
between the rights and obligations of the parteshe detriment of the Warrant Holders. The Issuast take
all measures and make every effort to continuepiteeluct under similar circumstances; (iii) no coats
charged to the Warrant Holders, and (iv) the cantierm must be drawn up in a plain and intelligiblanner

8.10.1. Adjustments in case of the occurrence datential Adjustment Event

Following the declaration by the SICAV of the terofsany Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculatfaent
will determine whether such Potential Adjustmenefivhas a diluting or concentrative effect on tieptetical
value of the Shares and, if so, will (i) make tlweresponding adjustment, if any, to any one or nuiréhe
Strike Price and/or any of the other terms of tHesms and conditions and/or the applicable Firahis as the
Calculation Agent determines appropriate to accéonthat diluting or concentrative effect and @i@termine
the effective date of that adjustment (provided ttmadjustment will be made as a result of anyvpayt of an
ordinary dividend, whether or not in the form ofsba The principles enumerated in the preamblehi® t
Chapter 8 shall apply.

Upon the making of any such adjustment by the Catlicn Agent, the Calculation Agent shall give wetias
soon as practicable to the Warrant Holders, statiegadjustment to the Strike Price and/or anyhef dther
terms of these terms and conditions and/or theiGgpe Final Terms and giving brief details of fhetential
Adjustment Event.

8.10.2. Adjustments in case of the occurrence otleange in Investment Strategy, De-listing,
Insolvency, Merger Event or Nationalization
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If a change in the Investment Strategy as definedeu section 8.7.2. ("Cancellation option upon deanf
investment strategy"), a De-listing, Insolvency, riygr Event or Nationalization occurs in relation ttee
Underlying Value, the Issuer may take the actioscdbed in (i) or (ii) below:

(i) require the Calculation Agent to determine thelateral modification, if any, of the Terms andr@itions
and/or the applicable Final Terms to account fer ¢hange in Investment Strategy, Merger Event,ifd),
Nationalization or Insolvency, as the case may &g determine the effective date of that unilateral
modification PROVIDED HOWEVER that in doing so ti@alculation Agent may only make a unilateral
modification if three cumulative conditions are met

(x) Change in Investment Strategy, Merger Event|iflang, Nationalization or Insolvency, as the easay be,
significantly modifies the economy of the Warrantdor which the Issuer is not responsible;

(y) the unilateral modification itself is not sidieant, so that it does not create an imbalancevdsen the rights
and obligations of the parties, to the detrimenthef Warrant Holders. The Issuer must take all nmessand
make every effort to continue the Warrant undeiilaincircumstances; and

(z) no costs are charged to the Warrant Holders; or

(i) cancel the Warrants by giving notice if no astiment could be made under (i) above. If the Whsrare so
cancelled the Issuer will pay the Early Terminatidmount. If the Early Termination Amount is zero or
negative, no payment will be due. Payments willnteede in such manner as shall be notified to ther&var
Holders. The principles enumerated in the preantbthis Chapter 8 as well as in section 8.7 shailya

Upon the occurrence of a change in Investment edjyat Merger Event, De-listing, Nationalization or
Insolvency, the Issuer shall give notice as sooprasticable to the Warrant Holders stating theuoence of a
change in Investment Strategy, the Merger Eventlighiag, Nationalization or Insolvency, as the easay be,
giving details thereof and the action proposedetdatken in relation thereto.

8.11. Rounding

For the purposes of any calculations required @unsdo these Terms and Conditions (unless otherwise
specified in the relevant Final Terms), (i) all gemtages resulting from such calculations shaltdumded, if
necessary, to the nearest one hundred-thousandtip@fcentage point (with halves being rounded am, (ii)

all currency amounts that fall due and payablel sfgtounded to the nearest unit of such currendth (halves
being rounded up). For these purposesit” means, the lowest amount of such currency thaivalable as
legal tender in the country of such currency.

8.12. Status of Warrants

The Warrants and the payments relating to themdaeet, unconditional and unsecured obligationghaf
Issuer and rank at all timgzari passy without any preference among themselves, wittotiler outstanding
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of thevaslt Issuer, present and future, but, in the ewént
insolvency, only to the extent permitted by lawktiag to creditors’ rights. This category can leers as the
“ordinary creditors” and may be qualified as “Preéel Senior creditors”, being the creditors relatedier
article 389/1, 1° of the banking law. Such credittiave a higher priority ranking than the so-calexh-
preferred senior creditors defined under articl®/382° of the banking law.

8.13. Responsibility of the Calculation Agent

In relation to each issue of Warrants, the CalotaAgent acts solely as agent of the Issuer arebs dwt
assume any obligation or duty to, or any relatigmslf agency or trust for or with, the Warrant Helg. All
calculations and determinations made in respetiteiVarrants by the Calculation Agent shall (sawvthe case
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of manifest error) be final, conclusive and bindimg the Issuer and the Warrant Holder. The foregoitoes
not prejudice nor limit any remedy the Warrant Hwldnay have under applicable law against the Issuer
regarding acts or omissions of the Calculation Agen

8.14. Notices

The Warrants being held in a global securities antaall notices from Belfius Bank to the Warranlters

shall be validly given by a direct notification an electronic platform managed by Belfius Bank accessible
by every Warrant Holder, each time as the Issudiidrdiscretionary opinion shall deem necessamyite fair

and reasonable notice to the Warrant Holders. Ther&Mt Holder will be notified of his or her exiggi position
at least once a year.

Any such notice shall be deemed to have been givethe date immediately following the date of riotifion
from Belfius Bank.

8.15. Taxation

BELGIAN TAXATION ON THE WARRANTS

The following is a general description of the pijpat¢ Belgian tax consequences for investors reagjviolding

or disposing of, the Warrants issued by Belfius IBamd is of a general nature based on the Issuer's
understanding of current law and practice. Thisegalndescription is based upon the law as in effadhe date

of this Base Prospectus and is subject to any eamigw that may take effect after such date. $tmes should
appreciate that, as a result of changing law octjm® the tax consequences may be otherwise thatated
below. Investors should consult their professialisers on the possible tax consequences of shiogcfor,
purchasing, holding, selling or converting the Vdats issued by Belfius Bank under the laws of theuntries

of citizenship, residence, ordinary residence anidde.

For a description of the tax regime of the Shaoelet received upon exercise of the Warrants, wer tefthe
prospectus pertaining to the Shares.

8.15.1. Belgian income tax
8.15.1.1. Belgian resident individuals

Individuals who are Belgian residents for tax pwg® i.e., who are subject to the Belgian persiocame tax
(“Personenbelasting/“Imp6t des personnes physitjuesd who hold the Warrants as a private investinanme
subject to the following tax treatment with respecthe Warrants. Other tax rules apply to Belgiesident
individuals who do not hold the Warrants as a gevavestment.

a) Belgian resident individuals (employees) who reeg¢he Warrants as a benefit in kind from their
employer:

The acquisition of the Warrants by an employee fitnemployer for no consideration constitutes aelfi¢ in
kind for the employee. Provided the employer haslena written and dated offer of the Warrants to the
employee and the employee has accepted this offeriting at the latest the 60th day (in practitee 10th
day) following the day of the offer, the taxablenbét in kind is determined according to the Beigiact of 26
March 1999. The taxable benefit has to be detemnamethe basis of the rule applicable to optionsted on a
stock-exchange. Indeed, a “stock exchange” is ddfifor the purposes of the Act of 26 March 1939 amy
regulated market or any other public, regularlyctioning market” (article 41, 5° of the Act of 26avth 2014).
The employees who wish to sell the Warrants cdrtlselWarrants to Belfius Bank. Belfius Bank pubés, on

a daily basis, a purchase price for the Warrantss Ppurchase price is based on a generally recegnis
economic valuation method (such as the Black-Sehfdemula). This has to be considered as a “rebular
functioning market” for the application of the Aof 26 March 1999 (as confirmed by the Belgian rglin
commission in the case at hand). As a consequéme@mount of the taxable benefit is the last ppigblished
by Belfius on its internet site on the day befdre offer. (by application of article 43 § 2 of thet of 26 March
1999). This price will be equal to the market vabfethe warrants, determined on the basis of thedsrd
procedure. The benefit in kind is taxable on thee dd attribution, which is irrefutably deemed te the 60th
day following the date of the offer of the Warranfbe benefit in kind is taxable as professionabme, at the
full personal income tax rate.
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The benefit realised upon disposal or upon exemfigae Warrants, is not taxable as professionabrime, nor
as miscellaneous income (article 90, 1° and 13giBelincome Tax Code). A loss realised upon didpafsine
Warrants is not tax deductible.

The Belgian Revenue may however take the positianthe Act of 26 March 1999 is not applicablecase:

- the Warrants replace a remuneration in violatiothefhierarchy of sources of entitlements, as @effin
in article 51 of the Act of 5 December 1968;

- the Warrants replace a remuneration to which timefigary was entitled, and to which the benefigiar
has renounced when the remuneration was alreadga:ar

- the Warrants replace a the monthly (fixed or vdepbasic wage, the holiday allowance, or the year-
end bonus up to the 13th month;

- the Warrants are granted to a person to whichripdayer has notified a dismissal;

- for new labour contracts, the Warrants replacesantbnthly (fixed or variable) basic wage, the hayjid
allowance, or the year-end bonus up to the 13thtimibrat is usually granted in the enterprise fer th
concerned category of employees;

- the granting of Warrants is disproportionate (dugégs amount or frequency) compared to the usually
attributed remuneration.

In these cases, the tax treatment may be difféhant described above.

b) Belgian resident individuals who acquire the Watsan a different way than as a benefit in kind:

Belgian resident individuals who acquire the Watsan a different way than as a benefit in kindd d&old the
Warrants as a private investment, are not taxatle capital gain realised on the Warrants, provitiedcapital
gain results from the normal administration of avale estate. A capital loss realised up disposathe
Warrants is not tax deductible. The benefit realipon exercise of the Warrants, is not taxable.

8.15.1.2. Belgian resident companies

In case a company grants Warrants as a form of meration (benefit in kind) to its employees, thenpany
can deduct the acquisition costs of the Warrantpaad wages. The employer granting the Warrantstbas
mention the benefit in kind resulting of the grahthe Warrants, on the individual payment slip81(20 and
records 325.10), otherwise the benefit in kind ddag subject to the special assessment on secrghissions
in the hands of the employer (at the rate of 103%greover, the employer has to pay to the Revehee t
professional withholding tax on the benefit in kirfl the employee does not reimburse the amounthef
professional withholding tax to the employer, thefessional withholding tax may have to be grosspd-

If the company does not grant the Warrants asra fidfrremuneration to its employee, but would dsdinh and

realise a capital gain, that capital gain wouldly subject to corporate tax. A capital loss netedl or realised
on the Warrants would tax deductible.

8.15.1.3. Belgian non-residents

Individuals that are non-residents of Belgium f@ldan tax purposes and who receive Warrants anefib in
kind from an employer that is a Belgium residerdividual, a Belgian resident company, a Belgianligub
authority or a Belgian permanent establishment fafr@ign company, are subject to tax on the bemefitind,
according to the same rules as described above @ntfe.1.1.a). These individuals should howeveify¢he
impact of Double Taxation Conventions on their paed tax situation.

Warrant Holders who are not resident of Belgium Bedgian tax purposes, who have acquired the Wearan
otherwise than as a benefit in kind and who arehetding the Warrants through their permanent distaient

in Belgium, will not become liable for any Belgidax on income or capital gains by reason only & th
acquisition, holding or disposal of the Warrants.

8.15.2. Other taxes: tax on stock exchange trangacs

A taxe sur les opérations de bour@ax on stock exchange transactions) will be léwa the purchase and sale
in Belgium of the Warrants on a secondary markeduph a professional intermediary. The rate appl&gor
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secondary sales and purchases in Belgium throygbfassional intermediary is EUR 0.27 per centvidh a
maximum amount of EUR 1600 per transaction andpaety. The Belgian Government has announced an
increase of that rate to 0.35 % as from 1 Janu@f82The tax is due separately from each partynyosaich
transaction, i.e. the seller (transferor) and theclaser (transferee), both collected by the psifesl
intermediary.

However the tax on stock exchange transactionsmwillbe payable by exempt persons acting for ttwin
account including investors who are not Belgiaridexsts provided they deliver an affidavit to thedincial
intermediary in Belgium confirming their non-residestatus and certain Belgian institutional investas
defined in Article 126.1 2° of th€ode des droits et taxes divéfSode of various duties and taxes) for tivee
sur les opérations de bourse

9. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE
OFFER

(Annex XI1.5 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

The Warrants will be offered for subscription asafed in the relevant Final Terms at the relevaste Price
(Commission included). The Issuer has the riglrtticipatively terminate the Offering Period if theaximum
amount of the Warrants issue has been reachedtloe ifnarket conditions adversely affect the inteoéshe
Issuer, as the case may be.

The Warrants have not been offered or sold andmitibe offered or sold directly or indirectly atice Base
Prospectus and the relevant Final Terms has not distributed and will not be distributed, exceptsiuch
circumstances that will result in compliance withegplicable laws and regulations.

The Warrants are deposited in a Belfius Bank glaegurities account and Belfius Bank will not cleaeqny
fees for this service.

The Issuer has the right to cancel any issue ofraigs under the Programme during their Offeringdeleuntil

the fifth business day before their Issue Dateheeit(i) when it reasonably believes that investoits not

subscribe to the Offer for an amount of at leastMinimum Amount specified in the relevant Finalrfis or

(ii) in case it considers there is a material asgethange in market conditions. Investors that Babscribed to
these Warrants will be notified pursuant to Cowditi8.14 of such cancellation. The Issuer has thlet itio

anticipatively terminate the Offering Period if tMaximum Amount of the relevant Warrants issue basn
reached or if the market conditions adversely affee interest of the Issuer, as the case may be.

The Warrants have not been and will not be regsteinder the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as ancsrated
are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and, stibjecertain exceptions, Warrants may not be effesold or
delivered within the United States of America, irdihg its territories and possessions, or to UeBsgns.

The Warrants have not been offered, sold or dedtv@nd will not be offered, sold or delivered, ag pf their
distribution at any time, or otherwise until 40 dagfter the commencement of the offering within theted
States or to, or for the account or the benefitlo§. persons and a dealer to which the Warraetsald during
the restricted period, will receive a confirmationother notice setting forth the restrictions dfeis and sales
of the Warrants within the U.S. or to, or for theeaunt or benefit of, U.S. persons.

The Warrants will be offered at the relevant IsBdee (Commission included). This price compridésasts.
The financial service will be performed by BelfiBank.

The Offer is governed by the laws of Belgium. Aiplites arising out of or in connection with thdedfhall
be exclusively submitted to the jurisdiction of t@mpetent courts in Brussels.
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10. ADMISSION TO TRADING AND
DEALING ARRANGEMENTS

(Annex XI1.6 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

The Warrants offered will not be the object of gplacation for admission to trading on a stock exule or a
regulated market. There are no securities of theesalass as the Warrants to be offered that asadr
admitted to trading on a stock exchange.

Belfius Bank will offer the Warrant Holders a pdsbty to sell the Warrants from the day followitige Issue
Date by providing liquidity through a single bidiqe per trading day. These bid prices are subjeca t
brokerage fee (excluding stock market tax) of 1%imam. In addition, the bid prices of the Warraate

subject to the market conditions (in practice, toaditions between 4.30 p.m. and 5.30 p.m. (Brasteie)

concerning, amongst other things, interest rates,Underlying Value’s value or volatility. The peiof each
previously executed transaction with the Warrastavailable the day after the transaction occumedan

electronic platform managed by Belfius Bank andeasible by every Warrant Holder.

11. USE OF PROCEEDS

(Annex XI1.3 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

The net proceeds of the issue of the Warrantsheilused for general corporate purposes of BelfaskBand
for covering the risks resulting of the issue a& WWarrants. The Warrants issue will be subjecbtaes out-of-
pocket expenses and publicity fees estimated &rdnend EUR 25,000.

12. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
THE UNDERLYING VALUE

(Annex XIV of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

The below information has been sourced from thesgeotus of Candriam Equities L, SICAV Luxembourg,
dated July T, 2017.

This information has been accurately reproduceatiimmBase Prospectus and, as far as the Issueare and is
able to ascertain from the aforementioned prosgectuhe SICAV, no facts has been omitted which ldou
render the reproduced information inaccurate ofea@ing.

The prospectus of the Underlying Value is availdioée of charge in all Belfius Bank agencies and ba
consulted on the internet site of Candridutids://www.candriam.be/en/private/fund-details/l020144939Y.

12.1. Description of the Underlying Value

12.1.1. Type and class of share

The Underlying Value is a Class C share (tB&dre’ or “Shares) of the compartment Candriam Equities L
EUROPE (the Compartment”) within Candriam Equities L, a UCITS duly registe under the laws of

Page79 of 96



Luxembourg under the Commercial and Companies Regisimber B47449, with multiple compartments,
incorporated for an indefinite duration (th8ICAV”).

Class C is offered both to legal entities and rsdtpersons and capitalizes its profits.

The number of shares of the SICAV that may be idgseainlimited. Every share must be fully paid-ygon
subscription.

12.1.2. Governing law

The Underlying Value is governed by the laws of &mbourg. The SICAV is registered with the Luxemlgour
Trade and Company RegistRggistre de Commerce et des Sociétés de Luxen)banugr the number B-
47449.

12.1.3. Form

All shares of the SICAV are registered shares withmminal value. Ownership of a share is only espnted,
and enforceable vis-a-vis the SICAV, by endorsenierthe SICAV’s register of shares. Holders of gisain
the SICAV will not receive any certificate represeg their shares, except upon express requesttther

12.1.4. Currency

The Shares are denominated in EUR.
12.1.5. Rights, limitations thereto and procedureaxercise

12.1.5.1. Dividend rights

The Shares are not vested with any dividend riglonsidering that the shares of Class C within the
compartment Candriam Equities L EUROPE capitaliheg profits.

The number of shares of the SICAV that may be sseunlimited. All shares of the SICAV, includinige
Shares, are vested with equal rights to a shaliguidation surplus within their compartment, ifyaprorata
the amount of shares existing within the relevambpartment by date of its liquidation.

(a) Fixed date(s) on which the entitlement arises:applicable.

(b) Time limit after which entitlement to dividendpses and an indication of the person in whoseuathe
lapse operates: not applicable.

(c) Dividend restrictions and procedures for naident holders: not applicable.

(d) Rate of dividend or method of its calculatigeriodicity and cumulative or non-cumulative natwfe
payments: not applicable.

12.1.5.2. Voting rights

All shares of the SICAV are vested with an equdingright, each share representing one vote. Timua
general shareholders’ meeting of the SICAV is tegidh year on April 8at 13:00 at the registered seat of the
SICAV, or at any other date and place as notifiefibtehand by the SICAV to the holders of shares.

12.1.5.3. Pre-emption rights in offers for subscrifion of securities of the same class

No shares of the SICAV are vested with any pre-@mpor preference rights.

12.1.5.4. Right to share in the issuer’s profits

All shares of the SICAV are vested with an equgthtito a share in the profit.

12.1.5.5. Rights to share in any surplus in the eneof liquidation
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All shares of the SICAV, including the Shares, @#sted with an equal right to a share in liquidasarplus, if
any,proratathe amount of shares issued by the SICAV by diatkedliquidation.

12.1.5.6. Redemption provisions

Every holder of shares in the SICAV is entitledh@ave his shares redeemed by the SICAV at any time,
accordance with the notification procedure to tBpasitary bank described in the prospectus of IGAS.

Redemption price will be lower or higher than thiscription price, depending on the evolution of tret
inventory value of the SICAV between the subsooiptiand redemption dates.

12.1.5.7. Conversion provisions

Every holder of shares in the SICAV may requestveosion of part of or all of the shares he holdsain
compartment of the SICAV into shares of another gariment of the SICAV. Such a conversion of shares
or into shares in, certain compartments and/orsela®f shares of the SICAV can however be limitgd b
conditions specific to each compartment at stake.

The procedure for notification to the depositarynlbaand exercise of the conversion is describedhm t
prospectus of the SICAV.

Conversion rate will be determined by applying fillowing formula:

A=BXxXCXxE
D
Where:

A: is the amount of shares of the new class ohénnew compartment to be attributed

B: is the amount of shares of the current clasa tite current compartment to be converted

C: is the net asset value per share of the cudlass or in the current compartment calculatedhenveluation
date at stake

D: is the net asset value per share of the nevg daB) the new compartment calculated on the t@nalate at
stake

E: is the FX rate on the valuation date at stakevéen the currency of the current class/compartraadtthe
currency of the new class/compartment.

12.1.6. Resolution and authorization for new issaeshare in the SICAV, issue date

Not applicable.

12.1.7. Admission to trading

The Shares have been admitted to trading since2lyl#999 on the non-regulated market EUR MTF i
Luxembourg Stock Exchange (Code ISIN/Code Tradifgp027144939; Code Bloomberg CEK3520 LX).

12.1.8. Restrictions on transferability
None.

12.1.9. Mandatory takeover bids or squeeze-out aelttout
Not applicable.

12.1.10 Public takeover bids during the last andfrrent financial year
Not applicable.

12.1.11. Impact on the issuer of the Underlying Mal of the exercise of the right and potential
dilution effect for the shareholders
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No impact.

12.2. Description of the Issuer of the Underlyingliwe (if member of the same
group)
Not applicable.

13. THIRD PARTY INFORMATION,
EXPERT STATEMENTS AND
DECLARATIONS

(Annexes IV.16 and XII.7 of Regulation (EC) 809/290

Except for the audited financial statements ofliseier, there has not been any statement or refiobuted to
a person as an expert which is included in thieBa@spectus.

Besides, there is no information in the Base Preisigewhich has been audited or reviewed by statwtoditors
and no auditor has produced a report with respeittis Base Prospectus.

The Issuer does not intend to provide post-issuarfoemation.

Information in Section 12 (“Additional informatioon the Underlying Value”) has been sourced from the
prospectus of Candriam Equities L, SICAV Luxembowtated July %, 2017. It has been accurately reproduced
in this Base Prospectus and, as far as the Issuaware and is able to ascertain from the afordoresd
prospectus of the SICAV, no facts has been omittikith would render the reproduced information inaeate

or misleading.

14. DOCUMENTS ON DISPLAY

(Annex IV.17 of Regulation (EC) 809/2004)

Copies of (i) the annual reports dated Decemb&r 2116 for the Issuer and of all subsequent anmyairts to
be published, and (ii) the articles of associatbthe Issuer are available free of charge at ffieeoof Belfius
Bank and will be available during the entire lifeé of the Warrants.

Additionally, the annual reports of Belfius Bank ear available on its internet site
https://www.belfius.com/EN/reports/index.aspx.

*k%

ANNEX 1: Template for Final Terms

FINAL TERMS
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Set out below is the form of Final Terms which w#lcompleted for each series of Warrants issuetkuthe
Programme.

[Date]

BELFIUS BANK SA/NV
Limited liability Company of unlimited duration ingporated under Belgian law
Issue of [...] (Aggregate Nominal Amount of Series dlVarrants)
[Title of relevant Series of Warrants]
under the
Long Term Warrant

The issue of the Warrants has been authorizeddnyutions of the Issuer datee][

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be definsddsin the Base Prospectus datefwhich constitutes a
base prospectus for the purposes of the ProspBatestive. This document constitutes the Final Tewh the
Warrants described herein for the purposes of kr2®, §2 of the Prospectus Law of 16 June 2006naunst be
read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus, holy, for the avoidance of any doubt, the Summaiy any
supplements to the Base Prospectus. Full informatio the Issuer and the Offer of the Warrants iy on
available on the basis of the combination of tHeisal Terms and the Base Prospectus. The Based®tosps
available for viewing atd] and copies may be obtained from the Issuer atifiditess.

These Final Terms relate to the securities and rbastead in conjunction with, and are subject h® t
provisions contained in the Base Prospectus asmaesmented. These Final Terms, and the relevanigions
constitute the conditions of each series of therdds described herein. A summary of the Base Robgp is
attached to these Final Terms.

In case of any inconsistency between the Base Bcospand the Final Terms, the Final Terms shalait.

Warrant type: The [¢] Warrantscan only be exercised during the Exercise
Period,;

Commission: [e] EUR;

Costs: There are no additional costs of subscription, dditeonal

costs upon Exercise (besides the payment of thkeSrice)
and no additional costs upon a sale to the IssQady
applicable subscription fees in the Underlying \éalas may
exist at such time and applicable taxes are due;

Exercise Date: Date during the Exercise Period on which the Wdsrare
exercised,;
Exercise Period: Each business day on which commercial banks inig@igire

open for business from (and includingp][ until (but
excluding) the Maturity Date;

Exercise: Delivery of the Underlying Value against paymerit tbe
Strike Price. The request to Exercise needs toubenited
during the Exercise Period;

Form: Dematerialized;

Currency: EUR;
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ISIN Code:

Issue Date: [o];
Issue Price : [10,-] EUR (being ¢] EUR, increased with the Commission);
Issuer: Belfius Bank, a limited liability company incorpdoeal under

the laws of Belgium (hereinafter “Belfius Bank™e¢sthe Base
Prospectus for information about the Issuer);

Maturity Date:

[e];

Denomination:

[e] EUR;

Offering Period:

The Warrants will be offered for subscription frqey] until
and including #] (4 p.m. Brussels time);

Minimum Amount of the Offer:

[e];

Maximum Amount of the Offer:

[e];

Parity:

The Parity is the number of Warrants necessaryuy 4n
Underlying Value at the payment of the Strike Pridde
Parity equals 4]% of the net asset value of the Underlyi
Value at p] (which will be posted omvww.belfius.beon [e])

divided by the Issue Price (Commission excluded);

Strike Price:

The Strike Price is equal to the net asset valfiethe
Underlying Value on ¢] which will be posted on
www.belfius.bedenominated in EUR;

Payment Date:

[o]

Governing law and jurisdiction:

The Warrants are governed by the laws of Belgiuni.
disputes arising out of or in connection with thavénts shall
be exclusively submitted to the jurisdiction of tbempetent
courts in Brussels;

A

Underlying Value:

a class C share (capitalisation) of the compartr@amdriam
Equities L EUROPE, admitted to trading on the negutated
market EUR MTF with the Luxembourg Stock Exchan

(Code ISIN/Code Trading: LU0027144939; Code Bloorgbe

CEK3520 LX), within Candriam Equities L, a UCITS Igu
registered under the laws of Luxembourg under
Commercial and Companies Register number B4744h

multiple compartments, incorporated for an indeéni

duration.

ge

the
Wi

Responsibility:

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the informattontained

in these Final Terms;

Information relating to the Underlying Value
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The below information is sourced from the prospediuCandriam Equities L, SICAV Luxembourg, datetlyJ
1% 2017.

The prospectus of the Underlying Value is availdioée of charge in all Belfius Bank agencies and ba
consulted on the internet site of Candridntigds://www.candriam.be/en/private/fund-details/I020144939.

The Issuer also confirms that as far as it is awacdeable to ascertain from such information, rsfhave been
omitted which would render the reproduced inforwminaccurate or misleading.

Description of the Underlying Value

The Underlying Value is a Class C share of the @mnpent Candriam Equities L EUROPE within Candriam
Equities L, a UCITS duly registered under the lasfs.uxembourg under the Commercial and Companies
Register number B47449, with multiple segmentspiporated for an indefinite duration. Class C itedd
both to legal entities and natural persons anda&igss its profits.

The assets of this compartment consist mainly goefolio of variable-yield securities, mainly skaror
investment certificates and distributed as follow®: at least 75% of these securities are issyeddmpanies
having their registered seat within those of themiper states of the European Economic Area whicte hav
concluded with France a bilateral tax treaty comtej a provision for administrative assistance agrat acting
against fraud and anti-tax avoidance, and admitechding on a stock exchange or a regulated rhaake (ii)

up to 25% of these securities are issued by corapdrdving their registered seat in, or operatiegl@minantly

in, Europe, and admitted to trading on a stock arge or a regulated market.

The compartment may also hold, on an ancillary fhashares and assimilated financial instrumentg. (e.
convertible bonds, warrants, investment certifisgteash or money market instruments whose residaglrity
does not exceed 12 months. The compartment maynwmest more than 10% of its assets in funds. Fer th
limited purpose of good management of the podfdtiis allowed to use techniques and financiatriiments
such as, among others, options, futures, swap$oawerd.

*kk

Page85 of 96



ANNEX 2: Articles of Association

Société Anonyme
1000 Brussels, boulevard Pachéco 44
VAT Business number BE0403.201.185 (Brussels Ragis legal entities)

Company incorporated under the name “Lending Bamiler the terms of a deed executed by notary AReuicq
in Brussels, with the intervention of Rudy Pauwdlgster of Law, in Deinze, on the twenty-third o€tGber
nineteen sixty-two, published in the annex to thenkéur Belge [official gazette] of the eighth obMember
thereafter, under number 29878. The Articles ofo8isgion have been amended further to records drgaoy:

1) the notary Albert RAUCQ, aforenamed:

- on the fifteenth of October nineteen sixty-fiygblished in the annex to the Moniteur Belge of $heh of
November thereafter, under number 32196;

- on the thirtieth of December ninety sixty-six,bpished in the annex to the Moniteur Belge of therity-first of
January nineteen sixty-seven under number 149-1;

- on the fourteenth of June nineteen sixty-eighbliphed in the annex to the Moniteur Belge oftthenty-ninth of
June thereafter, under number 1822-1 (change gb@oymame);

- on the twenty-third of June nineteen sixty-nipeblished in the annex to the Moniteur Belge offtheth of July
thereafter, under number 1840-1;

2) the notary Gilberte RAUCQ, in Brussels:

- on the twentieth of September nineteen seventy-published in the annex to the Moniteur Belgethaf

fourteenth of October thereafter, under number 2811

- on the eleventh of October nineteen seventy-minklished in the form of an excerpt in the anmethe Moniteur
Belge of the eighth of November thereafter, undenlver 1847-5;

- on the twenty-seventh of October nineteen eighity-published in the annex to the Moniteur Belfthe twenty-

third of November thereafter, under number 2238-9;

- on the thirtieth of May nineteen eighty-threepimhed in the form of an excerpt in the annexh® Moniteur
Belge of the twenty-third of June thereafter, undenber 1605-5;

- on the sixteenth of December nineteen eightyethpeiblished in the form of an excerpt in the antexhe

Moniteur Belge of the fourteenth of January nineteighty-four, under number 366-11;

- on the seventeenth of October nineteen eighg-fpublished in the form of an excerpt in the antexhe

Moniteur Belge of the thirteenth of November théiera under number 851113-22 and the thirty-fifsOatober

nineteen eighty-six, published in the form of amezpt in the annex to the Moniteur Belge of theosecof

December nineteen eighty-six under numbers 8612Q2td 143;

- on the seventeenth of November nineteen eighktygsiblished in the form of an excerpt in the ant@the

Moniteur Belge of the sixteenth of December theezafinder numbers 861216-221 and 222;

- on the thirtieth of October nineteen eighty-seyaiblished in the form of an excerpt in the antzethe Moniteur
Belge of the twenty-eighth of November thereafteder numbers 871128-284 and 285;

- on the fourth of December nineteen eighty-nindglished in the form of an excerpt in the annethtoMoniteur
Belge of the third of January nineteen ninety, umdenbers 900103-75 and 76;

- on the twenty-seventh of June nineteen ninetglighed in the form of an excerpt in the annexh® KMoniteur
Belge of the twenty-sixth of July thereafter, undembers 920618-54 and 55;

- on the twenty-fifth of May nineteen ninety-twpuyblished in the form of an excerpt in the annethéoMoniteur
Belge of the eighteenth of June thereafter, undeters 920618-56 and 57;

- on the first of June nineteen ninety-three, [@hgld in the form of an excerpt in the annex taMbaiteur Belge of
the twenty-sixth of June thereafter, under numbag626-26 and 27;

- on the twenty-sixth of June nineteen ninety-fiyriblished in the form of an excerpt in the anteethe Moniteur
Belge of the twentieth of July thereafter, undembers 950720-31 and 32;

- on the twenty-sixth of May nineteen ninety-sevarblished in the form of an excerpt in the anmmethe Moniteur
Belge of the twenty-fifth of June thereafter, undembers 970625-14 and 15;

- on the twelfth of February nineteen ninety-ei@untaining a change of company names), publighéuki form of
an excerpt in the annex to the Moniteur Belge efefyhteenth of February thereafter, under nunt#0218-434
and 435;

- on the twenty-fourth of September nineteen niwdit, published in the form of an excerpt in &mnex to the
Moniteur Belge of the twenty-first of October thafter, under numbers 981021-351 and 352;
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- on the twenty-fourth of February nineteen ningitye, published in the form of an excerpt in theento the
Moniteur Belge of the eighteenth of March thereafteder numbers 990318-36 and 37.

3) the notary Eric SPRUYT, in Brussels:

- on the first of April nineteen ninety-nine (changf company name), published in the annex to tbeitélur Belge
of the thirteenth of May thereafter, under numi88@513-142 and 143;

- on the thirty-first of May nineteen ninety-nirgyblished in the annex to the Moniteur Belge ofttienty-third of
June thereafter, under number 990623-458;

-on the twenty-ninth of December nineteen ninehenj published in the annex to the Moniteur Bel§ehe
seventeenth of February two thousand, under nun20830217-211 and 212.

- on the thirty-first of October two thousand , [sfed in the annex to the Moniteur Belge of therity-fourth of
November thereafter, under numbers 20001124-56568.d

4) The notaries Herwig VAN DE VELDE and Eric SPRUYIBth in Brussels:

- on the twenty-eighth of March two thousand and,tyublished in the annexes to the Moniteur Belgthe
nineteenth of April thereafter, under numbers 2d023483 and 484, containing, inter alia, the meaget takeover
by the company of the limited liability company “K& Bank Belgium”, shortened to “Dexia Bank”, thmited
liability cooperative company “Artesia Services'tahe limited liability company “Bacob”.

5) The notary Herwig VAN DE VELDE, aforenamed:

- on the thirtieth of April two thousand and threeblished in the annexes to the Moniteur Belgeeumdimbers
2003-05-19/0055624 and 0055625;

- on the twenty-ninth of August two thousand aneéh published in the Annexes to the Moniteur Belgder
numbers 20030919/0096816 and 0096817.

6) The notary Carole GUILLEMYN, in Brussels:
- on the twelfth of July two thousand and four, Imited in the Annex to the Moniteur Belge of thiéhfiof August
two thousand and four, under numbers 04116572 4htich73

7) The notary Herwig VAN DE VELDE aforenamed:

- on the thirty-first of August two thousand andrfopublished in the Annexes to the Moniteur Bedfjthe twenty-
second of September thereafter, under numbers 0813hd 04134062.

- on the thirty-first of May two thousand and fiyablished in the Annex to the Moniteur Belge & tiventy-
seventh of June thereafter, under numbers 090386%0837.

- on the first of July two thousand and five, psbéd in the Annex to the Moniteur Belge under nus12605-08-
05/0113834 and 0113835.

- on the thirty-first of August two thousand andefi published in the Annex to the Moniteur BelgeQ209-20
under numbers 0131421 and 0131422.

- on the fifteenth of December two thousand and, fpublished in the Annex to the Moniteur Belgéhef eleventh
of January two thousand and six, under numbersiB&Bland 0601366.

8) The notary Carole GUILLEMYN, aforenamed:
- on the eighteenth of June two thousand and seuéiished in the Annex to the Moniteur Belge of iy
thereafter, under numbers 2007-07-12/07101587 ahd1%88.

9) The notary Carole GUILLEMYN, aforenamed:
- on the twenty-ninth of December two thousand eigtht, published in the Annex to the Moniteur Betrfe23
January 2009, under numbers 2009-01-23/0012192 21118

10) The notary Herwig VAN DE VELDE, aforenamed:
- on the twenty-seventh of February two thousardtirane, published in the Annex to the Moniteur Betgn 19
March 2009, under numbers 09040827 and 09040828.

11) The notary Carole GUILLEMYN, aforenamed:
- on 15 December 2011, published in the Annex ¢éoMoniteur Belge of 31 January 2012, under numbégdis
and 26316.

12) The notary Carole GUILLEMYN, aforenamed:
- on 9 May 2012, published in the Annex to the Meuni Belge of 29 May 2012, under numbers 12095628
12095627.
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13) The notary Carole GUILLEMYN, aforenamed:
- on 2 December 2013, published in the Annex tdvtbaiteur Belge of 10 January 2014, under numbé@4.144
and 14011045.

COORDINATED ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Article 1 — NAME, LEGAL FORM, DURATION

The Company is a limited liability Company.

The name of the company is “Belfius Bank” in DuttBelfius Banque” in French, “Belfius Bank" in Geam
and “Belfius Bank” in English.

The Company may carry on its commercial activitisaler the following denominations: its name and its
commercial denominations "Belfius Bank & Verzekgen", "Belfius Banque & Assurances", "Belfius Bafak
Versicherungen", "Belfius Bank & Insurance", "Ball, "Dexia Bank Belgié", "Dexia Banque Belgique",
"Dexia Bank Belgien", "Dexia Bank Belgium", "Dexiank","Dexia Banque", "Artesia Banking Corporatipn"
"Artesia BC", "Artesia Bank", "Banque Artesia", "t&sia", "BACOB', "BACOB Bank" and "BACOB
Banque".

The Company is established for an indefinite dorati

The Company has the capacity of a Company thaéwpthyrpublicly appeals, or has previously publicly
appealed to saving funds.

Article 2 — REGISTERED OFFICE, OTHER OFFICES

The registered office of the Company is situateBrassels, boulevard Pachéco 44. The registeréckafiay be
transferred to another place, within the regioBrfssels-capital, by decision of the Board of Divex:

The company may establish offices and branchesewbeiin the world the Board of Directors deemssiful.

Article 3 - OBJECT

The Company'’s object is to carry on the business @kdit institution in accordance with the coiodi$ stipulated
by the law and regulations governing credit institws that have been approved by the National Bamelgium.

As such, the Company may - for its own accountfandhe account of third parties or in cooperatith third
parties — by itself or by intermediary of naturatgons or legal entities, both in Belgium and athiroadertake any
and all permitted activities of a credit institutjcany and all banking transactions and assoctegedactions, all
investment services transactions and associateshtrions, including inter alia:

1° transactions regarding deposits, credits withia broadest sense, brokerage, stock exchangedelat
operations, launches of issues, guarantees artgt;sure
2° short, medium and long-term credit transactionstan investments by provinces, municipalities and

organisations of a regional character, as wellnassiments effected by all public establishmentsnmanies,
associations and organisations, which are coretitédr provincial, municipal or regional purposasd which
provinces, municipalities and organisations ofgiomal character are authorised to support;

3 to further, by means of appropriate credit tratieas, the day-to-day operation of the budgets of
provinces, municipalities and organisations of giamal character, and of all other institutionseregd to in 2
above, as well as the day-to-day management afdkploitations,, companies and enterprises

4° transactions in financial derivatives

Furthermore, the Company aims to distribute instgaproducts from third party insurance companidse T
Company may acquire, own and sell shares and ipattans in one or more companies, within the knitovided
for by the legal status of credit institutions.

The Company is entitled to carry out any transastiof whatever nature, inter alia financial, comeiay including
goods and estate, relating directly or indireatlytte furtherance of its object or of such a naasréo facilitate the
achievement thereof.

All the provisions of the present article must bteipreted in the broadest sense and within théegbof the
laws and regulations governing transactions ofitrestitutions.

SECTION Il — CAPITAL - SHARES
Article 4 — CAPITAL, SHARES

The issued and fully paid-up capital amounts tedHillion four hundred fifty eight million sixtypsthousand two
hundred twenty seven euros and forty one cent (B4B8,066,227.41).
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The capital is divided into three hundred fifty-@imillion four hundred twelve thousand six hundeideen
registered shares (359,412,616) with no face vaaeh representing one / three hundred fifty-nitiléom four
hundred twelve thousand six hundred sixteenth @432,616th) fraction of the share capital.

Article 5 - AUTHORISED CAPITAL

The Board of Directors is authorised to increaseathithorised capital of the company in one or rim@talments at
such times and on such terms and conditions halltdetermine up to a maximum amount of threéobilfour
hundred fifty eight million sixty six thousand toindred twenty seven euros and forty one cent (EUR
3.458.066.227,41). Such authority shall be valichfperiod of five years from the gazetting in éimmexes to the
Moniteur Belge [Official Gazette] of the alteratiohthe Articles resolved by the extraordinary gahmeeting of
December 2nd 2013. It shall be renewable.

The Board of Directors is authorised to issue ia onmore instalments and on the conditions pezchitty law,
convertible or repayable bonds, equity notes, wisrar other financial instruments that in timeitento acquire
shares up to a maximum amount fixed such thatap#at resulting from the conversion or redemptidbonds or
the exercise of the warrants or other financiarimsents is not increased above the remaining maxirimit to
which the Board of Directors is authorised to iasethe capital pursuant to paragraph 1 hereof.

Increases of capital decided pursuant to thesedsdtions may be made by way of cash subscriptioms-cash
contributions, within the permitted legal limits well as by capitalisation of available or appiated reserves, or
share premiums, with or without an issue of newesha

The Board of Directors shall act in observancehafsholders’ statutory preferential rights.

Any share premium resulting from an increase oftabpesolved by the Board of Directors shall beorded in a
reserve account not available for distribution,chighall offer the same third

party guarantees as the capital, and may not, tiharwhere capitalised by resolution of the Gdridrseting or
Board of Directors as provided above, be reducezcelled other than by resolution of the Gerdisdting taken
in the conditions prescribed by article 612 of Bedgian Companies Code.

Article 6 — FORM OF THE SECURITIES
The securities issued by the Company will be reggst or dematerialised, as specified by the BoaRirectors or
by the General Meeting on the occasion of theirdss

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Article 7 - COMPOSITION

7.1 The Company is managed by a Board of Direactonsposed of a minimum of five members, who are
appointed and may be revoked by the General Meeting

One third of the members of the Board of Directotst be of a different gender to the other members.

7.2 The mandates of the members of the Board of Directs are granted for a period of maximum

four years.

The non-executive Board members are eligible fagleetion for a maximum of two mandates.

The tasks of a Board member shall end on conclusfothe ordinary General Meeting that decides an th
accounts for the previous year, held in the yeavhith that member's mandate elapses.

7.3 The General Meeting determines the remuneratfidihe Board members, with the exception of the
executive members.
7.4 In the event of there being a vacancy on thar@®othe Board of Directors provides for an interim

appointment, in accordance with the nomination gdores referred to in this article. The followiGgneral
Meeting shall make a permanent appointment. Thedatenof the person so appointed shall be granted fo
period of maximum four years.

7.5 The Board of Directors shall elect a Chairmaomf among its non-executive members and, if
appropriate, one or more Vice-Chairmen, as welthesholders of other positions. The Board of Dioest
appoints its Secretary, who is either a membeh@®Board or not.

7.6 The Board of Directors draws up regulationsegoing its procedures and regularly reviews those
procedures.

Article 8 — EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
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8.1 The members of the Board of Directors haveh liogether and individually, the right profile for
leading the institution and the composition of Beard of Directors guarantees that decisions dentén the
light of a sound and prudent policy.

8.2 The Board of Directors comprises executive romexecutive members.

8.3 The majority of members of the Board of Direstare non-executive.

8.4 The executive members are appointed on theopabmf the Management Board as a member of the
Management Board.

8.5 At least four of the non-executive membersiadependent, it being understood that, for the psep

of the present article, independent means the Buenthbers who have the characteristics describeudticle
526ter of the Belgian Companies Code, namely:

1° for a period of five years prior to his appoieti) he has not held the mandate of executive meofitee
management organ or the position of member of t@dgement Board or been entrusted with the dagyo-d
management either at the Company or at an assb@at@pany or for an associated person as desdritaticle
11;

2° Has not held more than three consecutive masdataon-executive board member on the
Board of Directors, for a period not exceeding teefears;
3° has not, for a period of three years prior odppointment, formed part of the managerial peeonith

the meaning of article 19, 2°, of the Belgian Laii20 September 1948 on the Organisation of the &eyn of

the Company or of a Company or person associatédtiae Company, as described in article 11;

4° does not and has not received from the Comparfyo;m a Company or person associated with the
Company as described in article 11 any remuneratiather significant benefit of a proprietary matuwther than
the bonuses and remuneration he may receive or feaeved as a non-executive member of the manageme
organ or member of the supervisory organ;

50
a) does not own any rights in the company that reptesge tenth or more of the capital, of the sodiaid
or of a category of shares in the Company;

b) if he holds entitlements that represent a quotessfthan 10%:

- those entitlements, together with the entitleméetd in the same Company by companies over
which the independent Board member exerts conimokt equal less than one tenth of the capitahefsbcial
fund or of a category of shares in the Company; or

- acts of disposal of the shares or the exercisingefights associated with those shares may not
be subject to agreements or unilateral commitmentisred into by the independent member of the nemagt

organ;
C) under no circumstances represents a shareholddrdim the conditions of this point apply;
6° has no significant business relationship, na had any such relationship in the previous fir@nci

year, with the Company or with a Company or pessociated with it as described in article 11 egittirectly
or as a partner, shareholder, member of the marexgeongan or member of the managerial personndiinvit
the meaning of article 19, 2° of the Belgian Law26f September 1948 on the Organisation of the Eognof
a Company or person that does have such a relaipns

7° has not, in the last three years, been a pairin@r employee of the current or previous audibthe
Company or of a Company or person associated hlCompany within the meaning of article 11;

8° is not an executive member of the managemerdanogj another company on which an executive
Board member of the Company has a seat in the itgghaon-executive member of the management oagan
as member of the supervisory organ, and has na etpeificant links with executive Board memberstioé
Company as a result of positions held at other eomigs or on other organs;

9° does not have a spouse, civil-law partner atiea by blood or affinity up to the second degnée
exercise at the Company or at a Company or forsopeassociated with the Company as describediateat 1

a mandate as member of the management organ, mefther Management Board, person entrusted with the
day-to-day management or member of the managegiglopnel, within the meaning of article 19, 2° loé t
Belgian Law of 20 September 1948 on the Organisatib the Economy, or to whom one of the other
circumstances described in points 1° to 8° apply.

Article 9 - ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

9.1 The Board of Directors determines the Compabysiness strategy and oversees the implementation
of that strategy.
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9.2 The Board of Directors is actively involved éwerything related to this responsibility for gealer
policy, in particular as regards supervision ok flicy, the organisation, the financial stabildf/the bank and
its management, including by determining the olbjestand values of the institution.

The Board of Directors appoints people to the reagsroles and assigns the necessary powers apdviags
those roles and powers.

9.3 The Board of Directors draws up a corporateegmance memorandum.

Article 10 - POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

10.1 The Board of Directors shall have the powersarry out all acts which are useful or necesfaryhe
achievement of the object of the Company, exceghiBpowers reserved to the General Meeting by law

10.2 The Board of Directors may delegate speciaieps to its Chairman, its Vice-Chairmen or one orerof
its members.

Article 11 - MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

111 The Board meets when convened by the Chaionain the event of his absence, by one of the Vice
Chairmen or, in the event of the absence of ther|dtvo other members of the Board, wheneverrttezasts of the
Company so require. A meeting must be convenitigeé members of the Board so request.

Notices of meetings shall be validly made by leti@x, email or any other means referred to irclert2281 of the
Civil Code. Any Board member present or duly repnésd shall be assumed automatically to have bexgrery
convened.

The Board of Directors may always hold valid deldi®ns, even if no meeting has been convened,gingy
all members are present or represented.

11.2 The meetings are chaired by the ChairmanefBibard. In the absence of the Chairman, he bleall
replaced by one of the Vice-Chairmen and, in titerfa absence, by a member designated by the wtberbers of
the Board from among the non-executive members.

All deliberations require at least half of the memgxto be present or represented.

Decisions are taken by a majority of votes casthieymembers present or represented, and in the evartied
vote, the Chairman or the person representing bsrttre casting vote.

11.3 A member of the Board who is unable to begmeay, by letter or any other means of commuinicén
which the authority to vote on his behalf is reearih a document, authorise another member togsepréim and
vote in his stead.

However, no member of the Board may represent thareone other member.

11.4 In exceptional cases, duly justified by thegency and in the interests of the Company, tlésidas of
the Board of Directors may be taken through thenimaus written consent of its members. The sigeatof
members of the Board may be placed either on arglesdocument or on several copies of the samenteu
The decisions shall bear the date of the last sigag@laced on the said document or documents. eMenyrecourse
to this procedure shall not be possible for theiopof the annual accounts.

Meetings may also be held by telephone conferemdeyovideoconference. In that case, the meetinthef
Board of Directors shall be deemed to be heldaQbmpany’s registered office.

115 The minutes of the meetings are approved éBthard and signed by the Chairman or one of tloe-Vi
Chairmen (in the event of the Chairman being apsentby two non-executive directors (in the evehte
Chairman and Vice-Chairmen being absent)

Copies and extracts of the minutes of the Boardsieed either by the Chairman or one of the Vit&i@nen
of the Board, by the Chairman or the Vice-Chairntena member of the Management Board, or by the
Secretary-General, or by the Secretary of the Board

B. MANAGEMENT BOARD

Article 12 — DELEGATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

12.1 In accordance with the law, the Board of Doexmay delegate all or part of the powers refeteein

article 522, paragraph 1, 1 of the Belgian Compmafiede to a Management Board, for which only memobkthe
Board of Directors can qualify.

However, this delegation may not involve eitherdeéermination of general policy or acts resereethé Board of
Directors by other provisions of the said Compagiede.

12.2 The Management Board exercises the effectaragement of the bank.

The Management Board ensures that the bank’s tiedivre in keeping with the strategy, the risks #ne policy
approved by the Board of Directors and providesBbard of Directors with the relevant informatiéam,order that
the Board can make well-informed decisions.

The Management Board establishes the most suggslems for internal audit and ensures that thk bperates in
a transparent manner.
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Article 13 - COMPOSITION

13.1 The Board of Directors determines the numberaembers of the Management Board.

The members of the Management Board constitutieg@d body.

13.2 The Chairman, Vice-Chairman and members geirstied by the Board of Directors from among the
members referred to in article 8.4, on nominatibthe Management Board and in accordance withebelations
governing financial institutions. The appointmefttlte Chairman of the Management Board will takacpl on
presentation of the Management Board, after catsitwith the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

13.3 The Chairman, Vice-Chairman and members magieved from office by the Board of Directors, on
the advice of the Management Board and in accoedaiit the regulations governing financial instios.
Termination of the mandate of a member of the Mamaant Board will result in the immediate terminatad his
mandate as a member of the Board of Directors.

13.4 The remuneration of members of the ManagerBeatd is determined by the Board of Directors, in
consultation with the Chairman of the ManagemersrBo

135 The Management Board may appoint a Secretaryjs either a member of the Committee or not.

13.6 The Management Board draws up regulations rgimgg its procedures and regularly reviews those
procedures.

Article 14 - DISCHARGE
Each year, the Board of Directors will advise aadischarge to be given to the members of the Manegt Board
regarding the execution of their missions durirgygtevious year.

Article 15 — MEETING OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

15.1 The quorum with which the committee may valtdhnsact its business is at least half the dirsgiresent
in person or by proxy.

Each member may give a proxy to a fellow committeenber by ordinary letter, telefax, printed emaiuwoy other
written document.

Each member can only represent one of his collesague

Meetings may also be held by telephone conferemcleyovideoconferenceln that case, the meeting of the
Management Board shall be deemed to be held &dhwany’s registered office.

15.2 The decisions of the Management Board shatbken by the simple majority of votes of all memsbe
present or representdd.case of a tied vote, the vote of the Chairmath@Management Board shall prevail.

15.3 Copies and extracts of the minutes of the Igament Board are signed by its Chairman or, if the
Chairman is absent, by its Vice-Chairman or, ifhbtite Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent, byobrits
members or by the Secretary-General or by the Begref the Board.

15.4 The Management Board may delegate specialrpawéts Chairman, Vice-Chairman, one or moretof i
members, one or more members of the staff or drer pierson. It may authorise sub-delegation thereof

C. OTHER COMMITTEES

Article 16 — AUDIT COMMITTEE — APPOINTMENTS AND COM PENSATION COMMITTEE -
STRATEGIC COMMITTEE AND RISK & CAPITAL COMMITTEE

16.1 The Board of Directors shall establish an Audommittee, an Appointments and Compensation
Committee, a Strategic Committee and a Risk & @a@ommittee, and any other committee the Boardndee
necessary, and will determine the composition,tfanimg, manner of deliberation and tasks of thomamittees.

16.2 The Audit Committee comprises at least onepaddent member of the Board of Directors, appoibte
the Board of Directors, who has the required acemay and auditing expertise. The members of thditAu
Committee have combined expertise in the field k& fctivities of the credit institution concerneddan
accountancy and auditing.

The primary task of the Audit Committee is to assie Board of Directors with analysing the finah@nformation,
including the annual accounts, the annual repattla@ interim reports.

In addition, the Audit Committee carries out thekeentrusted to it by the Board of Directors @ Atticles of
Association.

The annual report of the statutory management odganmonstrates the individual and combined expedishe
members of the Audit Committee.

16.3 The Appointments and Compensation Committeepdses at least one independent Board member,
appointed by the Board of Directors from amongriesmbers.

The composition of the Appointments and Compensaommittee is such that it can form an expert and
independent opinion on the remuneration policy eerduneration practices, in accordance with theicgige
regulatory and supervisory requirements.
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The Appointments and Compensation Committee sutamt®posal for a decision to either the Board ioé&ors
or the General Meeting as appropriate, for eachsidecabout the direct or immediate, indirect ofeded
pecuniary benefits associated with the functioarawarded to the members of the management organs.

In addition, each year the Committee prepares@trep the remuneration paid, to be appended tondreagement
report.

The annual report of the statutory management odgamonstrates the individual and combined expedishe
members of the Appointments and Compensation Cdsenit

16.4 The Board of Directors decides on the comiposilf the Strategic Committe&he Strategic Committee
comprises, as a minimum, the Chairman of the BoRirectors and the Chairman of the ManagementdBoa
The Strategic Committee assists the Board of Direcwvith determining the bank’s strategic objectiand in
specific tasks that are entrusted to the Committee.

16.5 The Board of Directors decides on the comiposif the Risk & Capital Committee.

The members of the Committee are chosen for tiskinmmanagement expertise.

The task of the Committee is to assist the Boarigctors in determining the risk policy, the moning of the
bank’s risk profile and supervising the risk mamagst function, in accordance with the sound andigmt
management of the bank.

16.6 The Board of Directors may establish one oremedditional advisory committees from among its
members and on its responsibility.

16.7 The Board of Directors approves the regulatgmverning the procedures of each of these cogenitt
Each committee conducts an annual review of itsgaiores.

D. REPRESENTATION

Article 17 — REPRESENTATION OF THE COMPANY

17.1 The Company is represented either by two mesvdfehe Management Board or by one member of the
Management Board acting jointly with the persoriegeed for this purpose.

17.2 The Company is also validly represented byosmeore specially authorised agents within thétdirof the
powers conferred upon them.

E. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Article 18 —-DUTY OF DELICACY

18.1 Without prejudice to article 523 and 524tettaf Belgian Companies Code, if a Board member or a
member of the Management Board has a direct ordodinterest of any nature whatsoever that isoinflect

with a proposed act or decision which, as applieaisl or may become within the sphere of competehtke
Board of Directors or the Management Board, inalgdas a result of a dual function, he shall infaima
Chairman at once and may not take part in the eleiiobns or the vote on that proposal; however,nvdeual
function concerns a company linked to the comparthé sense of article 11 of the Belgian Compa@iede, it
may, notwithstanding the above, attend deliberatemd take part in the vote.

18.2 In a general sense, the bank operates a éramg@and detailed policy on conflicts of interest.

SECTION IV — MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 19 — MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

19.1 The General Meeting of shareholders represdirgbareholders.

Decisions of the General Meeting are binding, ewerespect of shareholders who abstain or votenag#ne
motion.

Each share gives entitlement to one vote. If treweshare split into sub-shares, in sufficient gityathe sub-
shares shall confer the same rights as a shaesaitiie law provides to the contrary.

19.2  Bondholders, holders of warrants and foeates, issued in collaboration with the Compamgy only
attend the General Meeting in an advisory capacity.

Article 20 — CONVENING GENERAL MEETINGS

The ordinary General Meetings are convened by taedBof Directors.

The Board of Directors or the auditors may convexteaordinary and special General Meetings. Theyoaliged
to do so at the request of one or more shareholdersown at least one fifth of the shares or whmesent at least
one fifth of the share capital, within two weekslué date of the postmark of the registered Isttet to the Board
of Directors which states and justifies the itemdh® agenda and the motions.

Article 21 —ANNUAL MEETING
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The Annual Meeting of shareholders takes placéerast Wednesday of April at 2.30 p.m., at thésteged office
or any other place indicated in the attendanceaotf that day is a legal or bank holiday, the Mepwill take
place on the following bank working day.

Article 22 — FORMALITIES FOR ADMISSION TO THE GENER AL MEETING

The holders of registered shares must give nofitteed intention to attend the General Meeting.

Any shareholder may be represented at the Genezatihg by a proxy holder, whether the latter is da@lha
shareholder or not.

Bondholders, holders of warrants and certificatesjed in collaboration with the Company, may atignd the
General Meeting in an advisory capacity.

Registered bondholders, registered holders of werr@nd certificates, issued in collaboration wite Company,
must at least five days prior to the date of thedd&l Meeting, give notice in writing of their intéon to attend the
General Meeting.

Bearer bondholders, holders of warrants and astés, issued in collaboration with the Companystnati least
five days prior to the date of the General Meetdeposit their securities at the registered officthe Company or
at another place mentioned in the convening natieeholders of dematerialised securities mugiérseame manner
deposit a certificate which is drawn up by theified account holder or clearing institution, confing that the
securities are unavailable until the date of theetihg, inclusive. They shall be admitted to the &ahMeeting
upon presentation of the certificate proving thatrtsecurities or the certificate was depositetihie.

Co-owners, beneficial owners and bare owners, sdcoreditors and secured debtors must be reprdsente
respectively by one and the same person.

Shareholders may, pursuant to the provision o€lar640 of the Belgian Companies Code, put questiorthe
directors and/or auditor(s) about their reportaints on the agenda. These questions will be aesivavhere
appropriate, by the directors or auditors durirg@eneral Meeting.

Shareholders may put the questions dealt with aboveiting as soon as the attendance notice han Bsued.
Provided these shareholders have satisfied theafities for admission to the meeting and thesetguesreach the
company at the latest on the sixth day prior tatleeting, these questions will be answered.

With the exception of resolutions which have tghssed by notarial act, the shareholders may atflapsolutions,
unanimously and in writing, for which the Generatdfing is empowered. For this purpose the Boaidirefctors
shall send the shareholders a registered circadusand the Board members and statutory auditoircaar by
ordinary mail, fax, e-mail or any other medium isttthe agenda and motions and requesting appuafvéie
motions by the shareholders and return of ther|ettdy signed, to the address stated in the @rculithin a period
of fifteen banking days of receipt. If the approwhhll shareholders is not received within thisiqe the resolution
shall be deemed not passed. The holders of boraasants and certificates issued with the comparylisboration
may take note of these resolutions at the regastaffece of the company.

Article 23 — ORGANISATION OF THE MEETING

The Chairman of the Board of Directors chairs theeblhg.He designates the other members of the board of the
Meeting.

In the event of his absence, the Chairman is reglday one of the Vice-Chairmen or, in event of lditer's
absence, by a member of the board of directorgraged by the other members.

The minutes of the Meeting shall be signed by tleenbyers of the board of the Meeting and by the bloiders
who so request.

Copies and extracts of the minutes of the Meetiral e signed by the Chairman or one of the Vit&iGnen

of the Board of Directors or by two Non-Executivedgtors, or by the Secretary-General or by the&ary of

the Meeting

SECTION V — AUDITORS
Article 24 - AUDITORS
The auditing of the financial situation and the @waraccounts of the Company is entrusted to omeave auditors
approved by the National Bank of Belgium, who gopainted for a period of three years by the Gerdesting,

on the proposal of the Board of Directors and emtbmination of the Works Council.
If several auditors are appointed, they shall faroollegial body.

SECTION VI — ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Article 25 — FINANCIAL YEAR, INVENTORY, ANNUAL ACCO UNTS
The financial year starts on the first of Januany @nds on the thirty-first of December.
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On the thirty-first of December of each year, theail of Directors draws up an inventory of all &sseghts,
receivables, debts and liabilities of whatever kiethting to the business activity of the Compamg dhe
Company’s own funds allocated to this.

It reconciles the accounts with the inventory datd draws up the annual accounts.

Article 26 — DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS

26.1 To the amount of the legal minimum, at least onentieth of the net profits is taken each year to be
allocated to the legal reserve.

Distributable profits are made up of the net psofitr the financial year, minus prior losses anel allocation
provided for in the preceding paragraph, incredsettie amount of credit balances carried forward

26.2 The General Meeting, on the proposét®Board of Directors, determines the portiorhef distributable
profits to be allocated to shareholders in the fafmdividends. With regard to any surplus, if athe General
Meeting decides either to carry it forward or téeerit under one or more reserve items of whichdulates the use
and application. Furthermore, the General Meetiray decide to distribute sums withdrawn from theerees
available to it; in this case, the decision shafiressly indicate the reserve items from whichwfitedrawals are
made However, dividends are in the first instance takem the distributable profits of the respectiirencial
year.

26.3 The terms of payment of dividends are determingeith® Board of Directors.

Under the conditions provided for the Belgian Comigs Code, the Board of Directors may pay interividends.

SECTION VII — WINDING-UP

Article 27 — WINDING-UP, DISTRIBUTION OF AVAILABLE ASSETS

In the event of the Company being wound up, thee@dMeeting appoints one or more liquidators, det@grmines
their powers and fees and fixes the liquidatiorcedore.

The Board of Directors is as a matter of law resjtada for the liquidation until the liquidators appointed

After clearance of the Company’s debts and lidesitthe liquidation proceeds are distributed dgusdtween
the shareholders in one or more instalments

SECTION VIl = MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Article 28 — ELECTION OF DOMICILE

The shareholders, members of the Board, auditatdigmidators are obliged to elect domicile in Betg for all
their dealings with the Company. If they do not ptynwith this obligation, they shall be deemed &wvé elected
domicile at the registered office of the Compankiere all writs, notices and summons will be senwedn them
and where all letters and communications may betsehem.

Article 29 — TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

Article 7.1, paragraph 2 will not take effect urtiié fiscal year commencing on 1 January 2019.

In the interim the Company will ensure that theeobiye described in that article is gradually aehikas further
appointments and reappointments are made.

Coordinated text of the Articles of Associationtdexd true by Carole Guillemyn, Master of Law, aot in
partnership in Brussels, 24 December 2013.
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REGISTERED OFFICE OF

ISSUER AND CALCULATION AGENT

Belfius Bank SA/NV
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Belgium

AUDITORS
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Berkenlaan 8B
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